
BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

BVRTSC CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRE – BOARD ROOM 

(221 BEAVER ST. BANFF) 

AGENDA 
Nov 12, 2014: 2:00pm – 4:00pm 

1. Call to Order 

2. Election of Chair and Vice Chair (by verbal nomination followed by vote) 

3. Approval of the Agenda 

4. Approval of the October 8, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 

5. Approval of the October 20, 2014 Annual Organization Meeting Minutes  

6. Old Business (Standing Items)  

a. General Manager/ CAO’s Monthly report   
2014 Bring Forward List of Pending items.  
 

b. Transit Service Monthly Statistics  (January ‐ September) 

c. Quarterly Performance Indicators Update   

7. New  Business 

a. Ski Hill Advertising  (Discussion) 

b. GreenTRIP Application (Request for Decision) 

c. Town of Canmore Feasibility Update 

d. Town of Banff Request for Peak Service Increase 

e. 2nd Quarter Financial s Update 

8. Adjournment  



BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION   

REGULAR       MEETING 

 
BVRTSC CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRE – IAN MACKIE BOARD ROOM   

(221 BEAVER ST. BANFF) 
 

MINUTES 
October 8, 2014 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Sean Krausert, Town of Canmore ‐ Chair 
Grant Canning, Town of Banff  
Davina Bernard, ID#9 
Dave Schebek, ID #9 
 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
Stavros Karlos, Town of Banff ‐ Vice Chair  
Joanna McCallum, Town of Canmore 
 
BOARD ADMINISTRATION PRESENT  
Steve Nelson, Acting General Manager / Manager of Operations  
Tomoe Yamagata, Logistics Coordinator / Meeting Recorder 

ADMINISTRATION PRESENT 
Adrian Field, Manager of Engineering, Town of Banff 
Jacob Johnson, Acting Manager of Engineering, Town of Canmore 
Ethan Gorner, ID #9 
 
ADMINISTRATION ABSENT 
Alex Kolesch, Parks Canada 

 
 

1. Call to Order: 2:26 PM 
 

2. Approval of the Agenda 
 

  BVRTSC14‐97 Sean Krausert moved approval of the agenda.  
                    CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
3. Approval of the September 10, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
BVRTSC14‐98 Sean Krausert moved approval of the September 10, 2014 minutes as amended. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
4. Old Business (Standing Items) 

a. General Manager/ CAO’s Monthly Report 2014  (verbal)   
Bring Forward List of Pending Items (attached) 



Proposed Resolution to Re‐Schedule Pending Items (attached) 
 

BVRTSC14‐99 Sean Krausert moved that the following items be delayed until January 2015: 

(i) BVRTSC13‐36 (Emergency Protocol); 
(ii) BVRTSC13‐38 (Overload Policy); and  
(iii) BVRTSC14‐30 (Municipal Capital Allocation Policy). 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
 

Information provided by Jacob Johnson that, with respect to Canmore local transit, an open 
house for public feedback will be held on October 29, 2014 (tentative date) as well as 
presented to Canmore council meeting on November 12, 2014.    

 
b. Transit Service Monthly Statistics  (thru August’14)  

 

c. Quarterly Performance Update (Tabled by BVRTSC14‐96 to this meeting . . . and Chair 
will  seek to table until the November meeting) (not attached) 

 
BVRTSC14‐100 Sean Krausert moved to table quarterly performance update until November.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

 

d. Request for Decision re FCSS, Banff and Canmore 10‐Ride Pass Program (Report 2014 ‐ 
14)  (attached) 

 
BVRTSC14‐101 Sean Krausert moved that the Commission approve the sale of 10‐Ride Regional 
Passes at 50% reduced price to the Town of Banff and the Town of Canmore’s FCSS departments 
to manage and distribute the passes based on their current application/vetting process; and 
that Administration seek further approval of the Commission if the combined total sales of these 
cards are to surpass 200 10‐Ride Regional Passes in a single calendar year.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
5. New Business 

a. Request for Ratification re Banff Local Service Engine 
Replacement  (Report 2014 – 15) (attached) 

 

BVRTSC14‐102 Sean Krausert moved that the Banff local service engine replacement will be 
funded through the capital budget. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

  
b. Annual Organizational Meeting Agenda (attached) 

 

BVRTSC14‐103 Sean Krausert moved the Annual Organizational Meeting agenda be presented 
as attached.   

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
c. General Manager Recruitment Discussion 

 
Sean Krausert commented on the hiring process, job description and salary. A proposal will be 



prepared by a recruitment firm in the following week.  
 

d. BVRTSC Presentations to Municipal Partner Councils (verbal report by Chair) 
 

As Chair, Sean Krausert will be making presentations to all municipal partner Councils to 
provide an update on BVRTSC. 

 
6. Adjournment 

 
  BVRTSC14‐104 Sean Krausert moved to adjourn at 3:12 PM. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



Page 1 of  2
 

BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION 
ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

 
BVRTSC CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRE – IAN MACKIE BOARD 

ROOM  (221 BEAVER ST. BANFF) 

 
MINUTES 

October 20, 2014 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Sean Krausert, Town of Canmore ‐ Chair 
Stavros Karlos, Town of Banff – Vice Chair 
Davina Bernard, ID#9 
Dave Schebek, ID #9 
Grant Canning, Town of Banff  
Joanna McCallum, Town of Canmore 
 
BOARD ADMINISTRATION PRESENT  
Steve Nelson, Acting General Manager/ Manager of Operations/ Meeting Recorder 

 
MUNICIPAL/ PARKS ADMINISTRATION PRESENT 

Alex Kolesch, Parks Canada 

Adrian Field, Manager of Engineering, Town of Banff       

Jacob Johnson, Manager of Engineering, Town of Canmore 
 

1. Call to Order – 10:02AM 
 

2. Approval of the Agenda 
 
BVRTSC14‐105 ‐ Sean Krausert moves to approve agenda as amended. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
3. Approval of the October 16, 2013 Annual Organizational Meeting Minutes  
 
BVRTSC14‐106 ‐ Sean Krausert moves to approve minutes of the October 16, 2013 Annual 

Organizational Meeting.  
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
4. Consideration of Motions Requested by Banff Town Council 

 
BVRTSC14‐107  ‐  Sean Krausert moves  that administration provides a  report  to  the Commission by 

March 31, 2015 with respect to  recommended ridership targets per hour (a range) for 2015 – 2017 

for each of the two Banff  routes and the regional route. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



Page 2 of  2
 

BVRTSC14‐108 ‐ Sean Krausert moves that administration provides a report to the Commission by 

March 31, 2015 with respect to  recommended costs per service hour (including overhead) for 2015 – 

2017 for each of the  two Banff routes and the regional route.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

BVRTSC14‐109 ‐ Sean Krausert moves that administration prepares a spare bus ratio policy for the 

Commission’s consideration by  June 30, 2015 prior to purchase of any further rolling stock. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

 

5. Approval of the 2015 Operating & Capital Budgets 
 
BVRTSC14‐110 ‐ Sean Krausert moves that we approve the 2015 Operating Budget as presented.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
 
BVRTSC14‐111 ‐ Sean Krausert moves that we approve the 2015 Capital Budget as presented.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
6. Ratification of the 2014 – 2016 Business Plan (originally approved at the 2013 AOM) 
 
BVRTSC14‐112 ‐ Sean Krausert moves that the Commission ratifies the 2014 – 2016 Business Plan 
without any changes at this time.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
7. Appointment of YPM Chartered Accountants for Audit of 2014 Financials 
 

BVRTSC14‐113 ‐ Sean Krausert moves that the Commission appoint YPM Chartered Accountants 

to be BVRTSC’s auditors for the 2014  fiscal year.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

8. Resolution to Set Dates and Location of Meetings until the 2015 AOM 
 

BVRTSC14‐114  ‐  Sean Krausert moves  that, until  the Annual Organizational Meeting  in October 

2015, the Commission’s board meetings  take place on the 2nd Wednesday of every month at the 

Roam Customer Care Centre starting at 2  PM. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
9. GM Recruitment 
 
BVRTSC14‐115 ‐ Davina Bernard makes a motion that commission moves forward with engaging/hiring 

recruitment firm Legacy Partners Executive Search.  
CARRIED (Dave Schebek /Stavros Karlos Opposed) 

 
10. Adjournment 

 
BVRTSC14‐116 – Sean Krausert makes motion to adjourn meeting @ 10:50AM. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



BVRTSC Acting GM Update 

For Information 

November 12, 2014 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Administrative Work 

• GreenTRIP application process underway with assistance from Calgary Regional Partnership 
• Canmore Local service  

o Open House Oct 29th success 
o Market study and Open House survey presentation to Canmore Council 

• Getting prepared to deliver Regional Service ‘in-house starting Dec 3rd 
o Drivers in place and scheduled. 

• Elk bus back in service after engine replacement. 
• New Accountant on board with us – Heather Macpherson, CA 
• Temporary bookkeeping consultant services being provided by Janet Hoffart, CPB 
• Getting financials up to date and readied for ‘Year End’ 

 
Local Service  

• All buses now with updated and standardized Luminator bus sign displays. 
• Bus stop #6 (Unlimited/Safeway) upgraded to allow for full accessibility through curb cut and 

new cement work – special thanks to Town of Banff 
• Senior drivers currently training 2 new on-call hires.  Expected to be ready for service late Nov. 
• Local driver winter jackets arrived 
• Bus wraps moving forward now, plan to use existing imagery with windows revealed 
• Xmas dinner for drivers schedule for Sunday Dec 7th in Banff. 

 

Regional Service 
• Preparing for December 3rd in-house service. 
• Addressing LED NextBus signage issue in Canmore with Town of Canmore. 

 

Author: Steve Nelson (Acting GM/Operations Manager) Page 1 



1 
 

BRING FORWARD LIST OF ITEMS PENDING (as of November 2014)  

ITEM  Date 
Initiated 

Pending 
Date 

Comments: 

BVRTSC13‐36    Moved by Sean Krausert that the 
administration create an Emergency Services 
Protocol document and bring back for Board 
approval before the end of 2013. In this protocol, 
communication steps should be identified where 
Board member are consulted or notified before 
involvement in emergency situations and 
deployment of services.    
 

NOTE – BVRTSC14‐49 provides some interim 
communication guidelines in case of emergency 
situations. 
 

July 2013  January 
2015  

As a result of BVRTSC14‐9, 
this item was extended to 
April 30, 2014 (i.e. May 
2014 Board Meeting). 
 
As a result of BVRTSC14‐34, 
this item adopted the 
recommendation of Report 
2014‐5 to bring this item 
back no later than 
September 2014 Board 
meeting. 
 
Delayed to Oct 2014 
meeting due to the 2015 
budget process. 
 
As a result of BVRTSC14‐99, 
this item was postponed to 
January 2015. 

BVRTSC13‐38  Overload policy – Moved by Sean 
Krausert to request the administration to bring 
back an overload policy which will include 
information which authorizes the GM to make a 
decision on how to deal with overload situations as 
they arise. 
 

July 2013  January 
2015 

As a result of BVRTSC14‐34, 
this item adopted the 
recommendation of Report 
2014‐5 to bring this item 
back no later than 
September 2014 Board 
meeting. 
 
Delayed to Oct 2014 
meeting due to the 2015 
budget process. 
 
As a result of BVRTSC14‐99, 
this item was postponed to 
January 2015. 

BVRTSC13‐47   Moved by Sean Krausert to accept 
the recommendations in the report as presented 
and obtain the Customer Service Center Office 
Space as outlined in the report 2013‐19 with the 
following additional items;  
• Negotiate a reduced lease rate with the Town of 
Banff for the current office space in the industrial 
compound when its lease is expired.  
 

August 
2013 

September 
2014 

Awaiting confirmation on 
discussed cost. 

BVRTSC14‐30  Moved by Stavros Karlos to direct 
administration to draft a municipal capital 
allocation policy prior to the end of 2014.  
   

April 
2014 

January 
2015 

As a result of BVRTSC14‐99, 
this item was postponed to 
January 2015. 

BVRTSC14‐35    Moved by Sean Krausert that prior 
to providing any services to Parks Canada with 

April 
2014 

TBD   



2 
 

respect to producing information required for the 
proposed project, the GM/CAO will either (i) enter 
into a written agreement on behalf of BVRTSC 
whereby Parks Canada commits to covering all of 
the costs of BVRTSC preparing the information, 
including any out of pocket expenses; or (ii) not 
provide said services until a sufficient retainer is 
received from Parks Canada to cover the expected 
costs. 
 

BVRTSC14‐40  Moved by Joanna McCallum to 
approve the 2013 Audited Financial Statements as 
presented.  
 
2013 Management recommendations from the auditor 
were: 

1. Capital budget be approved which includes the 
capital expenses and capital revenues as well 
as an amount for amortization (annual process 
during budget approval process) 

2. Board approved Tangible Capital Asset policy 
be followed.  If there are concerns with the 
current policy, the Board should review the 
policy and amend it as necessary. 

3. Board review its policy for emptying the fare 
boxes and counting the coins from the fare box 
to ensure that a clean month end cut‐off 
results.  This is especially important at Dec 31 
year end.  

 

April 
2014 

February 
2015 

Administration will bring all 
items in report form to 
advise the Board of the 
progress made in all areas.  
When items have been 
implemented they will then 
be removed from the list.  

BVRTSC14‐61  Moved by Sean Krausert that the 
Commission approve Administration undertaking 
the work required (within the specified timelines) 
as requested by the Town of Canmore to 
investigate the feasibility of operating a local 
transit service in Canmore. 
 

June 
2014 

Sept 2014 
but now 
Oct/Nov 
2014 

Have been in 
communication with Town 
of Canmore administration 
with respect to timelines, 
and the Oct/Nov 2014 
timeline will work. 

BVRTSC14‐101 Sean Krausert moved that the 
Commission approve the sale of 10‐Ride Regional 
Passes at 50% reduced price to the Town of Banff 
and the Town of Canmore’s FCSS departments to 
manage and distribute the passes based on their 
current application/vetting process; and that 
Administration seek further approval of the 
Commission if the combined total sales of these 
cards are to surpass 200 10‐Ride Regional Passes in 
a single calendar year. 
 
 

October 
2014 

N/A   



3 
 

BVRTSC14‐107 Sean Krausert moves that 
administration provides a report to the Commission 
by March 31, 2015 with respect to recommended 
ridership targets per hour (a range) for 2015 – 2017 
for each of the two Banff routes and the regional 
route. 
 

October 
2014 

March 31 
2015 

 

BVRTSC14‐108 Sean Krausert moves that 
administration provides a report to the 
Commission by March 31, 2015 with respect to 
recommended costs per service hour (including 
overhead) for 2015 – 2017 for each of the two 
Banff routes and the regional route. 
 

October 
2014 

March 31 
2015 

 

BVRTSC14‐109 ‐ Sean Krausert moves that 
administration prepares a spare bus ratio policy for 
the Commission’s consideration by  June 30, 2015 
prior to purchase of any further rolling stock. 
 

October 
2014 

June 30 
2015 

 

 



 
Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission 

 

 
 

Banff Local Service 
Ridership and Revenue Statistics 



Month 2012 2013 2014 2013 Running Total 2014 Running Total Running Total Difference 2013 to 2014 Monthly Difference 2014 to 2014 Monthly % Difference
January 37,730 36,302 39,021 36,302 39,021 2,719 2,719 7.0%
February 41,031 39,738 39,353 76,040 78,374 2,334 -385 -1.0%
March 44,826 45,039 41,887 121,079 120,261 -818 -3,152 -7.5%
April 38,652 36,510 36,565 157,589 156,826 -763 55 0.2%
May 47,945 46,739 48,180 204,328 205,006 678 1,441 3.0%
June 47,447 50,267 56,419 254,595 261,425 6,830 6,152 10.9%
July 60,356 62,089 70,456 316,684 331,881 15,197 8,367 11.9%
August 64,441 63,224 66,224 379,908 398,105 18,197 3,000 4.5%
September 48,767 49,512 53,483 429,420 451,588 22,168 3,971 7.4%
October 36,818 34,244 463,664
November 33,359 30,911 494,575
December 42,073 41,403 535,978

Grand Total: 543445 535,978 451,588 535,978

Banff Local Ridership/Revenue Analysis

Ridership

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

RI
DE

RS
HI

P

MONTH

Banff Local Ridership By Month 

2012 2013 2014



Month 2012 2013 2014 2013 Running Total 2014 Running Total Running Total Difference 2013 to 2014 Monthly Difference 2013 to 2014 Monthly % Difference
January $23,104 $25,711 $28,869 $25,711.08 $28,869.44 $3,158.36 $3,158.36 10.9%
February $23,695 $27,959 $23,824 $53,670.05 $52,693.21 -$976.84 -$4,135.20 -17.4%
March $27,056 $26,138 $24,454 $79,808.33 $77,147.11 -$2,661.22 -$1,684.38 -6.9%
April $18,700 $26,536 $22,861 $106,344.49 $100,007.66 -$6,336.83 -$3,675.61 -16.1%
May $28,224 $33,720 $38,052 $140,064.69 $138,059.77 -$2,004.92 $4,331.91 11.4%
June $34,706 $30,034 $40,828 $170,098.44 $178,887.52 $8,789.08 $10,794.00 26.4%
July $37,127 $44,220 $49,655 $214,318.19 $228,542.52 $14,224.33 $5,435.25 10.9%
August $48,190 $40,125 $47,076 $254,443.24 $275,618.52 $21,175.28 $6,950.95 14.8%
September $33,119 $36,670 $36,604 $291,113.44 $312,222.52 $21,109.08 -$66.20 -0.2%
October $26,578 $23,066 $314,179.44
November $14,119 $20,087 $334,266.84
December $32,287 $29,795 $364,061.60

Grand Total:  $ 346,903.52 $364,061.60 $312,222.52 $364,061.60 $0 $0

Revenue

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

$45,000

$50,000

RE
VE

N
U

E

MONTH

Banff Local Revenue By Month 

2012 2013 2014



Month Fares Passes Other Total Budget Column1
January $20,289 $8,580 $28,869 $23,853.33
February $20,788 $3,036 $23,824 $23,853.33
March $20,683 $3,771 $24,454 $23,853.34
April $18,812 $4,049 $22,861 $29,500.00
May $29,459 $3,344 $5,250 $38,052 $29,500.00
June $35,714 $5,114 $40,828 $29,500.00
July $48,321 $1,334 $49,655 $44,433.33
August $45,698 $1,378 $47,076 $44,433.33
September $33,590 $3,014 $36,604 $44,433.34 Some pass invoices still to be entered.
October $0 $25,400.00
November $0 $25,400.00
December $0 $25,400.00
Totals: $273,355 $33,618 $5,250 $312,223 $369,560

Month Fares (what has been deposited) Passes Other Total Budget
January $23,131 $2,581 $25,711 $28,333.33
February $26,436 $1,453 $70 $27,959 $28,333.33
March $22,022 $4,116 $26,138 $28,333.33
April $20,093 $6,443 $26,536 $28,333.33
May $28,994 $2,726 $2,000 $33,720 $28,333.33
June $26,473 $3,561 $30,034 $28,333.33  June month end is 27th due to the weekend.  
July $41,683 $2,537 $44,220 $28,333.33
August $38,856 $1,269 $40,125 $28,333.33 August month end is 29th due to the weekend
September $34,131 $2,540 $36,670 $28,333.33 September contains August 30, 31st revenue.
October $18,653 $4,414 $23,066 $28,333.33
November $16,090 $3,598 $400 $20,087 $28,333.33 Month end is 28th due to the weekend. 
December $23,786 $6,009 $29,795 $28,333.33 Month end is 30th due to the weekend. 
Totals: $320,346 $41,245 $2,470 $364,062 $340,000

Month Fares Passes Other Total
January $21,203 $1,881 $20 $23,104
February $19,032 $4,643 $20 $23,695
March $23,926 $3,110 $20 $27,056
April $17,508 $1,168 $25 $18,700
May $25,940 $1,979 $305 $28,224
June $31,994 $2,697 $15 $34,706
July $35,012 $1,515 $600 $37,127
August $46,229 $1,961 $0 $48,190
September $31,502 $1,617 $0 $33,119
October $23,298 $3,281 $0 $26,578
November $13,202 $617 $300 $14,119
December $27,532 $4,755 $0 $32,287
Totals: $316,377 $29,222 $1,305 $346,904

BANFF LOCAL TRANSIT REVENUE BREAKDOWN
2012 Actual

BANFF LOCAL TRANSIT REVENUE BREAKDOWN
2014 Actual

BANFF LOCAL TRANSIT REVENUE BREAKDOWN
2013 Actual



January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
Cash Fare
Adult 8,819 9,479 10,130 8,045 10,713 10,560 13,734 14,867 11,651 7,739 7,294 9,898 122,929
Senior 275 435 529 545 2,412 3,411 3,602 3,543 4,013 754 297 475 20,291
Child 159 105 175 223 146 168 585 694 225 198 107 314 3,099
Cash Fare Total 9,253 10,019 10,834 8,813 13,271 14,139 17,921 19,104 15,889 8,691 7,698 10,687 146,319
Roam Token

All Categories 117 219 141 115 66 120 195 114 47 26 18 58 1,236
Roam Token Total: 117 219 141 115 66 120 195 114 47 26 18 58 1,236
10 Ride Pass

All Categories 75 108 96 62 24 42 82 67 47 25 92 120 840
10 Ride Total: 75 108 96 62 24 42 82 67 47 25 92 120 840
3 Day Pass
All Categories 29 164 23 40 25 64 157 172 13 18 0 52 757
3 Day Pass Total: 29 164 23 40 25 64 157 172 13 18 0 52 757
Day Pass
All Categories 375 658 677 705 2,268 2,286 3,146 3,641 2,542 914 411 699 18,322
Day Pass Total: 375 658 677 705 2,268 2,286 3,146 3,641 2,542 914 411 699 18,322
31 Days Pass
Adult 934 1,089 872 1,283 802 600 871 544 270 554 641 832 9,292
Senior 29 0 16 25 52 11 76 47 10 0 0 27 293
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 4 10
31 Days Pass Total: 963 1,089 888 1,308 854 611 953 591 280 554 641 863 9,595
93 Days Pass
Adult 1,236 1,791 1,870 1,202 807 591 796 706 529 652 970 1,655 12,805
Senior 55 38 26 21 0 14 13 12 0 0 0 0 179
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
93 Days Pass Total: 1,291 1,829 1,896 1,223 807 605 809 718 529 652 970 1,655 12,984
186 Days Pass
Adult 891 879 1,006 859 945 498 498 527 405 622 1,091 1,933 10,154
Senior 19 16 31 4 16 10 12 6 2 28 132 103 379
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
186 Days Pass Total: 910 895 1,037 863 961 508 510 533 407 650 1,223 2,036 10,533
Low Income Pass
All Categories 1,007 1,321 1,288 1,343 1,567 1,359 1,215 924 813 877 706 771 13,191
Low Income Pass Total: 1,007 1,321 1,288 1,343 1,567 1,359 1,215 924 813 877 706 771 13,191
Regional Ride - Pass Holder 38 34 38 37 45 52 35 108 21 39 29 42 518
Regional Ride - Cash 7 179 17 10 10 21 244
Hotel Partners 21,660 22,853 27,309 21,411 26,401 30,040 36,550 36,534 28,225 21,473 18,817 23,913 315,186
Transfers - Local 149 161 248 164 191 285 177 119 320 116 70 167 2,167
Transfers - Local to Regional 114 12 32 35 19 29 241
Infant Free Ride 101 107 147 181 173 69 65 181 137 85 111 87 1,444
Accessories 334 281 417 245 86 87 153 227 193 79 96 203 2,401

Total Ridership 36,302 39,738 45,039 36,510 46,739 50,267 62,089 63,224 49,512 34,244 30,911 41,403 535,978

Fare Type
2013

Banff Local Service Ridership By Fare Type



0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Local Ridership By Fare Type 2013

Cash Fare Roam Token 10 Ride Pass 3 Day Pass Day Pass 31 Days Pass 93 Days Pass 186 Days Pass Low Income Pass



January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
Cash Fare
Adult 8,954 8,869 8,533 7,812 10,680 10,975 16,296 14,971 11,416 0 0 0 98,506
Senior 332 306 505 503 2,223 2,875 3,232 3,089 3,471 0 0 0 16,536
Child 312 284 276 257 209 312 1,092 961 224 0 0 0 3,927
Cash Fare Total 9,598 9,459 9,314 8,572 13,112 14,162 20,620 19,021 15,111 0 0 0 118,969
Roam Token

All Categories 74 72 50 32 83 127 158 33 12 0 0 0 641
Roam Token Total: 74 72 50 32 83 127 158 33 12 0 0 0 641
10 Ride Pass

All Categories 63 72 83 58 74 70 83 80 73 0 0 0 656
10 Ride Total: 63 72 83 58 74 70 83 80 73 0 0 0 656

3 Day Pass
All Categories 55 24 57 12 181 156 215 256 101 0 0 0 1,057
3 Day Pass Total: 55 24 57 12 181 156 215 256 101 0 0 0 1,057
Day Pass
All Categories 554 640 560 812 1,871 2,244 4,180 3,929 2,724 0 0 0 17,514
Day Pass Total: 554 640 560 812 1,871 2,244 4,180 3,929 2,724 0 0 0 17,514
31 Days Pass
Adult 790 911 1,027 620 557 581 554 537 383 0 0 0 5,960
Senior 54 0 41 12 0 1 26 42 38 0 0 0 214
Child 2 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20
31 Days Pass Total: 846 911 1,068 650 557 582 580 579 421 0 0 0 6,194
93 Days Pass
Adult 3,316 3,986 3,841 1,986 955 708 792 732 581 0 0 0 16,897
Senior 0 0 0 0 0 4 29 31 0 0 0 0 64
Child 0 0 0 5 22 28 14 29 17 0 0 0 115
93 Days Pass Total: 3,316 3,986 3,841 1,991 977 740 835 792 598 0 0 0 17,076
186 Days Pass
Adult 2,344 2,144 2,493 1,873 1,542 1,045 900 701 778 0 0 0 13,820
Senior 97 101 118 43 15 1 6 0 0 0 0 0 381
Child 0 0 0 41 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 41
186 Days Pass Total: 2,441 2,245 2,611 1,957 1,557 1,046 906 701 778 0 0 0 14,242
Low Income Pass
All Categories 1,214 1,207 1,589 1,629 1,776 1,359 1,260 1,046 891 0 0 0 11,971
Low Income Pass Total: 1,214 1,207 1,589 1,629 1,776 1,359 1,260 1,046 891 0 0 0 11,971
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
Regional Ride - Pass Holder 105 92 91 88 85 103 161 165 87 0 0 0 977
Regional Ride - Cash 26 15 18 15 28 10 11 20 15 0 0 0 158
Hotel Partners 20,328 20,166 22,235 20,392 27,584 31,077 38,429 36,969 30,518 0 0 0 247,698
Transfers - Local 100 115 139 121 124 157 154 148 151 0 0 0 1,209
Transfers - Local to Regional 25 21 20 28 38 45 69 70 44 0 0 0 360
Infant Free Ride 42 159 57 39 15 103 220 212 141 0 0 0 988
Accessories 234 169 154 169 118 186 286 274 260 0 0 0 1,850
Other (Special Events (campground)) 0 2,609 237 0 0 0 0 0 2,846
Total Farebox Ridership 39,021 39,353 41,887 36,565 48,180 54,776 68,404 64,295 51,925 444,406
+3% Industry Correction 1,643 2,052 1,929 1,558 7,182
Total Ridership 39,021 39,353 41,887 36,565 48,180 56,419 70,456 66,224 53,483 451,588

Fare Type
2014

Banff Local Service Ridership By Fare Type



0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Local Ridership By Fare Type 2014

Cash Fare Roam Token 10 Ride Pass 3 Day Pass Day Pass 31 Days Pass 93 Days Pass 186 Days Pass Low Income Pass



January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
Cash Fare
Adult 3,710 3,709 4,052 3,159 4,118 4,024 5,253 5,713 4,564 3,319 3,000 3,671 48,292
Senior 95 195 234 222 850 1,126 1,062 1,208 1,333 293 146 211 6,975
Child 105 52 69 137 57 56 154 223 76 147 62 169 1,307
Cash Fare Total 3,910 3,956 4,355 3,518 5,025 5,206 6,469 7,144 5,973 3,759 3,208 4,051 56,574
Roam Token

All Categories 56 80 49 36 32 40 102 38 15 22 13 5 488
Roam Token Total: 56 80 49 36 32 40 102 38 15 22 13 5 488
10 Ride Pass

All Categories 36 37 44 42 4 27 38 19 11 16 41 29 344
10 Ride Total: 36 37 44 42 4 27 38 19 11 16 41 29 344
3 Day Pass
All Categories 5 17 4 13 9 12 71 33 9 8 0 29 210
3 Day Pass Total: 5 17 4 13 9 12 71 33 9 8 0 29 210
Day Pass
All Categories 184 346 327 402 1,191 869 1,398 1,452 1,071 463 224 475 8,402
Day Pass Total: 184 346 327 402 1,191 869 1,398 1,452 1,071 463 224 475 8,402
31 Days Pass
Adult 333 296 356 371 248 263 180 47 22 172 184 152 2,624
Senior 0 0 0 0 2 7 36 12 8 0 0 0 65
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 4 6
31 Days Pass Total: 333 296 356 371 250 270 218 59 30 172 184 156 2,695
93 Days Pass
Adult 467 397 434 246 148 84 132 136 107 205 393 512 3,261
Senior 3 22 26 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
93 Days Pass Total: 470 419 460 267 148 84 132 136 107 205 393 512 3,333
186 Days Pass
Adult 396 295 390 337 359 190 200 235 183 286 485 639 3,995
Senior 19 14 30 4 16 8 11 6 2 0 52 29 191
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
186 Days Pass Total: 415 309 420 341 375 198 211 241 185 286 537 668 4,186
Low Income Pass
All Categories 798 951 874 875 960 739 595 461 453 554 421 467 8,148
Low Income Pass Total: 798 951 874 875 960 739 595 461 453 554 421 467 8,148
Regional Ride - Pass Holder 15 23 21 14 26 27 27 68 9 23 21 23 297
Regional Ride - Cash 1 49 6 6 4 5 71
Hotel Partners 11,715 12,970 15,616 13,774 18,701 19,666 25,337 24,425 19,603 13,712 11,738 14,623 201,880
Transfers - Local 84 84 126 100 92 91 84 32 102 74 32 76 977
Transfers - Regional to Local 8 3 9 22 7 14 63
Infant Free Ride 40 55 83 107 93 40 38 51 45 26 41 44 663
Accessories 40 32 44 45 40 23 87 107 67 31 35 42 593
Total Ridership 18,101 19,575 22,779 19,905 26,946 27,292 34,816 34,318 27,695 19,379 16,899 21,219 288,924

Sulphur Mountain Route (Route 1)
Banff Local Ridership By Fare Type

2013
Fare Type



January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
Cash Fare
Adult 3,515 3,577 3,548 3,626 4,451 5,290 6,186 5,847 4,954 0 0 0 40,994
Senior 103 93 225 272 813 1,111 1,150 1,072 1,254 0 0 0 6,093
Child 209 129 131 139 137 175 436 353 125 0 0 0 1,834
Cash Fare Total 3,827 3,799 3,904 4,037 5,401 6,576 7,772 7,272 6,333 0 0 0 48,921
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
Roam Token

All Categories 16 36 4 26 15 84 125 17 9 332
Roam Token Total: 16 36 4 26 15 84 125 17 9 0 0 0 332
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
10 Ride Pass

All Categories 47 36 40 17 37 29 42 30 35 0 0 0 313
10 Ride Total: 47 36 40 17 37 29 42 30 35 0 0 0 313
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
3 Day Pass
All Categories 28 0 10 6 51 59 59 69 34 0 0 0 316
3 Day Pass Total: 28 0 10 6 51 59 59 69 34 0 0 0 316
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
Day Pass
All Categories 252 361 326 435 894 1,184 1,697 1,668 1,248 0 0 0 8,065
Day Pass Total: 252 361 326 435 894 1,184 1,697 1,668 1,248 0 0 0 8,065
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
31 Days Pass
Adult 177 203 248 126 153 232 136 133 187 0 0 0 1,595
Senior 2 0 25 0 0 1 9 27 1 0 0 0 65
Child 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18
31 Days Pass Total: 179 203 273 144 153 233 145 160 188 0 0 0 1,678
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
93 Days Pass
Adult 557 441 419 310 352 342 379 341 256 0 0 0 3,397
Senior 0 0 0 0 0 3 26 30 0 0 0 0 59
Child 0 0 0 5 20 27 14 29 17 0 0 0 112
93 Days Pass Total: 557 441 419 315 372 372 419 400 273 0 0 0 3,568
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
186 Days Pass
Adult 556 583 786 660 705 465 376 255 368 0 0 0 4,754
Senior 34 36 54 1 8 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 139
Child 0 0 0 41 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 41
186 Days Pass Total: 590 619 840 702 713 465 382 255 368 0 0 0 4,934
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
Low Income Pass
All Categories 609 654 765 810 843 537 427 364 470 0 0 0 5,479
Low Income Pass Total: 609 654 765 810 843 537 427 364 470 0 0 0 5,479
Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 Column5 Column6 Column7 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14
Regional Ride - Pass Holder 44 38 37 36 36 59 93 91 59 0 0 0 493
Regional Ride - Cash 9 3 4 4 3 4 1 8 10 0 0 0 46
Hotel Partners 12,049 12,841 13,708 13,416 19,011 22,590 26,253 24,630 21,148 0 0 0 165,646
Transfers - Local 48 71 88 74 65 69 52 79 80 0 0 0 626
Transfers - Regional to Local 17 8 6 17 22 25 30 34 25 0 0 0 184
Infant Free Ride 20 82 28 17 6 36 97 72 65 0 0 0 423
Accessories 50 38 51 75 57 109 184 148 169 0 0 0 881
Special (TMC Free Trip) 18 1 19

Fare Type
2014

Sulphur Mountain Route (Route 1)
Banff Local Ridership By Fare Type



Total Farebox Ridership 32,449 37,779 35,297 30,514 136,039
+3% Industry Correction 973 1,133 1,059 915 4,081
Total Ridership 18,342 19,230 20,503 20,131 27,679 33,422 38,912 36,356 31,429 0 0 0 246,005



January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
Cash Fare
Adult 5,109 5,770 6,078 4,886 6,448 6,191 7,936 8,409 6,639 4,420 4,294 6,227 72,407
Senior 180 240 295 323 1,513 2,138 2,408 2,199 2,490 461 151 264 12,662
Child 54 53 106 86 86 95 383 431 140 51 45 145 1,675
Cash Fare Total 5,343 6,063 6,479 5,295 8,047 8,424 10,727 11,039 9,269 4,932 4,490 6,636 86,744
Roam Token

All Categories 61 139 92 79 34 75 93 76 31 4 5 53 742
Roam Token Total: 61 139 92 79 34 75 93 76 31 4 5 53 742
10 Ride Pass

All Categories 39 71 52 20 20 15 44 48 36 9 51 91 496
10 Ride Total: 39 71 52 20 20 15 44 48 36 9 51 91 496
3 Day Pass
All Categories 24 147 19 27 16 47 76 133 2 10 0 23 524
3 Day Pass Total: 24 147 19 27 16 47 76 133 2 10 0 23 524
Day Pass
All Categories 191 312 350 303 1,021 1,245 1,643 2,008 1,384 451 187 224 9,319
Day Pass Total: 191 312 350 303 1,021 1,245 1,643 2,008 1,384 451 187 224 9,319
31 Days Pass
Adult 601 793 516 912 552 334 679 491 248 382 457 680 6,645
Senior 29 0 16 25 50 0 30 31 2 0 0 27 210
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 4
31 Days Pass Total: 630 793 532 937 602 334 713 522 250 382 457 707 6,859
93 Days Pass
Adult 769 1,394 1,436 956 659 507 662 566 418 447 577 1,143 9,534
Senior 52 16 0 0 0 14 13 12 0 0 0 0 107
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
93 Days Pass Total: 821 1,410 1,436 956 659 521 675 578 418 447 577 1,143 9,641
186 Days Pass
Adult 495 584 616 522 585 303 298 289 220 336 606 1,294 6,148
Senior 0 2 1 0 0 2 1 0 0 28 80 74 188
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
186 Days Pass Total: 495 586 617 522 585 305 299 289 220 364 686 1,368 6,336
Low Income Pass
All Categories 209 370 414 468 603 608 608 456 357 323 285 304 5,005
Low Income Pass Total: 209 370 414 468 603 608 608 456 357 323 285 304 5,005
Regional Ride - Pass Holder 23 11 17 23 17 23 3 37 11 16 8 19 208
Regional Ride - Cash 4 95 9 4 6 16 134
Hotel Partners 9,945 9,883 11,693 7,637 7,494 9,400 10,246 10,539 7,395 7,761 7,079 9,290 108,362
Transfers - Local 65 77 122 64 94 130 93 29 123 42 38 91 968
Transfers - Regional to Local 6 7 19 13 12 15 72
Infant Free Ride 61 52 64 74 79 24 27 79 74 59 70 43 706
Accessories 294 249 373 200 43 51 56 101 109 48 61 161 1,746

Total Ridership 18,201 20,163 22,260 16,605 19,314 21,202 25,313 26,036 19,707 14,865 14,012 20,184 237,862

Banff Local Ridership By Fare Type

2013
Fare Type

Tunnel Mountain Route (Route 2)



January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
Cash Fare
Adult 5,439 5,292 4,985 4,186 6,046 5,353 9,585 8,508 6,236 55,630
Senior 229 213 280 231 1,371 1,675 1,986 1,919 2,117 10,021
Child 103 155 145 118 69 120 623 569 98 2,000
Cash Fare Total 5,771 5,660 5,410 4,535 7,486 7,148 12,194 10,996 8,451 0 0 0 67,651
Roam Token

All Categories 58 36 46 6 68 41 32 16 3 306
Roam Token Total: 58 36 46 6 68 41 32 16 3 0 0 0 306
10 Ride Pass

All Categories 16 36 43 41 34 35 41 50 37 333
10 Ride Total: 16 36 43 41 34 35 41 50 37 0 0 0 333
3 Day Pass
All Categories 27 24 47 6 118 85 156 175 57 695
3 Day Pass Total: 27 24 47 6 118 85 156 175 57 0 0 0 695
Day Pass
All Categories 302 279 234 377 921 909 2,262 2,107 1,335 8,726
Day Pass Total: 302 279 234 377 921 909 2,262 2,107 1,335 0 0 0 8,726
31 Days Pass
Adult 613 708 779 494 404 340 409 398 195 4,340
Senior 52 0 16 12 0 0 16 6 37 139
Child 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
31 Days Pass Total: 667 708 795 506 404 340 425 404 232 0 0 0 4,481
93 Days Pass
Adult 2,759 3,545 3,422 1,676 603 363 409 387 325 13,489
Senior 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3
Child 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 3
93 Days Pass Total: 2,759 3,545 3,422 1,676 605 364 412 387 325 0 0 0 13,495
186 Days Pass
Adult 1,788 1,561 1,707 1,213 836 578 520 446 409 9,058
Senior 63 65 64 42 7 1 0 0 0 242
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
186 Days Pass Total: 1,851 1,626 1,771 1,255 843 579 520 446 409 0 0 0 9,300
Low Income Pass
All Categories 605 553 824 819 932 822 820 679 420 6,474
Low Income Pass Total: 605 553 824 819 932 822 820 679 420 0 0 0 6,474
Regional Ride - Pass Holder 61 54 54 52 48 32 57 56 26 440
Regional Ride - Cash 17 12 14 11 25 5 10 9 5 108
Hotel Partners 8,279 7,325 8,527 6,976 8,149 7,756 11,248 11,290 8,811 78,361
Transfers - Local 52 44 51 47 59 74 90 45 60 522
Transfers - Regional to Local 8 13 14 11 13 18 34 25 13 149
Infant Free Ride 22 77 29 22 7 63 98 136 72 526
Accessories 184 131 103 94 60 73 99 126 90 960
Special (TMC Free Trip) 2,590 234 2,824
Total Farebox Ridership 20,934 28,732 26,947 20,346 96,959
+3% Industry Correction 628 862 808 610 2,909
Total Ridership 20,679 20,123 21,384 16,434 19,772 21,562 29,594 27,755 20,956 0 0 0 198,260

2014
Fare Type

Tunnel Mountain Route (Route 2)
Banff Local Ridership By Fare Type



May June July August September October November December Total
Cash Fare
Adult 147 345 545 745 448 0 0 0 2,230
Senior 49 147 132 136 190 0 0 0 654
Child 3 17 48 40 9 0 0 0 117
Cash Fare Total 199 509 725 921 647 0 0 0 3,001
Roam Token

All Categories 0 5 0 0 1 0 0 0 6
Roam Token Total: 0 5 0 0 1 0 0 0 6
10 Ride Pass

All Categories 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10 Ride Total: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 Day Pass
All Categories 0 5 10 6 2 0 0 0 23
3 Day Pass Total: 0 5 10 6 2 0 0 0 23
Day Pass
All Categories 56 172 105 181 87 0 0 0 601
Day Pass Total: 56 172 105 181 87 0 0 0 601
31 Days Pass
Adult 2 3 12 6 0 0 0 0 23
Senior 0 4 10 4 0 0 0 0 18
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
31 Days Pass Total: 2 7 22 10 0 0 0 0 41
93 Days Pass
Adult 0 0 2 4 4 0 0 0 10
Senior 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
93 Days Pass Total: 0 0 2 4 4 0 0 0 10
186 Days Pass
Adult 1 5 0 3 2 0 0 0 11
Senior 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
186 Days Pass Total: 1 5 0 3 2 0 0 0 11
Low Income Pass
All Categories 4 12 12 7 3 0 0 0 38
Low Income Pass Total: 4 12 12 7 3 0 0 0 38
Regional Ride - Pass Holder 2 2 5 3 1 0 0 0 13
Regional Ride - Cash 2 35 2 0 0 0 39

Banff Local Ridership By Fare Type

Fare Type
2013

Cave & Basin Route (Route 4)



Hotel Partners 206 974 967 1,570 1,227 0 0 0 4,944
Transfers - Local 5 64 0 58 95 0 0 0 222
Transfers - Regional to Local 100 2 4 0 0 0 106
Infant Free Ride 1 5 0 51 18 0 0 0 75
Accessories 3 13 10 19 17 0 0 0 62

Total Ridership 479 1,773 1,960 2,870 2,110 0 0 0 9,192



May June July August September October November December Total
Column1 Column9 Column10 Column11 Column12 Column13 Column14 Column15 Column16 Column17
Cash Fare
Adult 183 332 525 616 226 1,882
Senior 39 89 96 98 100 422
Child 3 17 33 39 1 93
Cash Fare Total 225 438 654 753 327 0 0 0 2,397
Roam Token

All Categories 0 2 1 0 0 3
Roam Token Total: 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 3
10 Ride Pass

All Categories 3 6 0 0 1 10
10 Ride Total: 3 6 0 0 1 0 0 0 10
3 Day Pass
All Categories 12 12 0 12 10 46
3 Day Pass Total: 12 12 0 12 10 0 0 0 46
Day Pass
All Categories 56 151 221 154 141 723
Day Pass Total: 56 151 221 154 141 0 0 0 723
31 Days Pass
Adult 0 9 9 6 1 25
Senior 0 0 1 9 0 10
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0
31 Days Pass Total: 0 9 10 15 1 0 0 0 35
93 Days Pass
Adult 0 3 4 4 0 11
Senior 0 1 0 1 0 2
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0
93 Days Pass Total: 0 4 4 5 0 0 0 0 13
186 Days Pass
Adult 1 2 4 0 1 8
Senior 0 0 0 0 0 0
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0
186 Days Pass Total: 1 2 4 0 1 0 0 0 8
Low Income Pass
All Categories 1 0 13 3 1 18

Fare Type

Cave & Basin Route (Route 4)
Banff Local Ridership By Fare Type

2014



Low Income Pass Total: 1 0 13 3 1 0 0 0 18
Regional Ride - Pass Holder 1 12 11 18 2 44
Regional Ride - Cash 0 1 0 3 0 4
Hotel Partners 424 731 928 1,049 559 3,691
Transfers - Local 0 14 12 24 11 61
Transfers - Regional to Local 3 2 5 11 6 27
Infant Free Ride 2 4 25 4 4 39
Accessories 1 4 3 0 1 9
Special (TMC Free Trip) 0 1 2 0 0 3
Total Farebox Ridership 1,393 1,893 2,051 1,065 6,402
+3% Industry Correction 42 57 62 32 192
Total Ridership 729 1,435 1,950 2,113 1,097 0 0 0 7,323



 
Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission 

 

 
 

Banff/Canmore Regional Service 
Ridership and Revenue Statistics 



Month 2013 2014 2013 Running Total 2014 Running Total Running Total Difference 2013 to 2014 Monthly Comparison2 2013 to 2014 Monthly % Difference
January 3,952 6,623 3,952 6,623 2,671 2,671 40.3%
February 3,824 5,974 7,776 12,597 4,821 2,150 36.0%
March 4,156 6,381 11,932 18,978 7,046 2,225 34.9%
April 4,371 6,471 16,303 25,449 9,146 2,100 32.5%
May 4,935 7,714 21,238 33,163 11,925 2,779 36.0%
June 3,517 7,551 24,755 40,714 15,959 4,034 53.4%
July 4,947 9,153 29,702 49,867 20,165 4,206 46.0%
August 5,470 8,929 35,172 58,796 23,624 3,459 38.7%
September 5,060 7,751 40,232 66,547 26,315 2,691 34.7%
October 6,241 46,473
November 6,262 52,735
December 6,182 58,917

Grand Total: 58,917 66,547 349,187

RIDERSHIP

Regional Ridership/Revenue Analysis

3,952 3,824
4,156

4,371

4,935

3,517

4,947

5,470
5,060

6,241 6,262 6,182
6,623

5,974
6,381 6,471

7,714 7,551

9,153
8,929

7,751

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

RI
DE

RS
HI

P

MONTH

Canmore/Banff Regional Ridership By Month

2013 2014



Month 2013 2014 2013 Running Total 2014 Running Total Running Total Difference 2013 to 2014 Monthly Comparison 2013 to 2014 Monthly % Difference
January 21,815$     31,912$     $21,815 $31,912 $10,097 10,097 31.6%
February 21,595$     28,892$     $43,410 $60,803 $17,394 7,297 25.3%
March 23,641$     31,998$     $67,050 $92,801 $25,751 8,357 26.1%
April 24,214$     30,284$     $91,264 $123,085 $31,821 6,070 20.0%
May 25,365$     34,046$     $116,630 $157,131 $40,502 8,681 25.5%
June 18,249$     41,945$     $134,879 $199,076 $64,197 23,695 56.5%
July 27,037$     45,117$     $161,916 $244,193 $82,277 18,080 40.1%
August 26,465$     44,247$     $188,382 $288,440 $100,058 17,782 40.2%
September 29,087$     41,221$     $217,469 $329,661 $112,192 12,134 29.4%
October 32,194$     $249,663
November 28,776$     $278,439
December 37,822$     $316,260

Grand Total: 316,260$  329,661$  

REVENUE

$21,815 $21,595 
$23,641 $24,214 

$25,365 

$18,249 

$27,037 $26,465 
$29,087 

$32,194 

$28,776 

$37,822 

$31,912 

$28,892 

$31,998 
$30,284 

$34,046 

$41,945 

$45,117 $44,247 

$41,221 

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

 $30,000

 $35,000

 $40,000

 $45,000

RE
VE

N
U

E

MONTH

Canmore/Banff Regional Revenue By Month

2013 2014



Month Fares Passes Other Total Budget Column1
January $23,616 $8,296 $31,912 $21,683.33
February $20,707 $8,185 $28,892 $21,683.33
March $21,635 $10,363 $31,998 $21,683.34
April $24,809 $5,475 $30,284 $22,550.00
May $29,214 $4,832 $34,046 $22,550.00
June $30,145 $11,800 $41,945 $22,550.00
July $37,817 $7,300 $45,117 $33,516.66
August $37,402 $6,845 $44,247 $33,516.66
September $31,186 $10,035 $41,221 $33,516.68
October $0 $23,916.66
November $0 $23,916.66
December $0 $23,916.68
Totals: $256,530 $73,131 $0 $329,661 $305,000

Month Fares (what has been deposited) Passes Other Total Budget
January $17,470 $4,345 $21,815 $13,333.33
February $17,693 $3,902 $21,595 $13,333.33
March $18,981 $4,660 $23,641 $13,333.33
April $19,343 $4,872 $24,214 $13,333.33
May $20,513 $4,852 $25,365 $13,333.33
June $13,682 $4,568 $18,249 $13,333.33 June month-end is 27th due to the we
July $23,855 $3,182 $27,037 $13,333.33
August $21,927 $4,538 $26,465 $13,333.33 Aug month-end is 29th due to the wee  
September $23,387 $5,700 $29,087 $13,333.33 contains August 30 & 31 revenue. 
October $26,245 $5,949 $32,194 $13,333.33
November $21,645 $7,131 $28,776 $13,333.33 Month end is Nov 28th due to the wee  
December $25,049 $12,773 $37,822 $13,333.33 Month end is Dec 30 dut to the holida  
Totals: $249,790 $66,471 $0 $316,260 $160,000

CANMORE/BANFF REGIONAL TRANSIT REVENUE BREAKDOWN
2013 Actual

2014 Actual
CANMORE/BANFF REGIONAL TRANSIT REVENUE BREAKDOWN



January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
Cash Fare

Adult 2,809 2,701 2,843 3,108 3,307 2,298 3,222 3,762 3,295 4,044 3,743 3,748 38,880
Child 52 48 76 51 100 96 113 109 64 60 37 81 887
Senior 80 66 91 51 111 74 165 124 221 207 172 194 1,556

Cash Fare Total: 2,941 2,815 3,010 3,210 3,518 2,468 3,500 3,995 3,580 4,311 3,952 4,023 41,323
31 Day Pass

Adult 732 734 788 850 1,018 776 1,075 1,105 1,134 1,489 1,848 1,691 13,240
Child 14 0 0 0 0 0 19 2 24 40 12 10 121
Senior 0 10 15 17 13 11 46 24 2 0 40 46 224

31 Day pass Total: 746 744 803 867 1,031 787 1,140 1,131 1,160 1,529 1,900 1,747 13,585
10 Ride Pass

Adult 220 236 292 248 349 220 273 254 254 341 349 355 3,391
Child 11 5 8 7 0 1 2 3 9 13 11 9 79
Senior 8 8 6 11 22 12 16 28 30 28 39 39 247

10 Ride Pass Total: 239 249 306 266 371 233 291 285 293 382 399 403 3,717
3 Days Pass

Adult 19 0 2 0 0 0 1 23 2 4 0 0 51
Child 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
Senior 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 6

3 Days Pass Total: 19 0 2 0 2 6 1 23 2 8 0 0 63
1 Day Pass

Adult 7 16 35 28 11 22 14 36 24 11 9 7 220
Child 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Senior 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 2 2 8

1 Day Pass Total: 7 16 35 28 13 23 15 36 25 11 11 9 229
Total Ridership 3,952 3,824 4,156 4,371 4,935 3,517 4,947 5,470 5,060 6,241 6,262 6,182 58,917

Bycicle 4 0 3 18 184 158 32 162 144 38 5 6 754
Regional Transfer from Banff Local Service 5 1 4 0 1 0 1 7 4 6 4 7 40

Regional Ridership By Fare Type

2013
Fare Type

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

February March April May June July August September October November December

Regional Ridership by Fare Type 2013

Cash Fare Total: 31 Day pass Total: 10 Ride Pass Total: 3 Days Pass Total: 1 Day Pass Total:



January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
Cash Fare

Adult 3,752 3,274 3,666 3,829 4,499 4,456 5,641 5,542 4,549 39,208
Child 100 50 53 63 86 123 170 174 108 927
Senior 135 127 160 112 171 217 246 252 328 1,748

Cash Fare Total: 3,987 3,451 3,879 4,004 4,756 4,796 6,057 5,968 4,985 0 0 0 41,883
31 Day Pass

Adult 2,103 2,005 1,995 1,938 2,381 2,140 2,462 2,097 1,964 19,085
Child 20 13 11 23 24 17 1 0 38 147
Senior 70 43 92 62 41 70 227 106 711

31 Day pass Total: 2,123 2,088 2,049 2,053 2,467 2,198 2,533 2,324 2,108 0 0 0 19,943
10 Ride Pass

Adult 345 377 361 365 392 414 369 448 498 3,569
Child 29 9 45 5 14 23 28 12 20 185
Senior 36 19 23 17 28 27 45 41 71 307

10 Ride Pass Total: 410 405 429 387 434 464 442 501 589 0 0 0 4,061
3 Days Pass

Adult 4 2 0 0 0 12 7 10 0 35
Child 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60

3 Days Pass Total: 64 2 0 0 0 12 7 10 0 0 0 0 95
1 Day Pass

Adult 19 24 10 18 35 65 88 81 51 391
Child 0 0 4 0 0 0 3 5 0 12
Senior 0 0 0 0 2 4 16 16 6 44

1 Day Pass Total: 19 24 14 18 37 69 107 102 57 0 0 0 447
Bicycle 19 14 17 100 304 577 986 896 688 3601
Regional Transfer from Banff Local Service 20 4 10 9 20 12 7 24 12 118
Total Farebox Ridership 6,623 5,974 6,381 6,471 7,714 7,551 9,153 8,929 7,751 0 0 0 66,429
+3% Industry Correction 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Ridership 6,623 5,974 6,381 6,471 7,714 7,551 9,153 8,929 7,751

Regional Ridership By Fare Type

2014
Fare Type

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

January February March April May June July August September

Regional Ridership by Fare Type 2014

Cash Fare Total: 31 Day pass Total: 10 Ride Pass Total: 3 Days Pass Total: 1 Day Pass Total:



BVRTSC 
Quarterly Performance Indicators 
 

 

 

 

 



BANFF - Routes 1 and 2 and 4
Banff Population 8,244               

Revenue Operating Hours 12,565             

Revenue Hours Per Capita 1.52                 

CANMORE - Route 3
Canmore Population 18,299
Banff Population 8,244               
Total 26,543             

Revenue Operating Hours 5,453               

Revenue Hours Per Capita 0.2                   

Revenue Hours Per Capita



Ridership All Routes 2013 535,978          58917 594,895  

Total Revenue Hours Route 1 Total
17hrs 15 mins per day 17.26          6,283               

Route 2
17hrs 15 mins per day 17.26          6,283               

Route 3
Jan to Aug 26th
12hrs 40 mins per day (M-W) 12.67 1229 97
13hrs 40 mins per day (TH-F) 13.67 916 67
7hrs 50 mins (Sunday/Statutory Holiday) 7.83 313 40
9hrs 50 mins (Saturday) 9.83 334 34

2,792               
Aug 27th - Dec 31
15hrs 50 mins per day (M-W) 15.83          807                  51
16hrs 50 mins per day (TH-F) 16.83          589                  35
10hrs 50 mins (Sunday/Statutory Holiday) 10.83          249                  23
12hrs 50 mins (Saturday) 12.83          231                  18

1,876               
Route 4
9hrs 50 mins (Fri-Sun (3 months and 3 weeks)) 9.83            1,130               

Total Operating Hours 2013 18,364            

Ridership Per Revenue Operating Hour 32.39

Ridership Per Revenue Hour



Banff Local Service
Direct Gross Operating Expense 1,165,898.00$    
Revenue 793,734.00$       
Operating Revenue Per Direct Operating Expense 0.68$                    For every dollar spent in operating, were bringing in 68 cents

Regional Local Service
Direct Gross Operating Expense 453,568.00$       
Revenue 323,566.00$       
Operating Revenue Per Direct Operating Expense 0.71$                    For every dollar spent in operating, we're bringing in 71 cents

2014 Projected Year End
Banff Local Service
Direct Gross Operating Expense 1,166,750.00$    
Revenue 817,270.00$       
Operating Revenue Per Direct Operating Expense 0.70$                    For every dollar spent in operating, we're bringing in 70 cents

Regional Local Service
Direct Gross Operating Expense 484,150.00$       
Revenue 391,000.00$       
Operating Revenue Per Direct Operating Expense 0.81$                    For every dollar spent in operating, we're bringing in 81 cents

2015 Budgeted
Banff Local Service
Direct Gross Operating Expense 1,099,318.00$    
Revenue 853,525.00$       
Operating Revenue Per Direct Operating Expense 0.78$                    For every dollar spent in operating, were bringing in 78 cents

Regional Local Service
Direct Gross Operating Expense 447,378.00$       
Revenue 368,600.00$       

2013 Operating Revenue Per Direct Operating Expense



Operating Revenue Per Direct Operating Expense 0.82$                    For every dollar spent in operating, we're bringing in 82 cents



2014 Driver Costs Maintenance Fuel Parts Insurance
Revenue Operating Hours 12,565     952,000.00$  685,000.00$          70,000.00$     133,000.00$  55,000.00$  9,000.00$  
Gross Operating Expense Per Vehicle Hour 75.76$     

Regional Operating Expense Per Vehicle Hour

Revenue Operating Hours 5,453       416,000.00$  277,000.00$          30,000.00$     80,000.00$    25,000.00$  4,000.00$  
Gross Operating Expense Per Vehicle Hour 76.29$     

 2014 Banff Operating Expense Per Vehicle Hour



2014 Total Net Operating Cost Banff Service 355,169.00$         
(2015) Budgeted Total Net Operating Cost Banff Service 245,793.00$         

Banff Population 8,244                      
Canmore Population 18,299
Total Population 26,543

2014 Banff Cost Per Capita 43.08
2015 Budgeted Banffs Net Cost Per Capita 29.81

2014 Total Net Operating Cost Regional Service 140,150.00$         
(2015) Budgeted Total Net Operating Cost Regional Service 78,778.00$            

Canmore + Banff
2014 Regional Cost Per Capita 5.28$                      
2015 Budgeted Regional Net Cost Per Capita 2.97$                      

Net Cost Per Capita Banff Service

Net Cost Per Capita Regional  Service



Route 3
Jan to Aug 26th Trip per day KM per trip km per day total
12hrs 40 mins per day (M-W) 12.67 1229 97 13 51 663              64,311          
13hrs 40 mins per day (TH-F) 13.67 916 67 14 51 714              47,838          
7hrs 50 mins (Sunday/Statutory Holiday) 7.83 313 40 8 51 408              16,320          
9hrs 50 mins (Saturday) 9.83 334 34 10 51 510              17,340          

2,792       
Aug 27th - Dec 31
15hrs 50 mins per day (M-W) 15.83       807          51 16 51 816              41,616          
16hrs 50 mins per day (TH-F) 16.83       589          35 17 51 867              30,345          
10hrs 50 mins (Sunday/Statutory Holiday) 10.83       249          23 11 51 561              12,903          
12hrs 50 mins (Saturday) 12.83       231          18 13 51 663              11,934          

Route 1 338 26 12 312              105,456        
Adjusted schedule 27 23 12 276              7,452             

Route 2 365 26 8.75 227.5 83,038          

Route 4 62 10 16 160 9,920             

Total Kms Driven 448,473        

Total Fuel Consumed 2013 190,463        

Total Fuel Consumed Per KM 2.35               

2013 Fuel Consumed Per Km



Banff Boardings 2013 535,978        
Banff Revenue Hours 12,565          
Banff Boardings Per Revenue Hour 42.66            

Regional Boardings 2013 58,917          
Regional Revenue Hours 5,453            
Regional Boardings Per Revenue Hour 10.81            

2013 Boardings Per Revenue Hour



Banff Cash Fares Pass Sales Total Percent Pass Sales
320,346.48$  41,245.12$  361,591.60$  9%

91 9
Ratio of Cash Fares to Pass Sales 10 1 (10:1)

Regional Cash Fares Pass Sales Total Percent Pass Sales
249,789.96$  66,470.50$  316,260.46$  5%

95 5
Ratio of Cash Fares to Pass Sales 20 1 (20:1)

2013 Ratio of Cash to Pass Fare



BVRTSC 
GreenTRIP Application 
 

 

 

 

 



Report to the Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission 

Report 2014-13     Provincial GreenTRIP Funding Application (Request for Decision) 

November 12, 2014 

 
SUMMARY/ ISSUE 
 
The Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP) is a one-time capital funding program that supports 
public transit in Alberta.  Examples of GreenTRIP funds that Roam has received in the past include grant 
dollars to purchase rolling stock used in the successful regional service between Canmore and Banff. 
 
The Calgary Regional Partnership had made an agreement with the previous GM that they would assist 
the BVRTSC in compiling and submitting the GreenTRIP application on behalf of BVRTSC.  Our application 
would be submitted as a package which includes applications from Calgary Transit and Airdrie Transit 
under the umbrellas of the Calgary Regional Partnership. 
 
The entire application package is included as an attachment to this report. 
 
PREVIOUS COMMISSION DIRECTION/POLICY 

 
Administration Recommendation: 
 
That the Commission 
 

• Review and approve the submission of the attached report in it’s entirety to the Province of 
Alberta by the Calgary Regional Partnership on behalf of BVRTSC. 

OR 
• Request administration to make specific edits or updates to the application. 

 
 
INVESTIGATION 
 
General  
 
The BVRTSC administration is appreciative of the Calgary Regional Partnership’s assistance with the 
GreenTRIP application process.  We hope to hear back on a decision regarding funding early in 2015. 
 
 
BUSINESS PLAN/ BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 
 
The asks for GreenTRIP funding are prioritized and have been broken down into Canmore Local Service 
funding requests and Lake Louise Local Service funding requests. 
 
RISKS 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
Attachment 1: GreenTRIP_Application_Combined.pdf 

Author: Steve Nelson, Acting General Manager/Manager of Operations 
 Page 1 



Report to the Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission 

Report 2014-13     Provincial GreenTRIP Funding Application (Request for Decision) 

November 12, 2014 

 
 
  

Author: Steve Nelson, Acting General Manager/Manager of Operations 
 Page 2 



 

403-851-2509 Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8                          www.calgaryregion.ca 

 
 
November 2, 2014 
 
 
The Honourable Wayne Drysdale 
Minister of Transportation 
324 Legislative Building 10800-97Avenue 
Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2B6 
 
 
Attention: Mr. Ken Dmytryshyn , Alberta Transportation, 2nd Floor, Twin Atria Building, 4999 – 98 
Avenue. Edmonton, AB T6B 2X3 
 
RE: Calgary Regional Partnership Application-GreenTRIP 2 
 
Dear Minster Drysdale:  
 
The Calgary Regional Partnership is pleased to submit its GreenTRIP application for the second 
phase in the attached document.  This request will allow the CRP to continue our collective efforts 
to enhance transit service and mobility in the Region.  
 
Developing the CRP GreenTRIP proposal has been a highly collaborative effort structured to 
accommodate the varying levels of municipal readiness for transit across the region. Priority 
projects for the region have been determined through consideration of the following: 
 
 Supporting the Building Alberta Plan; 

 Assisting to support the provincial Land Use framework;    

 Ensuring the project’s alignment and priority integration with the Calgary Metropolitan Plan, 
and local municipal transportation, transit strategic and service plans, and land use and 
financial plans; 

 Ensuring the readiness and willingness of local communities to champion projects and to 
significantly contribute to operating, maintenance, and capital costs to ensure continued 
project success; 

 The ability and potential of projects to increase local, inter-city regional transit ridership and 
mode share; 

 Significantly advancing the province’s Climate Change Strategy by getting cars off the road 
and reducing greenhouse gas emissions; 

 Enhancing the overall accessibility to school, work, recreational, entertainment and social 
activities; 

 Connecting to other high-priority regional transit projects and contributing to the long-term 
success of future regional transit initiatives; and 

 Continuing to foster and grow a transit culture among residents of the region. 

 
Thanks to the significant funding contributions from the GreenTRIP 1 application in 2011, the 
following transit initiatives were implemented in the Calgary Region: 
 
 City of Airdrie – $2.8 million to date on 3 articulated vehicles, maintenance facilities and 

equipment  

 City of Calgary – $473.0 million 



 

403-851-2509 Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8                          www.calgaryregion.ca 

 Predesign of SE LRT(10 Avenue S. to Douglasdale) and P3 preparation -$8.0 
million 

 LRT vehicles-$133.3 million 

 West LRT-$331.7 million 

 The City of Calgary has received $140.0 million to date as projects have 
progressed 

 BVRTSC – two vehicles for start-up of Banff-Canmore regional service – $0.9 million-$0.45 
million service vehicles 

 

The transit projects which are submitted for GreenTRIP 2 for provincial approval by the CRP are 
shown in the Table below. It should be noted  at this point, some of this documentation is still in 
the process of being put together, and will be assembled before the final submission for the 
GreenTRIP 2 is sent to the Ministry of Transportation before the end of November, 2014. 

 

 

Municipality or Agency 
Priority and 

Estimated Timing 
Capital Cost 
($millions) 

Green TRIP 
Contribution 
($millions) 

Source of 
Remaining Funds 
Required-MSI or 
other Provincial 
Grants or other 

Local or Regional 
Sources

City of Calgary 
  

   
17Th Avenue Southeast 
Transitway-design and 
construction 

High 2015-2020- 98.0 65.3  

LRT Traction Power-Four Car 
Train Upgrades 

High 2015-2017 36.0 24.0  

Northtown Crosstown BRT-
design and construction 

High 2015- 50.0 33.3  

Southtown Crosstown- BRT-
design and construction 

High 2015-2018 20.0 13.3  

Southwest Transitway –design 
and construction 

High 2015-2020 40.0 26.6  

West  LRT Lands1 2015-2016 Cost still being 
determined 

Dependent upon 
cost 

 

CALGARY TOTAL  244.0 162.5  
1: The City of Calgary is in  the 
process of negotiating the cost 
of this land associated with the 
West LRT project. 

  

   

City of Airdrie 
  

Previous Expenditures 2012-2014 2.4 1.6  
Transit  Maintenance Facility 
and Land 

High 2015-2017 11.9 8.0  

ICE Fleet expansion High 2015-2019 4.4 2.9  
Local Fleet 
Expansion/Replacement 

High 2017-2018 1.5 1.0  



 

403-851-2509 Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8                          www.calgaryregion.ca 

Municipality or Agency 
Priority and 

Estimated Timing 
Capital Cost 
($millions) 

Green TRIP 
Contribution 
($millions) 

Source of 
Remaining Funds 
Required-MSI or 
other Provincial 
Grants or other 

Local or Regional 
Sources

South Terminal-Phase 2 and 
North Terminal and Land, 
Engineering, Design and 
Constriction  

Medium 2015-2019 6.4 4.2  

Transit Zone Improvements-
shelters, bus pads) 

Medium 2015-2017 1.0 0.67  

Technology (cameras, 
electronic fare payment) 

Medium 2015-2017 0.4 0.24  

AIRDRIE TOTAL  28.0 18.5  
   
Bow Valley Regional Transit 
Services Commission, Town of 
Canmore and Town of Banff 

  

   
Canmore Local Service Buses-
2 

High -2015-2016 0.65 0.44  

2 Electronic Fareboxes High-2015 0.045 0.035  
Bus stop improvements-
shelters and pads 

High-2015, 2016 
and 2017 

1.2 0.80  

Purchase 2 NextBus/cubic real 
time hardware equipment, as 
part of existing equipment 

High 2015-2016 0.3 0.020  

Expansion of  Existing Banff 
Maintenance Facility-Design 
and Construction 

High 2015-2016 7.0 4.7  

Create Customer Focused 
Canmore Downtown Hub 
Facility-Design and 
Construction 

High 2015-2018 3.5 to 5.0 2.35 to 3.35  

Canmore Bus Storage Facility-
modify existing waste 
management building for 
storage of 3-4 buses for local 
service 

High 2015-2016 0.6 0.4  

Design and Build Banff 
Intercept Lot for 
cars/motorhomes to reduce  
congestion in town 

Medium 2015-2016 5.0 3.3  

Purchase 9 Buses for Lake 
Louise/Lake Moraine Service 

Medium 2015-2017 2.7 1.8  

Park and Ride Facility for 
Banff-Canmore Service-Design 
and Construct 

Medium
2016-2017 

0.5 0.34  

Purchase 13 Electronic 
Validating /Trapeze Fareboxes 

Low-2017 0.35 0.23  

Purchase 2 biodiesel Cummins 
replacement engines for 
lifecycle replacement of the 
2012 40 ft. diesel buses 

Low-2017 0.060 0.040  

Purchase 4 Hybrid Bus 
Cummins diesel engines-
lifecycle replacement 

Low-2017 0.0140 0.080  



 

403-851-2509 Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8                          www.calgaryregion.ca 

Municipality or Agency 
Priority and 

Estimated Timing 
Capital Cost 
($millions) 

Green TRIP 
Contribution 
($millions) 

Source of 
Remaining Funds 
Required-MSI or 
other Provincial 
Grants or other 

Local or Regional 
Sources

Purchase NextBus/CUBIC real 
time schedule hardware 
equipment to be part of 13 bus 
fleet configuration  

Low-2017 0.20 0.13  

4 Nova 40 foot hybrid Bus 
battery pack replacement 

Low-2018 0.080 0.054  

2 Replacement Cutaway 30 foot 
buses 

Low-2019-2020 0.65 0.44  

BVRTSC TOTAL  22.9 to 24.1 14.9 to 15.93  

 
 

  

CRP REGIONAL TOTAL 
 295.9 to 296.4 plus

West LRT land 
cost 

196.8 to 197.3 
plus West LRT 

land cost 

 

 
 
These transit capital requests for the GreenTRIP Program will be presented to our CRP Board  
for their approval on November 25, 2014.   
 
 
 
 
Colleen Shepherd,  
Executive Director 
Calgary Regional Partnership  



ALBERTA MINISTRY OF TRANSPORTATION

CALGARY REGIONAL PARTNERSHIP SUBMISSION – 
Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-No. 2 



CONTENTS 
Planning and Transit Context �������������������������������������������������������������������������������� 2

Introduction, Purpose/Objectives and Project Eligibility ���������������������������������������� 5

2010/11 Green TRIP Request ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������� 7

Requirements of 2014 CRP GreenTRIP Application-Part 2 �������������������������������������� 8

Capital Projects requested for CRP 2014 GreenTRIP application��������������������������� 9

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Savings �������������������������������������������������������������������� 23

Conclusions �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� 28



 

 
Date:  

November 2, 2014 
 

Alberta Ministry of Transportation 

DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP 
Funding-No. 2 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx  

Table of Contents 
 
 

Page 

1.  Planning and Transit Context for GreenTRIP Proposal from the Calgary 
Regional Partnership ....................................................................................................... 2 

1.1  The Regional Partnership ................................................................................................................... 2 
1.2  Calgary Metropolitan Plan .................................................................................................................. 2 
1.3  CRP Activities in Transit Planning Activities since GreenTRIP 1 and Future Regional Vision 

for Transit Service ............................................................................................................................... 3 

2.  GreenTRIP Introduction, Purpose/Objectives and Project Eligibility .......................... 5 

3.  CRP’s 2010/11 Green TRIP Request ............................................................................... 7 

4.  Requirements of 2014 CRP GreenTRIP Application-Part 2 .......................................... 8 

5.  Capital Projects Requested for CRP 2014 GreenTRIP Application-Part 2 .................. 9 

5.1  Introduction ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
5.2  City of Airdrie GreenTRIP Request ................................................................................................... 10 
5.3  Bow Valley Regional Transit Service Commission GreenTRIP Request 2015-2020 ....................... 13 
5.4  City of Calgary GreenTRIP Request ................................................................................................. 15 

5.4.1  17 Avenue SE Transitway17 Avenue SE, from 26 Street SE to Hubalta Road SE ............ 16 
5.4.2  Southwest Transitway .......................................................................................................... 17 
5.4.3  South Crosstown BRT- Primarily on Heritage Drive S, Glenmore Trail SE, and 18 

Street SE .............................................................................................................................. 18 
5.4.4  North Crosstown BRT .......................................................................................................... 19 
5.4.5  Light Rail Transit (LRT) Traction Power: Four-Car Train Upgrades- various locations 

within City of Calgary municipal boundary ........................................................................... 20 
5.4.6  West LRT Land-Confidential ................................................................................................ 21 

6.  Greenhouse Gas Emissions Savings from Requested Projects ............................... 23 

6.1.1  Local Service ....................................................................................................................... 23 
6.1.2  ICE Regional Service ........................................................................................................... 25 

6.2  Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission Introduction of New Town of Canmore 
Local Transit Services ....................................................................................................................... 26 

7.  Conclusions ................................................................................................................... 28 

 
 

List of Tables 

Table 5-1 –Airdrie Transit Capital Projects Completed between Jan, 2012- Dec, 2014 ............................................ 10 

Table 5-2 –City of Airdrie’s GreenTRIP Transit Projects Request-2015-2020 ........................................................... 10 

Table 5-3 Growth in BCRTSC Regional Canmore-Banff Service Ridership .............................................................. 13 

Table 5-4-Growth in BVRTSC Town of Banff Transit Service Ridership .................................................................... 13 

Table 5-5 Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission GreenTRIP Transit Projects Request 2015-
2020 ......................................................................................................................................................... 14 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx  

Table 5-6 City of Calgary GreenTRIP Projects 2015-2020 ........................................................................................ 15 

Table 6-1 Forecasted Ridership and Bus Services .................................................................................................... 23 

Table 6-2 GHG Emissions achieved by Modal Shift Increase – Local Service (t CO2 eq.) ....................................... 24 

Table 6-3 GHG Emissions produced by New Transit Services – Local Service (t CO2 eq.) ..................................... 24 

Table 6-4 Overall GHG Emissions Impact – Local Service (t CO2 eq.) ..................................................................... 24 

Table 6-5  GHG Emissions avoided by Modal Shift – Regional ICE Service (t CO2 eq.) .......................................... 25 

Table 6-6  GHG Emissions produced by New Transit Service – Regional ICE Service (t CO2 eq.) .......................... 25 

Table 6-7  Overall GHG Emissions Impact – Regional ICE service (t CO2 eq.) ......................................................... 25 

Table 6-8 –GHS Savings from Local Canmore Transit Service ................................................................................. 26 

Table 6-9  GHG Emissions avoided by Modal Shift – Lake Louise Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) ................................. 26 

Table 6-10 GHG Emissions avoided by Modal Shift –Moraine Lake Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) .............................. 27 

Table 6-11 GHG Emissions from New Buses –Moraine Lake Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) ........................................ 27 

Table 6-12 Overall GHG Emissions Impact – Lake Louise Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) ............................................ 27 

Table 6-13 Overall GHG Emissions Impact – Moraine Lake Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) .......................................... 27 

 
 

Appendices 

Appendix A. Further details on submission from City of Airdrie 
Appendix B. Further details on submission for City of Calgary 
Appendix C. Further details on submission from Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 1 

 

Message from the Chair 
 

Throughout the Province of Alberta, communities have been encouraged both regionally and by the province to 
look beyond their own designated borders and to explore new ways of thinking, working together and delivering 
quality services to Albertans. 
 
The members of the Calgary Regional Partnership (CRP) have been working together with this in mind over the 
past 15 years. The Government of Alberta has been a key partner in helping set direction, providing resources and 
supporting our projects by partnering with our member communities to advance strategic priorities. 
 
Like the Government of Alberta, our 12 member municipalities are keenly focused on making this region a 
better place for our residents and entrepreneurs. We have voluntarily come together to help solve common 
challenges on regional issues such as transit, infrastructure, water and servicing, land use planning, recycling and 
economic development. 
 
In 2010/11, the Government of Alberta was a leader in developing with the input from the CRP and other 
municipalities and stakeholders in the province the first GreenTRIP Program to increase transit ridership, mode 
share, enhance economic development personal mobility and to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, backed with 
significant funding. With this funding the following transit capital investments were undertaken in the CRP to able 
these objectives to be met: 
 
 City of Airdrie – $2.8 million to date on 3 articulated vehicles, maintenance facilities and equipment  

 City of Calgary – $473.0 million 

 Predesign of SE LRT (10 Avenue S. to Douglasdale )and P3 preparation -$8.0 million 

 LRT vehicles-$133.3 million 

 West LRT-$331.7 million 

 The City of Calgary has received $140.0 million to date as projects have progressed 

 BCRTSC – two vehicles for start-up of Banff-Canmore regional service – $0.9 million-$0.45 million for each 
vehicle for this service 

 
The Government deserves credit for its vision in this regard and for ensuring that municipalities had the 
funding to support these important projects. 
 
If Alberta is going to lead the country in sustainable economic growth, it is clear that effective local and regional 
transit systems must be in place. If we are going to reduce our carbon footprint and greenhouse gas emissions and 
improve accessibility for all residents, it is clear that effective methods of moving people around the province must 
be in place. If we are going to make the best use of taxpayers’ investments in government services, then we need 
to work together to minimize duplication and deliver exceptional results. The members of the CRP want to achieve 
these objectives, and we appreciate the opportunity to present our 2nd  GreenTRIP proposal to you so that we can 
work with the Government of Alberta to build out a strong, effective, efficient and innovative transit system that 
meets the needs of our citizens and delivers on the provincial transit strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
Bill Robertson, Chair,  

Calgary Regional Partnership 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 2 

1. Planning and Transit Context for GreenTRIP Proposal from 
the Calgary Regional Partnership  

1.1 The Regional Partnership  

The Calgary Regional Partnership (CRP) solves regional issues through inter-municipal collaboration. Our member 
municipalities take a proactive approach to regional growth and planning issues while recognizing the need for 
implementation at the local level. Our motto - Thinking regionally... acting locally - guides everything we do. Since 
its founding, members of the CRP have helped taxpayers and governments in the region realize many benefits. 
These include: 
 
 The ability to deliver water and sewer infrastructure and capital cost savings over the life of the Calgary 

Metropolitan Plan (CMP) through a better coordinated regional approach, a more compact urban footprint and a 
commitment to water conservation 

 A reduction in the region’s future development footprint, conserving 80,000 hectares of valuable land 

 Reducing the pressure on increasing residential taxes to support constantly growing local needs 

 Increased cooperation between neighbours, reducing the need to duplicate services for our residents 

 Increased cooperation on regional economic development opportunities that helps streamline the 

 process for businesses and employers looking to locate or re-locate within the region 

 Effective public transit system planning and marketing leading to increased regional employment and 
enhanced mobility, investment and economic development opportunities 

 
Our members take a proactive approach to issues that go well beyond their borders to create a healthy 
environment, enriched communities, sustainable infrastructure and prosperous economy. We do so by finding 
areas of common interest, respecting local authority, and understanding the connection between our ecosystems, 
infrastructure, economy and communities. 
 
We work together to solve common challenges, and we partner to advance plans and projects that will have lasting, 
long-term and meaningful benefits. 
 

1.2 Calgary Metropolitan Plan 

The Calgary Regional Partnership recognizes that the Government of Alberta is a vital part of our future success. 
Our Calgary Metropolitan Plan (CMP) is a result of collaboration with our member municipalities and stakeholders 
to develop a common view of our region.  The Calgary Metropolitan Plan has been carefully developed and is well 
positioned to implement what the requirement of the Alberta Land Stewardship Act and the Provincial Land Use 
framework-South Saskatchewan Regional Plan. 
 
CMP principles build a solid foundation for what our region needs to be successful and sustainable for the short 
and long-term future of the region.  Regionally, the CRP is working together to build complete communities that 
respect the environment and harmonizes the integration between the land, water that is so essential to growth and 
sustainability, the people, economy and how the region is governed. 
 
The CMP is built upon the following 5 key principles: 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 3 

1. Protecting the natural environment and watershed. Water, natural landscapes, ecologies and water sources 
need to be respected and stewarded to ensure that growth can take place with minimum disruption to those key 
resources. 
2. Fostering the region’s economic vitality.  Growth can bring tremendous opportunities for economic growth and as 
a partnership, we will work together to enhance those economic opportunities for the private sector.  Regional 
transit will play a key role in attracting and retaining our labour force and promote overall well-being for our 
business communities. Regional transit will provide mobility options throughout the region. 
3. Accommodating growth in more compact settlement patterns.  To reduce growths footprint to retain the beauty 
and protect our natural environment, the CRP emphasizes the uniqueness of each member municipality and will 
promote healthy, transit supportive communities to attract employment and healthier lifestyle of working, living and 
playing within your community.  
4. Integrating efficient regional infrastructure systems. As a region, we are working towards a regional infrastructure 
system that incorporates complete transportation and mobility options to move people and goods throughout the 
region, and includes water and wastewater servicing approaches in support of member communities. 
5. Supporting through a regional governance approach, the CRP will enable the use of a collaborative approach for 
the implementation and maintenance of the Calgary Metropolitan Plan and Calgary Regional Partnership activities, 
and for reaching decisions. 
	

1.3 CRP Activities in Transit Planning Activities since GreenTRIP 1 and Future Regional 
Vision for Transit Service 

The Calgary Regional Partnership has been actively working with its current twelve municipal partners and regional 
stakeholders (e.g. Van Horne Transportation Institute, Chambers of Commerce and others) to encourage and 
support the development and implementation of actions which will lead to improved transit service and increases in 
mode share and transit ridership in areas where transit service has already been established (i.e. City of Airdrie, 
City of Calgary and Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission). As well, this work has entailed the support 
of the analysis and public and stakeholder consultation in regard to starting new transit services in other 
municipalities and developed areas in the CRP. Through the CRP Regional Transportation and Complete Mobility 
Program area, work plans have been developed and are in place to ensure the program supports the 
implementation of the CMP through the implementation of regional transit and other complete mobility options. 
Regional transit implementation has started in new areas through several key actions. These actions include: 
 
 Conducted transit service feasibility studies in Cochrane, Chestermere, Okotoks, Black Diamond/Turner Valley 

and Nanton on-going which could lead to a trial regional service pilot for Nanton, Okotoks, Black Diamond and 
Turner Valley connecting into Calgary. 

 Developed a regional transit brand called “On-it” which was created through authentic research and focus 
group testing based on a lifestyle of connectivity meant to enhance the quality of life within the region by 
providing mobility options.  The brand can be applied to local transit systems,  bike paths, park and ride lots, 
buses, walking trails and paths or anything regional that will promote mobility options and attract or boost 
ridership. 

 Provided planning assistance to existing transit systems such as BVRTSC and the City of Airdrie to assist in 
enhancing transit performance measurement and making adjustments to local and regional transit services in 
order to improve transit ridership; 

 Developed individual marketing strategies to improve transit ridership such as the marketing strategy and 
program developed for the introduction of the new Banff to Canmore regional transit service in the BVRTSC; 

 Conducting market research studies to assist in enhancing existing transit services(e.g. Airdrie) or the start of 
new transit services(i.e. local transit service in the Town of Canmore) 

 Investigated changes in transit governance and funding which could lead to enhanced efficiency and use of 
resources for the planning, scheduling, marketing and purchase of capital infrastructure for transit services, and 
the quicker advancement of the introduction of new regional transit services to the City of Calgary and between 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 4 

communities in the CRP by starting to develop a framework for the CRP to own and operate regional transit 
assets. 

 Prepared toolkits for its municipal partners to foster transit-oriented development (TOD) in municipalities to 
support development which will encourage increased transit ridership and mode share;  

 Approved the Calgary Metropolitan Plan with supportive land use and other policies for transit services in the 
CRP; 

 Attended national forums such as the Canadian Urban Transit Association (CUTA) conference to raise the 
profile of transit initiatives being undertaken in the CRP, and to increase the knowledge of means and actions 
that can be undertaken to enhance transit services in the Region; 

 Prepared briefs to Alberta Transportation to ensure the current GreenTRIP program and next round-Green 
TRIP 2 met the needs of municipalities, and that proposed regulations for buses operating on provincial 
highways were receptive to the needs of municipalities operating regional transit services on provincial 
highways;  

 Worked with key regional stakeholder(e.g. Chambers of Commerce, Van Horn Transportation Institute and 
others) to obtain input and advice on the future development of transit services and related policies for the 
CRP; 

 Prepared briefs to Alberta Transportation on transit issues it was considering such as a High Speed Rail 
linkage between Calgary and Edmonton; 

 Held regional workshops, forums, stakeholders meetings and coordinated visits to regions such as Metro 
Vancouver with invited transit experts to increase the discussion and knowledge among municipal partners on 
the best transit service practices, and the costs and benefits of transit for economic development, enhanced 
mobility and other benefits;  and 

 Investigated how economic development and investments in improved commuter rail and bus transit services 
can better linked to assist both improved employment mobility in the region and increased tourist activity. 

 
In the next two years, the CRP is about to embark on a major project which will entail working closely with its 
community members, provincial  officials and regional stakeholders to investigate and discuss alternative 
governance and funding models that can enable the CRP and it members to continue to increase regional and local 
transit service through enabling the CRP  to own transit capital assets, and  carry out transit related responsibilities 
in terms of funding, marketing, planning, monitoring and scheduling new transit services.  
 
   



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 5 

 

2. GreenTRIP Introduction, Purpose/Objectives and Project 
Eligibility 

In June, 2010, the Province of Alberta announced a $2 billion multi-year program to provide sustainable public 
transit alternatives called the Green Transit Incentives Program or the GreenTRIP Fund, with 40% of this funding 
available to the Calgary Regional Partnership-$800 million; $800 million to the Capital Region, and 20% to the rest 
of the province. Municipalities within both the Calgary and Capital Regions are required to submit one regional 
application which identifies regional collaboration while meeting local, regional and provincial strategic outcomes of 
specific transit-related capital projects.  
 
Of the $800 million available to the Calgary Region,  the Calgary Regional Partnership (CRP) agreed to allocate 80 
percent, or $640 million, of the capital funding to the City of Calgary, recognizing the impact that growth within the 
region would have on Calgary’s transit system capacity and the resulting need to enhance the system to 
accommodate regional riders. The rest of the municipalities in the region would be eligible for remaining $160 
million in funding.   
 
The province on April 15, 2014 announced the second round of transit capital project submissions for the Green 
TRIP program with submissions due on November 30, 2014. The GreenTRIP Program is available to the 
owner/operator of public transit services, which may include municipalities, regional entities/authorities, non-profit 
organizations, and the private sector. The intent of the GreenTRIP program is to provide municipalities with capital 
funding to help purchase transit vehicles and technologies, build transit terminals and maintenance facilities, and 
expand bus, light rail transit and/or commuter rail services to achieve the following objectives:  
 
 Increase transit ridership and mode share; 

 Reduce traffic congestion, and greenhouse gas emissions; and 

 Provide greater accessibility for Albertans for local, regional and inter-municipal travel. 

 
The funds are distributed as the monies are used for approved projects, and can be used to provide up to 66% of 
the capital costs of projects with the remaining 1/3 from other sources such as other provincial government grant 
programs, property taxes etc. Funds are distributed on a competitive basis, and are assessed on how they advance 
Government of Alberta legislative and policy priorities as well as local or regional transportation priorities. Each 
submission must include a solid business case that demonstrates appropriate cost-sharing, benefits to be achieved 
by the project, and a clear commitment to continue to fund the operations of the project once it is in place, and 
monitor its success and benefits. Applicants must contribute a minimum of one-third of the capital cost of their 
projects, and are responsible for funding the related operating/maintenance costs.  
 
Projects must demonstrate that a project can help advance provincial government priorities, some of which include: 
 
 Supporting the “Building Alberta Plan” which includes capital funding for “Investing in Families and 

Communities”; 

 Investing in priority projects that contribute to a safe and world-class transportation system that supports 
regional and provincial economic development, and provides Alberta with some of the most advanced 
infrastructure in North America; 

 Supporting the province’s return to prosperity and creating a strong foundation for continued economic 
strength; 

 Implementing the provincial Land-Use Framework, which supports regional planning for key infrastructure, such 
as transit; and 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 6 

 Advancing the province’s Climate Change Strategy by getting cars off roads to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

 
Some examples of eligible capital projects include:  
 
 Construction of light rail transit (LRT) and inter-city commuter rail systems; 

 Planning for, and acquisition, of transit or commuter rail corridors; 

 Park and Ride facilities for regular transit operations; 

 Construction of bus terminals/exchanges and transit maintenance/storage facilities; 

 Purchase of public transit vehicles for replacement or new service purposes (e.g., LRT vehicles, fuel-efficient 
buses, hybrid buses, higher capacity buses, accessible buses); and 

 Installation of transit intelligent transportation system (ITS) components. 

 
Note: All projects must be fully accessible to transit users with special needs and meet all Alberta Transportation 
AT) regulations. Conditional funding approval for projects will be considered for “second call” funding if these 
projects have been tendered, ordered or construction has started after January 1, 2012. However, if a transit capital 
project had been previously funded or cost-shared through another provincial or federal grant program, those 
contributions would not be eligible for retroactive cost-shared Green TRIP funding.  
 
As a requirement of receiving Green TRIP funding for projects, recipients must annually provide reports to AT 
which outline the outcomes and benefits of the projects in simple terms such as reducing congestion, increasing 
transit ridership and mode share, and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Benefit measures will typically include a 
combination of different measurement types including quantitative and qualitative (i.e., objective vs. subjective 
interpretations). 
  



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 7 

 

3. CRP’s 2010/11 Green TRIP Request 

Through the first phase of the GreenTRIP Fund, the province provided over $1 billion in capital funding for 15 new 
transit projects and funded the following transit projects in the Calgary Regional Partnership from its 2010/11 
application:  
 
Projects Underway or Completed 
 City of Airdrie – $2.8 million to date on 3 articulated vehicles, maintenance facilities and equipment  

 City of Calgary – $473.0 million 

 Southeast Transitway/LRT predesign and transit oriented development study -$8.0 million 

 LRT vehicles-$133.3 million 

 West LRT-$331.7 million 

 The City of Calgary has received $140.0 million to date as projects have progressed 

 BCRTSC – two vehicles for start-up of Banff-Canmore regional service – $0.9 million-$0.45 million for each 
vehicle for this service 

Projects Not Started 

 Town of Cochrane – $6.14 million 

 4 Double Decker buses-$2.4 million 

 $3.2 million for bus exchange 

 4 smaller shuttles for local services-$0.425 million 

 $115,000 for design work for maintenance/storage facility 

None of this funding for the Town of Cochrane has been spent to date as Cochrane is awaiting the outcomes of 
the development of the new business model that would allow the CRP to own and operate regional transit 
services. 

 
Under the study about to be initiated examining future governance and funding models for the CRP, these transit 
capital projects in Cochrane and Okotoks and other communities in the CRP will be positively re-examined, as to 
their priority  and potential submission for GreenTRIP funding. 
 
Note: For projects which were previously approved by municipalities and the CRP but which did not proceed, the 
following points are noted by GreenTRIP administrators from Alberta Transportation: 
 
 There are no current funding agreements in place for any of these projects; 
 The GreenTRIP funding commitment to these projects until the proponent indicates it will not proceed with the 

projects or Alberta Transportation withdraws the approval, potentially with the support/agreement of the CRP; 
and 

 If the projects are not to proceed, then the funding commitment would be available to the CRP as part of their 
$800M allotment for other projects. 

 
 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 8 

4. Requirements of 2014 CRP GreenTRIP Application-Part 2 

The CRP recognizes how important the GreenTRIP provincial funding program is in achieving the goals and 
objectives of the CMP. The program enables the region to develop plans for regional transit implantation that 
otherwise may not happen for years to come. For each of the transit capital projects proposed for GreenTRIP 
funding in each of the next five years, the following details will be required from each municipality (i.e. City of 
Calgary, City of Airdrie and BVRTSC):  
 
 A brief description of the project and its applicable stages-planning, design, construction and when in operation; 

 The estimated total project capital cost; 

 The municipal and CRP ranking of the total projects put forward in each year; 

 The estimated greenhouse gas emissions savings from submitted transit projects-if applicable and able to be 
calculated (i.e., for this calculation estimated ridership and mode share change and details); 

 Supporting documentation of the total and annual benefits (i.e., ridership, mode share, TOD etc.-quantitative 
and qualitative) of the project from municipal plans or studies completed, referenced and provided; 

 The estimated annual operating/maintenance costs of the project, if applicable, and how they will be funded 
from municipal sources each year (e.g., fares, property, use of other provincial grants etc.); 

 Any risks with the project and means that will be used to mitigate; 

 How the remaining capital costs of the project will be financed, outside the Green TRIP funding; 

 The projected cash flow for the project, for each year; 

 How the projects progress and results are to be monitored by the municipality and reported to AT; 

 The expected year of the project introduction/undertaking; 

 The project’s linkage to other transit or related projects; 

 Letter of support and endorsement from local council; and 

 The project’s linkage to policies in the CRP Regional Transit Plan, Calgary Metropolitan Plan, and municipal 
transit or transportation plans. 

 

At this point, some of this documentation is still in the process of being put together, and will be 
assembled before the final submission for the Green TRIP 2 is sent to the Ministry of 
Transportation before the end of November, 2014. 
  



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 9 

5. Capital Projects Requested for CRP 2014 GreenTRIP 
Application-Part 2 

5.1 Introduction 

This section outlines the requests for GreenTRIP 2 funds from Alberta Transportation to both partially fund transit 
capital expenditures which have been made by municipalities but not yet not been funded from GreenTRIP or other 
provincial and/or municipal sources (i.e., City of Airdrie), and for new transit capital expenditures going forward 
between 2014 and 2020 (i.e., City of Calgary, City of Airdrie, and the Bow Valley Regional Transit Services)..  
 
This section also outlines a request from the CRP for GreenTRIP to fund the capital costs of a 2-year pilot regional 
transit service linking Nanton, Turner Valley/Black Diamond, Okotoks and the City of Calgary, and the CRP vision 
for other future regional transit services should the CRP be given the authority to purchase and own transit capital 
assets, at the completion of its proposed future study (i.e. 2014-2016) of a new regional transit governance and 
funding arrangements. 
 
These requests for funding from the GreenTRIP program are strongly supported by detailed transit plans prepared 
by the municipalities and CRP. This supporting documentation includes: the City of Calgary’s Route Ahead; 
Airdrie’s Transit Investment Strategy and AirdrieONE Plan; transit service growth plans and investment strategies 
and policy reviews completed by the BVRTSC in 2011/2012 when it was created, and a recent transit market 
research study completed in regard to local Canmore transit service; recent work at the CRP (i.e. Growth Service 
Scenario-No 2-2012/3), and a market  research study in regard to a Nanton, Black Diamond/Turner Valley-Okotoks, 
Calgary regional transit service.    
 
The GreenTRIP funding requests outlined in this document in this section will provide the required funding and 
incentives for regional cooperation among Calgary Regional Partnership (CRP) municipalities for investments in 
public transit services in the City of Calgary, and the other twelve communities in the Calgary Regional Partnership. 
These requests align with the objectives of the Building Alberta Plan and other provincial policies such as providing 
enhanced mobility for young and older workers that will in turn support labour for regional and provincial economic 
growth. 
 
Specifically the Provincial GreenTRIP funding will help to improve travel times and punctuality on the rapid transit 
networks (i.e. Bus Rapid Transit, LRT and Transitway) in the City of Calgary. This funding will also able the  City of 
Airdrie to enhance it local and regional transit services, and for the BVRTSC to enhance their existing local and 
regional transit services and provide new transit services such as a Lake Louise service and local transit service for 
the Town of Canmore. Public transit investments funded by the Province will enable mobility for all Albertans, 
reduce traffic congestion, and provide travel options for employees and customers of businesses throughout 
Calgary, and the region. 
 
In this application capital funds have been directed to projects that support the CRP Regional Transit Plan, the 
Calgary Metropolitan Plan and the many Calgary Regional Partnership transit related initiatives. These public 
transit investments reduce greenhouse gas emissions, offer alternatives to single-occupant vehicle travel, increase 
transit ridership and mode share, reduce congestion, and reduce future demands on existing road infrastructure. 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 10 

5.2 City of Airdrie GreenTRIP Request 

Airdrie’s 2014 application for GreenTRIP funding has aligned transit capital projects to meet the sustainable 
transportation outcomes as outlined in the AirdrieONE Plan and outcomes as identified in the City’s 2013 Transit 
Investment Strategy (Appendix A).  
 
Airdrie’s second GreenTRIP the City’s submission is made up of two forms of projects, the first being capital 
projects that started after January 2012 through the end of December 2014. Below is a list of Council approved 
capital investments that would fall within this category:  
 
Table 5-1 –Airdrie Transit Capital Projects Completed between Jan, 2012- Dec, 2014 

Completed Capital Investment Projects:  
January 2012-December 2014 Project 

Expenditure 
($Millions) 

Date of Use 

Bus Technology  $0.011  Jan 2014  
ICE Fleet Expansion  $0.0.07  Feb 2014  
ICE Fleet Expansion  $0.03  Mar 2014  
Real Time Passenger Technology  $0.014  Sept 2014  
South Transit Terminal  $2.4  Dec 2014  

Total $2.4  GreenTRIP  $1.6 

 
 
In addition to the existing approved capital investments in Airdrie Transit services, Airdrie has proposing additional 
transit capital investments for the 2015-20120 period to leverage the availability of GreenTRIP and other provincial 
grant funds to plan for a sustainable transit future. These other transit capital investments are intended to meet 
immediate operational needs, customer demand for services, and ability to improve various performance metrics. 
The investment projects as listed below refer to eligible projects that fit within the GreenTRIP Fund expiration in 
2020 and are included in Airdrie’ s 2015-2024 Transit Capital Plan.  
 
Table 5-2 –City of Airdrie’s GreenTRIP Transit Projects Request-2015-2020 

Proposed Capital Investment 
Projects: January 2015-December 

2020 Projects 

Cost 
($ millions) 

 
Date of Use

Project 
Priority 

GreenTRIP 
Amount 

($millions) 

Airdrie 
Contribution-

Other 
Provincial 

Grants-MSI 
or other city 

sources
Previous Expenditure-see Table 5.1 
above 

2.4 2012-2014 High 1.6 

Transit Facility and Land  11.9 2015-2017 High 8.0 
ICE Fleet Expansion  4.4  2017-2019 High 2.9  
Local Fleet Expansion/Replacement  1.5  2017-2017 High 1.0  
South Transit Terminal Phase 2  and 
North Transit Terminal  and Land 
 
Land-$2,380,000 and Engineering, 
Design and Construction-$6,336,905 

 North and 
South Terminal  
(6.4) 

2015 to 
2019 

Medium 4.2 

Transit Zone Improvements (Shelters, 
bus pads)  

1.0  2015-2017 Medium 0.67  

Technology (Cameras, Electronic 
Fare Payment)  

0.4  2016-2017 Medium 0.24  

Total 28.0 18.5  
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 11 

Total Airdrie including previous expenditures in 2012-2014 $28.0 GreenTRIP $18.5 
 
The highest priority transit capital projects for the City of Airdrie are as follows: 
 
High Priority Projects  

Transit Vehicle Maintenance/Storage Facility (High Priority)  

The construction of a transit fleet maintenance/storage facility is the single largest transit capital project planned for 
the next 25 years. The facility will be planned to meet both current and future needs. Staff will leverage the Green 
TRIP Fund to procure suitable lands to accommodate anticipated growth in fleet and facilities. This transit facility 
will replace the existing storage facility at 15 East Lake Hill and combine this with leased outdoor storage from the 
City’s contracted service provider. This will provide the City with the existing facility at 15 East Lake Hill for other 
civic purposes.  
 
The transit facility budget includes the acquisition of land, engineering and design, and the construction of 
administration, maintenance and storage facilities. The project is anticipated to begin in 2015, pending Council 
budget approval, with the acquisition of land and engineering/design. Construction will commence in 2016 and is 
anticipated to be completed in 2017.  
 
From an operations perspective, the opening of a stand-alone transit facility will have an impact on the transit 
operating budget. The operating cost per square foot of space at the current facility is approximately $9.50. Using 
this estimated cost and a facility roughly 40,000 square feet; the annual operating costs would be $400,000. This is 
approximately $300,000 higher than current annual facility operating costs. This increase in operating costs would 
be included in the City’s Transit operating budget. It is projected that a portion of these costs will be covered by 
additional revenues from user fees with a large portion of the funds covered by the tax base.  
 
ICE Fleet Expansion (High Priority)  

The ICE regional service connecting the City of Airdrie and the City of Calgary had proven to be highly successful 
in terms of ridership and achieving Council’s cost-recovery resolution over the past two years. The success of the 
service is projected to continue in 2014 with ridership anticipated to reach over 120,000 customer trips. While 
ridership is on an increase, the ability to add additional customer capacity has reached its limitations. Storage 
capacity for ICE fleet at 15 East Lake Hill has reached maximum capacity and thus no further investment in ICE 
fleet can be accommodated at this facility.  
 
Staff is recommending investment in additional ICE fleet starting in the 2016 Capital Budget with anticipated 
delivery in the second quarter of 2017. This delivery date would align with the completion of the Transit Facility to 
accommodate additional fleet. Further investments in ICE fleet would be made in 2017 and 2019. Investment in 
fleet has a resulting request for additional service hours. The ICE service operates on a 100% cost-recovery of 
operating costs and thus investments in service hours will be recovered through user fees and have no net cost to 
ratepayers.  
 
Local Fleet Expansion/Replacement (High Priority)  

Airdrie Transit’s local fleet is set for replacement in third quarter 2017. This replacement is based upon industry 
best practices and the manufacturer’s recommended asset lifecycle. GreenTRIP Funds will provide the means to 
replace the local fleet which supports a comprehensive public transit network to provide transportation alternatives 
to local and regional residents. The replacement of the local fleet is strictly a capital investment with no requirement 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 12 

for additional service hours. Airdrie Transit anticipates maintenance costs to substantially decrease as new local 
buses are introduced to service replacing older units.  
 
Council may also consider opportunities to expand the local network using GreenTRIP funds by investing in 
expansion of the local community shuttle fleet. Staff would work within the budgetary parameters as set by Council 
to procure appropriate local fleet to meet Council’s deliverables. This may include smaller buses to provide a 
smaller footprint in the community. The local service expansion fleet will result in a coinciding request for additional 
service hours for operations form the City’s operating budget.  
 
 
 
Medium Priority Projects 

South Transit Terminal Phase 2 and North Transit Terminal (Medium Priority)  

Phase 1 of the South Transit Terminal is anticipated to be completed by the end of 2014. The terminal will improve 
the accessibility and convenience of using public transit services in Airdrie. Construction of Phase 2 is planned to 
align with the Roadworks program connecting 40th Ave SW with Main Street. There are synergies between the two 
projects which will reduce total capital expenditures between both projects. Work completed in Phase 2 will 
complete the South Transit Terminal in its entirety which will include additional parking, a dedicated kiss and ride 
drop-off, and other supporting infrastructure.  
 
The completion of Phase 2 of the South Transit Terminal will result in additional operating costs required for snow 
and ice maintenance, electricity and security. At completion this facility is anticipated to have annual operating 
costs ranging between $20,000-$25,000.  
 
North Transit Terminal   

Airdrie’s residential growth creates the need to consider the acquisition of land in the northern area of the City to 
establish a future transit terminal. The North Transit Terminal would be based on design elements and functionality 
of the South Transit Terminal opening in late 2014.  
 
The North Transit Terminal would be a connecting point for local and regional services. The terminal would provide 
facilities such as park and ride for regional services, real time passenger information signage, heated waiting areas, 
and transit operator facilities. The North Transit Terminal could be phased in a similar approach to the South 
Transit Terminal.  
 
Staff anticipates a phased model would result in operating costs ranging from $15,000 to $25,000 per year.  
 
Transit Zone Improvements (Medium Priority)  

In 2010, Airdrie Transit made improvements to a number of Transit Zone stops to improve safety and accessibility 
in using public transit services. These improvements include the provision for future bus shelters. Staff are 
requesting the continuation of the Transit Zone Improvement program from 2015-2017 which will include the 
rehabilitation of 15-20 existing Transit Zones and the installation of 25-30 bus shelters throughout the city. Bus 
shelters would be introduced starting in 2015 in Transit Zones designed and prepared for such. Staff intend to 
source transit shelters complete with advertising panels. Advertising panels will provide a revenue stream 
opportunity while covering any operating costs (electricity, snow and ice maintenance) associated with these 
structures.  
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 13 

Technology (Medium Priority)  

In late 2014, Airdrie Transit will introduce real time passenger information available on all conventional transit 
services (ICE and local transit). Advancements in these technologies, combined with economies of scale and new 
suppliers, make advanced technologies more feasible to small transit properties such as Airdrie Transit.  
 
Moving forward, Airdrie Transit is planning the introduction of new technologies in 2016 and 2017. In 2016, Airdrie 
Transit anticipates to participate in Calgary Transit’s electronic fare payment system, the Connect Card. The 
Connect Card will provide a single fare product to use across regional transit systems to improve regional mobility 
and accessibility of public transit services.  
 
Additional investments in technology are anticipated in 2017 with the introduction of surveillance cameras onboard 
all Airdrie Transit vehicles and the implementation of an enterprise system to collect and analyze various operating, 
ridership, maintenance and other data sources to provide business intelligence for decision-making. The 
implementation of these technologies will incur on-going operating costs. These operating costs will be identified 
through on-going discussions with providers and/or a competitive tender competition for the services requested.  
 

5.3 Bow Valley Regional Transit Service Commission GreenTRIP Request 2015-2020 

The BVRTSC has had tremendous success as a Commission since it was created in 2012 .Ridership in the local 
Banff service and in the Banff-Canmore regional service has continued to grow as shown in the table below. Based 
upon the BVRTSC’s 5 Year Growth and Investment and Service Plan prepared when it was created in 2009 and 
recent studies and work related to several of the projects in these plans (i.e. Local Canmore transit service, Lake 
Louise-Lake Morraine transit services and transit ridership growth-Tables 5-3 and 5-4), the BVRTSC has developed 
in Table 5-5, its requests for continuing to invest in several  key transit capital projects to continue to increase 
transit service in this regional and improve mobility, ridership./mode share and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 
 
Table 5-3 Growth in BCRTSC Regional Canmore-Banff Service Ridership 

Banff –Canmore Regional Service Annual Ridership
% Change 

2013 58,917
To date in 2014 58,791
Projected for 2014 97,038 64.4% increase between 2013 and 

projected 2014 
 
 
Table 5-4-Growth in BVRTSC Town of Banff Transit Service Ridership 

Banff Local Service Annual Ridership
% Change 

2012 543,445
2013 535,978 1.37% decrease from 2012
To date in 2014 398,105
Projected for 2014 570,000 6.4 % increase from 2013 and 

projected 5.0% increase from 2012
 
The transit capital projects put forward for GreenTRIP funding for the 2015-2020 period and their relative priority 
are listed in the Table 5-5 below: Further application details are contained in Appendix C.  
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 14 

Table 5-5 Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission GreenTRIP Transit Projects Request 2015-
2020 

Project Priority and 
Year 

Total Cost
($million) 

GreenTRIP 
Amount 

($million) 

BVRTSC Share 
and Banff and 
Canmore local 
contributions,  

and other 
provincial 

grants-MSI or 
other local 

sources
 High-2016/2017  
Purchase  two 30 foot diesel buses for 
introducing local transit service in Town of 
Canmore in late 2015 or early 2016  

High-arrive in late 
2015 or early
2016

0.650 0.44   

Purchase two electronic validating Farelogistics/ 
Trapeze fareboxes to be part of the existing 
thirteen bus fleet configuration 

High-arrive in late 
2015 early 2016 

0.054 0.035   

Bus stop installations and improvements 
including shelters 2015-$200,000; 2016-
$500,000; and 2017- $500,000 

High-2015,2016 
and 2017 

1.20 0.80   

Purchase 2 NextBus/Cubic real time schedule 
hardware equipment to be part of the existing 
technology. 

High-arrive in late 
2015 early 2016 

0.03 0.02   

Modify existing bus maintenance/storage facility 
or design new one in Banff with ability to do 
repairs on buses and two wash bays, two hoists, 
mechanics and drivers offices lounge and 
administrative offices-store and maintain 40 foot 
buses and smaller 30 foot  buses. 

High
Design-2015 
Build -2016 

7.0 4.7   

Purchase land, design and build multi-bus 
regional/local service transfer station – transfer 
hub in core of the Town of Canmore – large 
covered passenger shelter with benches with AC 
power, where an attractive and safe facility is 
provided for customers to transfer between local 
service buses and /or to the Banff-Canmore or 
other new regional services. The project would 
include: expanding the eastbound (existing 
plaza); placing a canopy style shelter on the 
eastbound plaza; creating a new plaza on 
westbound side for local transit including shelters 
and amenities; improvement and expansion of 
visitor information centre to accommodate local 
and regional transit services including 
washrooms; and civic improvement to the lane 
from 7tg to 8th into a walkable street.           
 
 

High
 
Conceptual 
Design-2015 and 
Detailed Design-
2016/7 
Construct-2018 

3.5 to 5.00 2.35 to 3.35   

Design  and modify existing building  and clean-
up site in Canmore near current waste disposal 
site in industrial area for bus storage for 3  local 
service buses 

High
Design-2015 
Design -2015 
andConstruct-
2016

0.6 0.40    

Sub-Total for High Priority Projects 13.0 to 14.5 8.6 to 9.6  
  
Design and Build  Intercept Park and Ride Lot to 
intercept Large Tourist Buses and cars from 
which the local Banff Transit System which 
transport people to key town destinations  

Medium 500 
stalls at $10,000 
each 

5.0 3.3   

Purchase Nine 30 foot bio-diesel buses for Medium-2015- 2.7 1.8   



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 15 

introducing Parks Canada Lake Louise/Moraine 
Lake transit service that will operate all year 
round in 2016-2017 (includes 2 spares) 

purchase 
2016/2017-use 
for service

Park and ride facility for Banff-Canmore Regional 
Route 

Medium 2016 0.5 0.34    

Sub-total  for Medium Priority 8.2 5.4  
  
Purchase thirteen electronic validating 
Farelogistics/ Trapeze fareboxes to be part of the 
existing thirteen bus fleet configuration  

Low-2017 0.35 0.23   

Purchase NextBus/Cubic real time schedule 
hardware equipment to be part of the existing 
thirteen bus fleet configuration  

Low-2017 0.20 0.13   

Purchase Two Biodiesel Cummins replacement 
engines for lifecycle replacement of the 2012 40 
ft. diesel buses 

Low-2017 0.060 0.040   

Buy four Hybrid bus Cummins diesel engines –
lifecycle replacement 

Low-2018 0.014 0.080   

Purchase four Nova 40ft Hybrid bus battery pack 
replacement for 2012 40 foot hybrid bus fleet

Low-2018 0.08 0.054   

2  Cutaways buses-2012 Initial purchase 
replacement in 2019-2020 with 2 30’ buses 

Low-2019/2020 0.65 0.44   

Sub-Total for  Lower Priority Projects 1.35 0.9  
TOTAL COST 22.6 to 24.1 14.9   to 15.9   
 

5.4 City of Calgary GreenTRIP Request 

The proposed City of Calgary GreenTRIP funding requests for the 2015-2019 periods are listed in Table 5-6 below 
and described in this section.  Further application details are contained in Appendix C. 
 
Table 5-6 City of Calgary GreenTRIP Projects 2015-2020 

Project Priority  Total Cost 
($Millions) 

GreenTRIP 
Amount 

($ Millions) 

Other 
Contributions –
MSI Grants or 
Other Sources

Southwest Transitway High 
2015-2021 
Design and 
Construction

40.0 26.7 

17 Avenue SE Transitway High 
2015-2021 Design 
and Construction -

98.0 65.0 

South Crosstown BRT High 
2015-2017 
Design and 
Construction

20.0 13.4 

North Crosstown BRT High 
2015-2017 Design 
and Construction

50.0 33.3 

LRT Traction Power Upgrades 
(for four-car train operation) 

High 2015-2018 36.0 24.0 

West LRT Land-Confidential(1) Under Negotiation Cost still being 
determined

Dependent upon 
cost 

  244.0 162.4  

1: The City of Calgary is in the process of negotiating the cost of this land associated with the West LRT 
project. 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 16 

5.4.1 17 Avenue SE Transitway17 Avenue SE, from 26 Street SE to Hubalta Road SE 

The 17th Avenue SE Transitway is identified as one of the backbones of the primary transit network and is 
identified as a high priority in Calgary Transit’s strategic plan, RouteAhead.  The 17th Avenue SE corridor between 
26 Street SE and Hubalta Road SE plays many important roles.  It is the original main street of the Forest Lawn 
community, a secondary highway with regional connections, a culturally diverse hub (International Avenue), and is 
identified as part of Calgary's primary transit network and the primary cycling network.  It is also defined as an 
Urban Boulevard which is expected to experience significant land use redevelopment in the future.  New 
transportation infrastructure investments along 17th Avenue SE are crucial to support the wide range of functions 
along this corridor.  The benefits of this project include: improved streetscape and pedestrian amenities, 
opportunities for redevelopment, improved connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists, and improved transit times and 
reliability.  In addition this project aligns with major road reconstruction required this decade. The 17th Avenue SE 
Transitway is one of the backbones of the primary transit network and is identified as a high priority in Calgary 
Transit’s strategic plan, RouteAhead, as this corridor plays many important roles.  It is the original main street of the 
Forest Lawn community, a secondary highway with regional connections, a culturally diverse hub (International 
Avenue), and is I part of the primary cycling network.  It is also defined as an Urban Boulevard which is expected to 
experience significant land use redevelopment in the future.  New transportation infrastructure investments along 
17th Avenue SE corridor are crucial to support the wide range of its functions.  
  
The benefits of this project include: improved streetscape and pedestrian amenities, opportunities for 
redevelopment, improved connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists, and improved transit times and reliability.  In 
addition this project aligns with major road reconstruction required this decade. 
 
GreenTRIP funding will be used for the pre-design of this facility, including a study identifying transit-oriented 
development opportunities. Funding will also be used for environmental and geotechnical investigations. When 
those studies are completed, the project will advance to detailed design, land acquisition, and then construction 
 

Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commences: January/01/2015 

Completed: December/31/2021 

Project Costs : Attached additional detail with submission 
  

Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 
Eligible 
cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Design $10,000,000       $3,333,333  

Land $40,000,000       $13,333,333  

Construction $48,000,000       $16,333,334  

Total $98,000,000 $      $33,000,000  $65,000,000

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:    Municipal Sustainability Initiative (MSI) 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 17 

This project is important as it provides a direct link to Calgary Regional Partnership (CRP) municipalities to the East 
of Calgary, and developing communities within Calgary’s municipal boundary. 
 
The conceptual design for 17 Avenue SE Transitway enables comfortable and safe travel for all users, including 
pedestrians, cyclists, public transit, and private vehicles 
 
Calgary’s proposal will result in the following contributions to continued economic strength: provide greater capacity 
on the public transit network, provide faster, more reliable service, improve travel options for students at post-
secondary institutions, reduce congestion and future demand on roadway capacity, improving goods movements, 
and provide mobility choices for Calgarians who cannot, or chose not to drive. 
 
The rapid transit network will accommodate and direct future employment and population intensification to activity 
centres and corridors identified in Calgary’s Municipal Development Plan (MDP) and Calgary Transportation Plan 
(CTP). The redevelopment occurring now, and planned in the future along the LRT network is an indicator of the 
mobility and access provided to residents and businesses. This project supports regional transit services and transit 
hubs identified in the CRP’s Transit Plan and the Calgary Transportation Plan. 
 
The project will improve air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions by reducing the number of single-
occupant vehicle trips through increased ridership.  
 
GHG Reductions 
 
The project will improve air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions by reducing the number of single-
occupant vehicle trips through increased ridership. This project will reduce GHG emissions by an estimated 6,100 
tonnes per year. 
 

5.4.2 Southwest Transitway 

This Transitway is primarily on Crowchild Trail SW, Glenmore Trail SW, and 14 Street SW, connecting communities 
in southwest Calgary with Rockyview General Hospital, Mount Royal University, Heritage Park, Glenmore Landing, 
and downtown Southwest Transitway 
 
The Southwest Transitway will improve transit travel times between southwest communities, downtown and major 
destinations including Mount Royal University, Rockyview General Hospital, Heritage Park and Glenmore Landing 
with bus rapid transit (BRT) service.  This project will provide transit-only lanes and transit-only roadways to build 
on the success of the Crowchild Trail transit-only lanes.  The project includes extending the Crowchild transit-only 
lanes, construction of a transitway adjacent to  14 Street SW, and grade separating the crossings at 90 Avenue 
SW.  Benefits of this project include an improved customer experience from faster transit travel times and punctual 
schedules. This project will provide a rapid transit alternative for existing customers who currently use the crowded 
South LRT, and will attract new transit riders. Rapid transit access will support redevelopment at Glenmore Landing 
and lands surrounding Mount Royal University, including Currie. 
 
 
 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 18 

Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commences: January/01/2015 

Complete: December/31/2021 

Project Costs : Attached additional detail with submission 

Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 
Eligible 
cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Design 5,000,000       1,666,666       

Construction 35,000,000       11,666,666       

                              

Total $40,000,000 $      $13,333,332 $      $26,666,668

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:    Municipal Sustainability Initiative (MSI) 
 
 
GHG Reductions 
 
The project will improve air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions by reducing the number of single-
occupant vehicle trips through increased ridership. This project will reduce GHG emissions by an estimated 6,100 
tonnes per year. 
 

5.4.3 South Crosstown BRT- Primarily on Heritage Drive S, Glenmore Trail SE, and 18 Street SE 

The South Crosstown bus rapid transit (BRT) service extends the existing South Crosstown service between 
Westbrook and Heritage LRT stations.  This extension provides a connection between the south LRT line at 
Heritage Station and the Southeast Transitway at Quarry Park.  The service will operate in mixed traffic, with transit 
priority measures installed along Heritage Drive.  Use of bus only lanes on Glenmore Trail will also be included.  
Key benefits to this project include:  provides east-west rapid transit connection in south Calgary, reduced travel 
times for transit users from west Calgary travelling to the southeast, improved transit service reliability and 
passenger capacity in south Calgary and will assist in meeting the needs of increasing future development around 
Mount Royal University and Quarry Park. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 19 

Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commences: January/01/2015 

Completed: December/31/2017 

Project Costs : Attached additional detail with submission 

Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 
Eligible 
cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Functional 
plan/design 

$4,000,000       $1,333,333       

Construction $16,000,000       $5,333,333       

                         

Total $20,000,000 $      $6,666,666 $      $13,333,333 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:    Municipal Sustainability Initiative (MSI) 
 
GHG Reductions 
 
The project will improve air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions by reducing the number of single-
occupant vehicle trips through increased ridership. This project is estimated to reduce GHG emissions by 21,000 
tonnes per year. 
 

5.4.4 North Crosstown BRT 

This BRT corridor is primarily on 16 Avenue North, connecting Saddletowne LRT Station and residential 
communities in the northeast, with the Greenline, University of Calgary, SAIT, Foothills Medical Centre, Alberta 
Children’s Hospital, West Campus, and Brentwood LRT Station in the northwest 
 
The North Crosstown bus rapid transit (BRT) service provides a direct east-west crosstown transit connection 
between Saddletowne LRT Station (Blueline), and Brentwood LRT Station (Redline) with connections to the 
Greenline, University of Calgary, SAIT, Foothills Hospital, Alberta Children’s Hospital, and West Campus.  The 
route also provides rapid transit service along the 16 Avenue North urban corridor.  The service will operate mainly 
in regular traffic lanes with potential for bus-only or high-occupancy vehicle (HOV) lanes on 16th Avenue N and 52 
Street E, with transit priority at intersections along the full route.  Key benefits to this project include:  reduced travel 
time for transit users particularly those travelling from northeast Calgary to the University of Calgary, SAIT, Foothills 
Medical Centre, Alberta Children's Hospital, and West Campus, improved transit service reliability and passenger 
capacity in north Calgary and along the 16th Avenue N Urban Corridor. This project will address CTrain crowding 
by offering an east-west alternative for existing transit travel demand, bypassing the busy downtown corridor. 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 20 

Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commences: January/01/2015 

Completed: December/31/2017 

Project Costs : Attached additional detail with submission 

Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 
Eligible 
cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Design $7,500,000  2,500,000  

Construction $42,500,000  14,166,666  

     

Total $50,000,000  $16,666,666  $33,333,334 
 
 
GHG Reductions 
 
The project will improve air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions by reducing the number of single-
occupant vehicle trips through increased ridership. This project is estimated to reduce GHG emissions by 25,000 
tonnes per year. 

5.4.5 Light Rail Transit (LRT) Traction Power: Four-Car Train Upgrades- various locations within City of 
Calgary municipal boundary 

Calgary Transit is preparing the LRT network for four-car service with greater frequency. The supporting 
infrastructure must be upgraded and improved to meet the increased demands of the system, including the traction 
power system which must be capable of supplying the increased electrical load associated with the greater level of 
LRT service.  The traction power upgrade project currently underway will allow for limited operation of four-car 
trains on the Redline, Calgary’s busiest LRT route.  In order to allow for all trains to operate with four-cars with 
greater frequency on the full LRT network further electrical upgrades are necessary to the Redline and Blueline. 
 
Preliminary analysis completed as part of the original traction power upgrade program identified the works required 
to deliver four-car operations for the full LRT network.  The upgrades would include new electrical substations as 
well as upgrades to existing electrical substations.  
 
The analysis concluded that on the Redline 13 additional substations would be required and five existing 
substations would require upgrades. The original traction power upgrade program procured all 13 new substations 
for the Redline line, and seven of those will be operational by the end of 2014.  The upgrades to the five existing 
substations on the Redline have also been completed. 
 
On the Blueline a total of four additional substations are required and a further seven existing substations require 
upgrades.   No work has been completed on the Blueline, except for the common works along the 7th Avenue 
Transitway (where the Redline and Blueline share a common right-of-way).    



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 21 

 
Project deliverables would include the completion of further analysis utilizing advanced modelling techniques and 
efficiencies found in the gradual phasing out of Calgary’s oldest light rail vehicles (Siemens U2) to validate the 
remaining program and may result in the implementation of the remaining six substations on the Redline with four 
new substations and upgrades to seven substations on the Blueline.   
 
 

Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commenced: January/01/2015 

Complete: January/01/2018 

Project Costs : Attached additional detail with submission 

Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 
Eligible 
cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

2015 $12,000,000  $4,000,000  

2016 $12,000,000  $4,000,000  

2017 $12,000,000  $4,000,000  

Total $36,000,000  $12,000,000  $24,000,000 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:    Municipal Sustainability Initiative (MSI) 
The LRT system accommodates and direct future employment and population intensification to activity centres and 
corridors identified in Calgary’s Municipal Development Plan (MDP) and Calgary Transportation Plan (CTP). The 
redevelopment occurring now, and planned in the future along the LRT network is an indicator of the mobility and 
access provided to residents and businesses. This project supports regional transit services and transit hubs 
identified in the CRP’s Transit Plan and the Calgary Transportation Plan 
 
GHG Reductions  
 
The project will improve air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions by reducing the number of single-
occupant vehicle trips through increased ridership. This project is estimated to reduce GHG emissions by 20,000 
tonnes per year, by expanding capacity by 30% on Calgary’s wind-powered LRT system. 
 

5.4.6 West LRT Land-Confidential 

Calgary’s application for funding for West LRT land is based on the need to attract choice riders and accommodate 
demand from population and employment growth on the existing LRT network.  The West LRT project previously 
received GreenTRIP funding to assist with capital construction cost. 
 
West LRT addresses the need for public transportation through multi-modal integration: 
 
 Active modes (walking and cycling); 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 22 

 Feeder bus network aligned to serve West LRT stations; 

 Integrated BRT service to Mount Royal University; 

 Park and ride lots strategically located west of Sarcee Trail to provide 1,100 parking spaces; 

 Connections to other transportation terminals: Greyhound Terminal and a possible future commuter rail station 
at Sunalta;  

 Direct linkage with Northeast LRT and direct transfer opportunities to South and Northwest LRT service at 
downtown LRT station platforms; and  

 Connections to bus routes serving other areas of Calgary in the downtown. 

 
Demand for public transit service in the peak period is growing on the existing LRT network due to population and 
economic growth, transit-oriented developments, post-secondary institution growth, downtown employment growth, 
and growth in regional municipalities.  There is a need to increase the capacity of the existing system and this 
project is required to increase capacity while maintaining reliability and reducing unplanned interruptions of service.  
 
The West LRT allows Calgary Transit to meet current and future ridership demand in Southwest Calgary.  West 
LRT is centrally located within the service area.  This was a key factor in the selection of this route since it provides 
the most convenient and shortest access to the greatest number of residents, employees and students in the area.  
Bus routes were realigned with the opening of the LRT in 2012, to provide short and frequent trips to each of the 
new stations.  Transit passenger travel times are reduced and fewer buses are required to serve this corridor, as 
the historic bus routes were replaced by faster and more efficient LRT service. 
West LRT has already shown increased transit ridership in southwest Calgary, thereby reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions (by diverting travellers from private passenger vehicles) and reducing vehicle kilometres travelled on 
Alberta’s roads.   
 
Estimates of these benefits for this project are: 
 
 8,000,000 annual passengers carried 

 800,000 annual auto trips diverted from the road network 

 5,500 annual tonnes of CO2 reduced 

 
All of Calgary Transit’s light rail vehicles are powered entirely by wind-generated electricity, making every trip on 
the new vehicles emissions free.  The CTrain was the first public LRT system in North America to power its train 
fleet with wind-generated electricity.   
 
The West LRT land purchases enable transit-oriented development to be realized quicker than with past LRT 
extensions as a result of comprehensive planning that was completed in conjunction with the pre-design.  As well, 
The City of Calgary is constructing a new office building as part of the new Westbrook Station.   
 
The City of Calgary is in the process of negotiating the cost of this land associated with the West LRT 
project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 23 

 
 
 
 

6. Greenhouse Gas Emissions Savings from Requested 
Projects 

The City of Calgary GHG savings from its proposed GreenTRIP transit capital projects are include in the details of 
its program in Appendix B. 
 
The following data was provided regarding ridership and new services for two transit capital projects for the Town of 
Airdrie:  Local and Regional ICE. 
 

Table 6-1 Forecasted Ridership and Bus Services 

    Local Regional ICE 

2015 Ridership1 52 814 165 000 

New service - - 

2016 Ridership 56 511 173 250 

New service - Two additional 40' buses for full year service. 

2017 Ridership 68 337 207 913 

New service One additional bus for half year service. One additional 40' bus and two additional 60' buses for full year 
service. 

2018 Ridership 73 120 250 308 

New service - One additional 60' bus for full year service. 

2019 Ridership 96 507 288 824 

New service One additional bus for full year service. One additional 60' bus for full year service. 

2020 Ridership 101 333 329 265 

New service - - 

1 Forecasted in passengers per year 

 
The net impact on GHG emissions of each project is calculated based on the two following impacts: 
 
1. The new transit service increases ridership and therefore eliminates the emissions that would have been 

generated by the VKM travelled by personal vehicles 

2. The new transit service also produces emissions proportional to the VKM travelled by the buses 

 

6.1.1  Local Service 

For the Local Service, the increase in service starts in 2017, so the modal shift is calculated based on the new 
ridership, compared to the 2016 level. It is assumed that the all the new ridership starting in 2017 is modal shift 
from personal use vehicle. So for the new ridership, we are estimating the GHG emissions avoided, if the trip would 
have been made by personal use vehicle. Using a car occupancy rate of 1.21 persons per vehicle, each bus 

                                                      
1  Source: Mobility Monitor, http://www.calgary.ca/Transportation/TP/Documents/data/2012/mobility_monitor_march_2012.pdf?noredirect=1 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 24 

ridership represents 0.83 car trip. It was assumed that the average one-way distance that would be made by car is 
5 km. The number of vehicle-km is converted into liter of gasoline, using an average fuel consumption of 10 liter per 
100 km.2  Finally, the number of liter is converted to GHG emissions, using an average rate of 2.3 kg CO2 eq. per 
liter of gasoline. 
 
The results are shown in Table 6-2. Based on the assumptions, the new ridership would allow avoiding 23 tons 
CO2 eq. in 2017 and 86 tons in 2020. 
 
Table 6-2 GHG Emissions achieved by Modal Shift Increase – Local Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Bus Passengers/year  0 11 826 16 609 39 996 44 822 113 253

Car trips avoided/year 0 9 855 13 841 33 330 37 351 94 377

Vehicle-km avoided/year 0 98 546 138 409 333 303 373 514 943 772

Liter of Gasoline avoided/year 0 9 855 13 841 33 330 37 351 94 377

Tons of GHG avoided/year 0 23 32 77 86 217

 
The shuttle buses used for the local service consume in average 24.6 liter of diesel per 100 km and travel 218 km 
per day. It was assumed that the service is only offered during business day, so the daily distance was multiplied by 
250 to obtain the annual distance of 54,500 km/year.  
 
Table 6-3 GHG Emissions produced by New Transit Services – Local Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Number of new diesel shuttle buses 0 0.5 1 2 2   

Liter of diesel/year 0 6 704 13 407 26 814 26 814 73 739

Tons of GHG produced/year 0 18 36 72 72 199

 
Overall, the new local service will allow a larger reduction of GHG emissions resulting by modal shift than the 
increase produced by the new buses. However, this difference is low, only a few tons per year, as shown in Table 
6-4. 
 
Table 6-4 Overall GHG Emissions Impact – Local Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Tons of GHG generated by modal shift 0 23 32 77 86 217

Tons of GHG produced by new bus service 0 18 36 72 72 199

Tons of GHG produced/year 0 -5 4 -4 -14 -18

 

                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
2 Source : Natural Resources Canada, Comprehensive Energy Use Database Tables, 

http://oee.nrcan.gc.ca/corporate/statistics/neud/dpa/trends_tran_ab.cfm?attr=0 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 25 

6.1.2 ICE Regional Service 

The same methodology is used to estimate the GHG emissions avoided by modal shift for the Regional ICE 
service. In this case, the new service starts in 2016 and the new ridership is calculated based on the 2015 level. 
The average distance that would be made by personal use vehicle is 30 km (one-way), based on the distance 
between Airdrie and the Calgary Center. Based on the forecasted ridership, this service allows avoiding the 
production of 95 tons CO2 eq. in 2016 and nearly 1,900 tons in 2020, as shown in Table 6-5. 
 
Table 6-5  GHG Emissions avoided by Modal Shift – Regional ICE Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Bus Passengers/year 8 250 42 913 85 308 123 824 164 265 424 559

Car trips avoided/year 6 875 35 760 71 090 103 186 136 887 353 799

Vehicle-km avoided/year 412 500 2 145 625 4 265 406 6 191 177 8 213 235 21 227 943

Liter of Gasoline avoided/year 41 250 214 563 426 541 619 118 821 324 2 122 794

Tons of GHG avoided/year 95 493 981 1 424 1 889 4 882

 
This service has an important expansion, with seven new buses between 2016 and 2019; three 40’ buses and four 
60’ articulated buses. It was assumed that the 40’ buses would be put into place in the first years (2016-2017) and 
the articulated buses in the 2017-2019 period. The 40’ buses consume in average 36.3 liter of diesel per 100 km 
and the 60’ articulated buses 46.8 liter/100 km. All the new buses travel 172 km/day during 250 business day per 
year, which represents 43,000 km per year. 
 
GHG emissions resulting from the new bus services are indicated in Table 6-6. In 2016, the two 40’ buses produce 
84 tons eq.CO2 while in 2020; the total seven buses would emit 344 tons of GHG. 
 
Table 6-6  GHG Emissions produced by New Transit Service – Regional ICE Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Number of new 40’ diesel buses 2 3 3 3 3  

Number of new 60’ diesel buses 0 2 3 4 4

40’ Buses - Liter of diesel/year 31 218 46 827 46 827 46 827 46 827 218 526

60’ Buses Liter of diesel/year 0 40 248 60 372 80 496 80 496 261 612

Tons of GHG produced/year 84 235 289 344 344 1 296

 
Overall, the new regional service would have an important net benefit on GHG emissions. Based on the previous 
assumptions, this service would allow a reduction of more than 1,500 tons CO2 eq in 2020. The results are 
summarized in Table 6-7. 
 
Table 6-7  Overall GHG Emissions Impact – Regional ICE service (t CO2 eq.) 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Tons of GHG avoided by modal shift 95 493 981 1 424 1 889 4 882

Tons of GHG produced by new buses 84 235 289 344 344 1 296

Tons of GHG produced/year -11 -258 -692 -1 080 -1 545 - 3 586



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 26 

6.2 Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission Introduction of New Town of Canmore 
Local Transit Services 

Two new routes of transit would be offered in the Town of Canmore. Total forecasted ridership is shown in Table 6-
8. It is assumed that this service will serve commuter and other types of trip, and the average personal use vehicle 
occupancy was estimated at 1.2 persons per vehicle. The average distance that would have been driven by car is 
assumed to be 5 km one way.  
 
The shift in mode share to transit and the projected ridership on the two local service Canmore routes are expected 
to have a Greenhouse Gas Savings of approximately 1,220 tons of CO2 annually. 
 
Table 6-8 –GHS Savings from Local Canmore Transit Service 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 TOTALS
    

Bus Passengers/year 199,800 208,780 227,760 636,340
Car trips avoided/year 166,500 173,983 189,800 530,283
Vehicle-km avoided/year 1,665,000 1,739,833 1,898,000 5,302,833
Liter of Gasoline avoided/year 166,500 173,983 189,800 530,283
Tons of GHG avoided/year 383 400 437 1,220

 
6.3.1 Provision of New Transit Service to Moraine Lake and Lake Louise 
 
This project consists in purchasing Nine 30 foot diesel buses for introducing Parks Canada Lake Louise/Moraine 
Lake transit service. This service will operate all year round and will serve mainly touristic purposes.  
 
The service at Lake Louise will circulate from the parking lot near the ESSO station for a total distance (two-way) of 
8 km. Based on the forecasted demand for the transit service, the GHG emissions avoided by modal shift are 
calculated and shown in Table 6-9. For touristic trips, the car occupancy is generally higher than for commuter trips. 
A value of 2.2 persons per personal vehicle was assumed. It is supposed that the car-trip avoided by the use of 
transit would have a trip distance of 8 km (both ways). Using an average fuel consumption of 10 liter per 100 km for 
personal use vehicles and an emission rate of 2.3 kg CO2 eq. per liter of gasoline, the GHG emissions avoided was 
estimated. It ranges from 167 tons in year 1 to 243 tons in year 3. 
 
Table 6-9  GHG Emissions avoided by Modal Shift – Lake Louise Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Bus Passengers/year 200 000 230 000 290 000 720 000

Car trips avoided/year 90 909 104 545 131 818 327 273

Vehicle-km avoided/year 727 273 836 364 1 054 545 2 618 182

Liter of Gasoline avoided/year 72 727 83 636 105 455 261 818

Tons of GHG avoided/year 167 192 243 602

 
The same assumptions were used for the estimation of the GHG emissions avoided by modal shift resulting from 
the Moraine Lake Transit Service, except that in that case, the total distance of the car-trip avoided is 28 km, both 
ways. Although the ridership of the Moraine Lake service is about half of the one forecasted for the Lake Louise, 
the GHG emission reduction is much higher, because the longer trip distance.  Table 6-10 summarizes the results 
for the Moraine Lake transit service. 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 27 

Table 6-10 GHG Emissions avoided by Modal Shift –Moraine Lake Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Bus Passengers/year 100 000 120 000 145 000 365 000

Car trips avoided/year 45 455 54 545 65 909 165 909

Vehicle-km avoided/year 1 272 727 1 527 273 1 845 455 4 645 455

Liter of Gasoline avoided/year 127 273 152 727 184 545 464 545

Tons of GHG avoided/year 293 351 424 1 068

 
The GHG emissions resulting from operating those buses are shown in the table above for both services to Lake 
Louise and Moraine Lake. The service is assumed to be constant during the three year analysis. Based on an 
average fuel consumption of 25 liter per 100 km and the annual distance travelled, the GHG emissions were 
calculated. It is assumed that the buses have diesel engine and GHG emission rate is 2.7 kg CO2 eq. per liter. 
Table  GHG Emissions produced by New Transit Service – Lake Louise/Moraine Lake Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) 
 
Table 6-11 GHG Emissions from New Buses –Moraine Lake Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  Lake Louise (Route 1) Moraine Lake (Route 2) Total 

Total km/year 233 600 613 200 846 800

Liter of diesel/year 58 400 153 300 211 700

Tons of GHG produced/year 158 414 572

 
As indicated in Table 6-11, the Lake Louise transit service would generate an overall reduction in GHG emissions, 
from the first year of the implementation. According to the assumptions made, the service would allow a total net 
reduction of 129 tons CO2 eq. over a three year period.  
 
Table 6-12 Overall GHG Emissions Impact – Lake Louise Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Tons of GHG avoided by modal shift 167 192 243 602

Tons of GHG produced by new buses 158 158 158 473

Tons of GHG produced/year -10 -35 -85 -129

 
Regarding the Moraine Lake transit service, the buses would emit more GHG during the first two years than the 
amount estimated that would be avoided by modal shift. However, starting in year 3, the ridership is sufficient to 
produce a net benefit of -11 tons CO2 eq. 
 
Table 6-13 Overall GHG Emissions Impact – Moraine Lake Transit Service (t CO2 eq.) 

  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total 

Tons of GHG avoided by modal shift 293 351 424 1 068

Tons of GHG produced by new buses 414 414 414 1 242

Tons of GHG produced/year 121 63 -11 173

  



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 28 

7. Conclusions 

The CRP and our regional partners welcome the Province’s leadership on climate change and the opportunity 
provided by the Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP), and this second submission to the program. This 
document details transit capital investments within the boundaries of the communities in the Calgary Region 
Partnership that meet the goals and spirit of the GreenTRIP, and deliver on the following Provincial priorities: 
 
 Support the implementation of Alberta’s 20-year Strategic Capital Plan; 

 Contribute to a safe and world-class transportation system that supports regional and provincial economic 
Development and provides Alberta with the most advanced infrastructure in North America; 

 Complement Alberta’s return to prosperity and contribute to a strong foundation for continued economic 
strength; 

 Support regional planning for key infrastructure; and 

 Advance the Province’s climate change strategy by increasing public transit use, reducing congestion, and 
getting cars off roads, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

 
To move forward, we appreciate the need the Province’s continued financial support. In partnership, we can 
improve our environment today and build for the future – by helping shape regional growth. The proposed projects 
provide new regional mobility options and reduce the environmental impact of travel within the Calgary Region. 
Today we are asking for the building blocks for the continued enhancement of the regional transit system that is 
integrated with supporting land uses.  
 
In partnership with the Province, we can improve regional transit services that give Albertans better travel choices 
and support a healthy environment, a prosperous economy and more sustainable regional land use patterns. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 29 

Appendix A-Further details on City of Airdrie GreenTRIP Program submission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 30 

 
Appendix B-Further details on City of Calgary GreenTRIP Program submission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 31 

Appendix C-Further details on the Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission GreenTRIP Program 
submission 
 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 30 

 
Appendix A-Further details on City of Airdrie GreenTRIP Program submission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

                  

 

 

GreenTRIP 

Green Transit Incentives Program 

Project Submission Form 

The Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP) is a one-time capital 

funding program that supports public transit in Alberta.  This Alberta 

Transportation program provides Albertans with a wider range of 

sustainable public transit alternatives which helps increase transit 

ridership, reduce traffic congestion and thereby reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. 

Visit the Alberta Transportation website for more detailed information 

on eligibility criteria, business case and program guidelines: 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm 

 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 2     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Program Overview and General Guide 

Please review the Procedures and Guidelines and the Project/Cost Eligibility 
Criteria documents prior to submitting the proposal. 

 

Project Submission Deadline:  November 30, 2014 

    

Section A – Project Submission Overview/Applicant Information 

Name of municipality/organization City of Airdrie 

Legal status of applicant  (if 
applicable) 

Municipality 

Contact name and title Chris MacIsaac, Transit Coordinator 

Phone number 403.948.8800 ext 8449 

Email address chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca 

Mailing address 400 Main Street SE Airdrie AB T4B 0H1 

Fax number 403.948.6567 
 

Project Information: Attach Business Case and supporting documentation 

Name of project Transit Zone Improvements 

Project location/limits 

(if applicable) 
Existing Transit Zones in Airdrie, AB 

Date of Submission November 30, 2014 

Project description: Provide 
enough detail to understand 
project scope and magnitude 
(maximum of 250 words) 
Attach additional details as 
needed. 

This project is a multi-year program to improve the accessibility, 

convenience and safety of using Airdrie Transit services through large-

scale network improvements to transit zone infrastructure. 

(Additional project details attached in business case) 

 

Project Deliverables: Provide 
a brief summary of what the 
funding will be used for. 

Upwards of 30 transit zones improved with bus pads and transit shelters 
to improve accessibility, convenience and safety. 

 

(Additional project deliverables attached in business case) 

 

mailto:chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 3     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commencement 01/02/2015 

Completion 12/31/2018 

  

Project Costs: Attach additional detail with submission 
Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 

Eligible 

cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-
provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Transit 
Shelters 

$581,094                   

Bus Pads $387,396                   

     

Total $968,490 $      $      $      $645,660 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:          
 

Section B - Project Outcomes and Benefits 

Please describe how your proposed public transit infrastructure project will align with the following 

municipal and provincial priorities. 

Provincial Priority 
Describe how the provincial priority 

applies to this project. 
Describe how this project supports 

the provincial priority. 

Project will support “The 
Building Alberta Plan” which 
includes capital funding for 
“Investing in Families and 
Communities”. 

This provincial priority identifies the 
need to invest in infrastructure that 
supports families and communities. 
Infrastructure designed to improve 
accessibility and safety of using public 
transit services will support families 
particularly those with mobility 
restrictions.  

Investing in transit shelters and 
upgrading non-accessible bus stops with 
fully accessible infrastructure will 
remove barriers that currently exist for 
residents. This will encourage the use of 
public transit and improve conditions 
for existing transit customers.  

Project will contribute to a 
safe and world-class 
transportation system that 
supports regional and 
provincial economic 
development and provides 
Alberta with the most 
advanced infrastructure in 
North America. 

 

Supporting and investing in accessible, 
modern regional transit initiatives that 
integrate with a world-class transit 
system such as Calgary Transit, 
enhances the province’s social, 
economic, sustainability and 
environmental profile.  

The City of Airdrie’s investment in 
regional transit infrastructure aligns 
with the CMP’s regional framework for 
improved economic mobility in the 
Calgary Region providing future, 
sustainable economic development 
opportunities. This project will 
implement green technologies on 
transit shelters reducing energy 
consumption. Transit shelters will be 
100% solar powered making Airdrie the 
first municipal in Canada to strive 
towards a green-energy solution for 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 4     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 

Section C - Supporting Documentation and Attachments 

List the attachments that support this submission 
  

Appendix 1 – Transit Zone Improvements Business Case  

Appendix 2 – Transit Zone Improvements Financial Sustainability Plan  

transit shelters. 

Project complements 
Alberta’s return to 
prosperity and contributes 
to a strong foundation for 
continued economic 
strength. 

 

Investment in public transit is a long-
term vision with sound social, economic 
and environmental benefits. The 
Province’s commitment with the 
GreenTRIP Fund addresses the growth 
and sustainability challenges faced by 
municipalities today and into the future.  

 

For Alberta to establish a strong 
foundation for economic success future 
challenges must be identified and 
proactively analyzed and solutions 
implemented. Public transit supports 
economic mobility and thus economic 
and business development for Alberta’s 
future. 

This project will improve accessibility 
and safety of using public transit 
services in the region. Barriers from 
using the service will removed and new 
customer amenities will be available to 
protect customers from unfavourable 
weather.  

Project aligns with Provincial 
Land-Use Framework, which 
supports regional planning 
for key infrastructure, such 
as transit. 

 

The Province recognizes the approved 
CMP which incorporates and supports 
regional transit systems for the 
economic health and growth of the 
region. The CMP was developed in 
collaboration with members 
communities of the CRP.     

The CRP Transit Plan aligns with the 
approved CMP. The plan identifies land 
use intensification for transit success; 
integrated, customer focused and 
accessible regional transit; and focused 
growth in specific nodes and corridors.   

At the local level, current and future 
Transit initiatives support Council’s 
strategic priorities for Sustainable 
Transportation as identified in the City’s 
AirdrieONE Sustainability Plan. 

Project will advance the 
province’s climate change 
strategy by increasing public 
transit use, reducing 
congestion, getting cars off 
roads and thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions 

 

One of the benefits of investing in public 
transit is the reduction of the 
environmental impacts of urban travel. 
A modern, accessible regional transit 
service will deliver positive outcomes as 
they relate to the province’s climate 
change strategy including an overall 
reduction in GHG emissions and 
reduced congestion on existing 
roadways. 

This project aligns with the province’s 
climate change strategy as investing in 
transit zones with new infrastructure 
encourages and attracts new customers 
to public transit. New customers using 
public transit equates to fewer vehicles 
on roads reducing GHG emissions. 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 5     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Appendix 3 – Transit Zone Improvements Monitoring Plan  

Appendix 4 – Unadopted Council Resolution from September 2, 2014   

Submission Address:  

ATTENTION:  GreenTRIP 
ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
2nd Floor, Twin Atria Building 
4999 – 98 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB   T6B 2X3 
 
TEL: 780-415-2148 
FAX: 780-427-0783     

 

 

   

Submission Certification 

 

  

Signature Date 

 

 

  

Signature Date 

<Insert title of signature required> <Insert title of signature required> 

 

Legal Statements 

The personal information being collected on this form will be used to administer GreenTRIP.  The personal 

information is being collected under the authority of section 33(c) of the Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act and will be managed in accordance with the privacy provisions in the FOIP 

Act.  If you have any questions concerning the collection of this information, please contact Susan Fox, 

FOIP Coordinator, 780-422-0021. 

Mailing Address:  3rd Floor Twin Atria Building 
                                 4999 - 98 Avenue 
                                 Edmonton, AB 
                                 T6B 2X3 

 

 



 
 

                  

 

 

GreenTRIP 

Green Transit Incentives Program 

Project Submission Form 

The Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP) is a one-time capital 

funding program that supports public transit in Alberta.  This Alberta 

Transportation program provides Albertans with a wider range of 

sustainable public transit alternatives which helps increase transit 

ridership, reduce traffic congestion and thereby reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. 

Visit the Alberta Transportation website for more detailed information 

on eligibility criteria, business case and program guidelines: 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm 

 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 2     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Program Overview and General Guide 

Please review the Procedures and Guidelines and the Project/Cost Eligibility 
Criteria documents prior to submitting the proposal. 

 

Project Submission Deadline:  November 30, 2014 

    

Section A – Project Submission Overview/Applicant Information 

Name of municipality/organization City of Airdrie 

Legal status of applicant  (if 
applicable) 

Municipality 

Contact name and title Chris MacIsaac, Transit Coordinator 

Phone number 403.948.8800 ext 8449 

Email address chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca 

Mailing address 400 Main Street SE Airdrie AB T4B 0H1 

Fax number 403.948.6567 
 

Project Information: Attach Business Case and supporting documentation 

Name of project Transit Zone Improvements 

Project location/limits 

(if applicable) 
Existing Transit Zones in Airdrie, AB 

Date of Submission November 30, 2014 

Project description: Provide 
enough detail to understand 
project scope and magnitude 
(maximum of 250 words) 
Attach additional details as 
needed. 

This project is a multi-year program to improve the accessibility, 

convenience and safety of using Airdrie Transit services through large-

scale network improvements to transit zone infrastructure. 

(Additional project details attached in business case) 

 

Project Deliverables: Provide 
a brief summary of what the 
funding will be used for. 

Upwards of 30 transit zones improved with bus pads and transit shelters 
to improve accessibility, convenience and safety. 

 

(Additional project deliverables attached in business case) 

 

mailto:chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 3     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commencement 01/02/2015 

Completion 12/31/2018 

  

Project Costs: Attach additional detail with submission 
Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 

Eligible 

cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-
provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Transit 
Shelters 

$581,094                   

Bus Pads $387,396                   

     

Total $968,490 $      $      $      $645,660 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:          
 

Section B - Project Outcomes and Benefits 

Please describe how your proposed public transit infrastructure project will align with the following 

municipal and provincial priorities. 

Provincial Priority 
Describe how the provincial priority 

applies to this project. 
Describe how this project supports 

the provincial priority. 

Project will support “The 
Building Alberta Plan” which 
includes capital funding for 
“Investing in Families and 
Communities”. 

This provincial priority identifies the 
need to invest in infrastructure that 
supports families and communities. 
Infrastructure designed to improve 
accessibility and safety of using public 
transit services will support families 
particularly those with mobility 
restrictions.  

Investing in transit shelters and 
upgrading non-accessible bus stops with 
fully accessible infrastructure will 
remove barriers that currently exist for 
residents. This will encourage the use of 
public transit and improve conditions 
for existing transit customers.  

Project will contribute to a 
safe and world-class 
transportation system that 
supports regional and 
provincial economic 
development and provides 
Alberta with the most 
advanced infrastructure in 
North America. 

 

Supporting and investing in accessible, 
modern regional transit initiatives that 
integrate with a world-class transit 
system such as Calgary Transit, 
enhances the province’s social, 
economic, sustainability and 
environmental profile.  

The City of Airdrie’s investment in 
regional transit infrastructure aligns 
with the CMP’s regional framework for 
improved economic mobility in the 
Calgary Region providing future, 
sustainable economic development 
opportunities. This project will 
implement green technologies on 
transit shelters reducing energy 
consumption. Transit shelters will be 
100% solar powered making Airdrie the 
first municipal in Canada to strive 
towards a green-energy solution for 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 4     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 

Section C - Supporting Documentation and Attachments 

List the attachments that support this submission 
  

Appendix 1 – Transit Zone Improvements Business Case  

Appendix 2 – Transit Zone Improvements Financial Sustainability Plan  

transit shelters. 

Project complements 
Alberta’s return to 
prosperity and contributes 
to a strong foundation for 
continued economic 
strength. 

 

Investment in public transit is a long-
term vision with sound social, economic 
and environmental benefits. The 
Province’s commitment with the 
GreenTRIP Fund addresses the growth 
and sustainability challenges faced by 
municipalities today and into the future.  

 

For Alberta to establish a strong 
foundation for economic success future 
challenges must be identified and 
proactively analyzed and solutions 
implemented. Public transit supports 
economic mobility and thus economic 
and business development for Alberta’s 
future. 

This project will improve accessibility 
and safety of using public transit 
services in the region. Barriers from 
using the service will removed and new 
customer amenities will be available to 
protect customers from unfavourable 
weather.  

Project aligns with Provincial 
Land-Use Framework, which 
supports regional planning 
for key infrastructure, such 
as transit. 

 

The Province recognizes the approved 
CMP which incorporates and supports 
regional transit systems for the 
economic health and growth of the 
region. The CMP was developed in 
collaboration with members 
communities of the CRP.     

The CRP Transit Plan aligns with the 
approved CMP. The plan identifies land 
use intensification for transit success; 
integrated, customer focused and 
accessible regional transit; and focused 
growth in specific nodes and corridors.   

At the local level, current and future 
Transit initiatives support Council’s 
strategic priorities for Sustainable 
Transportation as identified in the City’s 
AirdrieONE Sustainability Plan. 

Project will advance the 
province’s climate change 
strategy by increasing public 
transit use, reducing 
congestion, getting cars off 
roads and thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions 

 

One of the benefits of investing in public 
transit is the reduction of the 
environmental impacts of urban travel. 
A modern, accessible regional transit 
service will deliver positive outcomes as 
they relate to the province’s climate 
change strategy including an overall 
reduction in GHG emissions and 
reduced congestion on existing 
roadways. 

This project aligns with the province’s 
climate change strategy as investing in 
transit zones with new infrastructure 
encourages and attracts new customers 
to public transit. New customers using 
public transit equates to fewer vehicles 
on roads reducing GHG emissions. 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 5     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Appendix 3 – Transit Zone Improvements Monitoring Plan  

Appendix 4 – Unadopted Council Resolution from September 2, 2014   

Submission Address:  

ATTENTION:  GreenTRIP 
ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
2nd Floor, Twin Atria Building 
4999 – 98 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB   T6B 2X3 
 
TEL: 780-415-2148 
FAX: 780-427-0783     

 

 

   

Submission Certification 

 

  

Signature Date 

 

 

  

Signature Date 

<Insert title of signature required> <Insert title of signature required> 

 

Legal Statements 

The personal information being collected on this form will be used to administer GreenTRIP.  The personal 

information is being collected under the authority of section 33(c) of the Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act and will be managed in accordance with the privacy provisions in the FOIP 

Act.  If you have any questions concerning the collection of this information, please contact Susan Fox, 

FOIP Coordinator, 780-422-0021. 

Mailing Address:  3rd Floor Twin Atria Building 
                                 4999 - 98 Avenue 
                                 Edmonton, AB 
                                 T6B 2X3 

 

 



 
 

                  

 

 

GreenTRIP 

Green Transit Incentives Program 

Project Submission Form 

The Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP) is a one-time capital 

funding program that supports public transit in Alberta.  This Alberta 

Transportation program provides Albertans with a wider range of 

sustainable public transit alternatives which helps increase transit 

ridership, reduce traffic congestion and thereby reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. 

Visit the Alberta Transportation website for more detailed information 

on eligibility criteria, business case and program guidelines: 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm 

 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 2     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Program Overview and General Guide 

Please review the Procedures and Guidelines and the Project/Cost Eligibility 
Criteria documents prior to submitting the proposal. 

 

Project Submission Deadline:  November 30, 2014 

    

Section A – Project Submission Overview/Applicant Information 

Name of municipality/organization City of Airdrie 

Legal status of applicant  (if 
applicable) 

Municipality 

Contact name and title Chris MacIsaac, Transit Coordinator 

Phone number 403.948.8800 ext 8449 

Email address chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca 

Mailing address 400 Main Street SE Airdrie AB T4B 0H1 

Fax number 403.948.6567 
 

Project Information: Attach Business Case and supporting documentation 

Name of project Transit Technologies 

Project location/limits 

(if applicable) 
n/a 

Date of Submission November 30, 2014 

Project description: Provide 
enough detail to understand 
project scope and magnitude 
(maximum of 250 words) 
Attach additional details as 
needed. 

This project includes the investment in technology to improve the 

customer experience, operating efficiencies and safety. 

(Additional project details attached in business case) 

 

Project Deliverables: Provide 
a brief summary of what the 
funding will be used for. 

This project will include the purchase of hardware, software or system 
design to meet transit outcomes.  

 

(Additional project deliverables attached in business case) 

 

mailto:chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 3     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commencement 07/01/2014 

Completion 12/31/2017 

  

Project Costs: Attach additional detail with submission 
Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 

Eligible 

cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-
provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Transit 
Technology 

$359,255                   

     

     

Total $359,255 $      $      $      $239,503 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:          
 

Section B - Project Outcomes and Benefits 

Please describe how your proposed public transit infrastructure project will align with the following 

municipal and provincial priorities. 

Provincial Priority 
Describe how the provincial priority 

applies to this project. 
Describe how this project supports 

the provincial priority. 

Project will support “The 
Building Alberta Plan” which 
includes capital funding for 
“Investing in Families and 
Communities”. 

The province would be investing for the 
long-term in this project. Airdrie and the 
immediate region is a rapidly growing in 
terms of population, employment and 
services. New and modern 
infrastructure is essential to keep pace 
with this growth and to ensure that 
communities are making long-term, 
strategic investments in projects that 
will support a sustainable future. 

This project invests in new technologies 
that will improve the customer 
experience of using public transit, 
improve safety to customers and 
operators and provide new operating 
efficiencies to decrease operating costs 
to local ratepayers. 

Project will contribute to a 
safe and world-class 
transportation system that 
supports regional and 
provincial economic 
development and provides 
Alberta with the most 
advanced infrastructure in 
North America. 

 

Supporting and investing in accessible, 
modern regional transit initiatives that 
integrate with a world-class transit 
system such as Calgary Transit, 
enhances the province’s social, 
economic, sustainability and 
environmental profile.  

The City of Airdrie’s investment in 
regional transit infrastructure aligns 
with the CMP’s regional framework for 
improved economic mobility in the 
Calgary Region providing future, 
sustainable economic development 
opportunities. This project will 
implement the latest in transit 
technology to improve the customer 
experience, improve safety, and 
implement efficiencies to decrease 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 4     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 

Section C - Supporting Documentation and Attachments 

List the attachments that support this submission 
  

Appendix 1 – Transit Technologies Expansion Business Case  

Appendix 2 – Transit Technologies Financial Sustainability Plan  

operating costs. These technologies 
have been implemented throughout the 
Canadian transit industry and their 
outcomes can be quantified. 

Project complements 
Alberta’s return to 
prosperity and contributes 
to a strong foundation for 
continued economic 
strength. 

 

Investment in public transit is a long-
term vision with sound social, economic 
and environmental benefits. The 
Province’s commitment with the 
GreenTRIP Fund addresses the growth 
and sustainability challenges faced by 
municipalities today and into the future.  

 

For Alberta to establish a strong 
foundation for economic success future 
challenges must be identified and 
proactively analyzed and solutions 
implemented. Public transit supports 
economic mobility and thus economic 
and business development for Alberta’s 
future. 

Transit must keep pace with 
expectations of today’s highly-
connected customers. This includes real 
time information, electronic fare 
payment and improved safety 
measures. Investing in these 
technologies will encourage the use of 
public transit services. 

Project aligns with Provincial 
Land-Use Framework, which 
supports regional planning 
for key infrastructure, such 
as transit. 

 

The Province recognizes the approved 
CMP which incorporates and supports 
regional transit systems for the 
economic health and growth of the 
region. The CMP was developed in 
collaboration with members 
communities of the CRP.     

The CRP Transit Plan aligns with the 
approved CMP. The plan identifies land 
use intensification for transit success; 
integrated, customer focused and 
accessible regional transit; and focused 
growth in specific nodes and corridors.   

At the local level, current and future 
Transit initiatives support Council’s 
strategic priorities for Sustainable 
Transportation as identified in the City’s 
AirdrieONE Sustainability Plan. 

Project will advance the 
province’s climate change 
strategy by increasing public 
transit use, reducing 
congestion, getting cars off 
roads and thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions 

 

One of the benefits of investing in public 
transit is the reduction of the 
environmental impacts of urban travel. 
A modern, accessible regional transit 
service will deliver positive outcomes as 
they relate to the province’s climate 
change strategy including an overall 
reduction in GHG emissions and 
reduced congestion on existing 
roadways. 

New technologies are proposed to make 
public transit more attractive to a larger 
cross-section of regional residents. 
These technologies reduce barriers to 
use public transit and thus encourage 
ridership. Higher public transit ridership 
reduces the number of private vehicles 
on roads and thus reduces GHG 
emissions. 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 5     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Appendix 3 – Transit Technologies Replacement Monitoring Plan  

Appendix 4 – Unadopted Council Resolution from September 2, 2014   

Submission Address:  

ATTENTION:  GreenTRIP 
ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
2nd Floor, Twin Atria Building 
4999 – 98 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB   T6B 2X3 
 
TEL: 780-415-2148 
FAX: 780-427-0783     

 

 

   

Submission Certification 

 

  

Signature Date 

 

 

  

Signature Date 

<Insert title of signature required> <Insert title of signature required> 

 

Legal Statements 

The personal information being collected on this form will be used to administer GreenTRIP.  The personal 

information is being collected under the authority of section 33(c) of the Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act and will be managed in accordance with the privacy provisions in the FOIP 

Act.  If you have any questions concerning the collection of this information, please contact Susan Fox, 

FOIP Coordinator, 780-422-0021. 

Mailing Address:  3rd Floor Twin Atria Building 
                                 4999 - 98 Avenue 
                                 Edmonton, AB 
                                 T6B 2X3 

 

 



 
 

                  

 

 

GreenTRIP 

Green Transit Incentives Program 

Project Submission Form 

The Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP) is a one-time capital 

funding program that supports public transit in Alberta.  This Alberta 

Transportation program provides Albertans with a wider range of 

sustainable public transit alternatives which helps increase transit 

ridership, reduce traffic congestion and thereby reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. 

Visit the Alberta Transportation website for more detailed information 

on eligibility criteria, business case and program guidelines: 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm 

 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 2     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Program Overview and General Guide 

Please review the Procedures and Guidelines and the Project/Cost Eligibility 
Criteria documents prior to submitting the proposal. 

 

Project Submission Deadline:  November 30, 2014 

    

Section A – Project Submission Overview/Applicant Information 

Name of municipality/organization City of Airdrie 

Legal status of applicant  (if 
applicable) 

Municipality 

Contact name and title Chris MacIsaac, Transit Coordinator 

Phone number 403.948.8800 ext 8449 

Email address chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca 

Mailing address 400 Main Street SE Airdrie AB T4B 0H1 

Fax number 403.948.6567 
 

Project Information: Attach Business Case and supporting documentation 

Name of project Transit Facility 

Project location/limits 

(if applicable) 
Near East Lake Industrial Park, Airdrie, AB 

Date of Submission November 30, 2014 

Project description: Provide 
enough detail to understand 
project scope and magnitude 
(maximum of 250 words) 
Attach additional details as 
needed. 

This project will include the acquisition of suitable land, engineering, 

design and construction of a dedicated public transit facility for Airdrie 

Transit’s growing service. The facility will be in a modular concept to 

maximize opportunities for growth. 

(Additional details attached in business case) 

 

Project Deliverables: Provide 
a brief summary of what the 
funding will be used for. 

2015: Land acquisition, Engineering and Design 

2016: Facility Construction 

2017: Completion of Facility Construction 

(Additional project deliverables attached in business case) 

 

mailto:chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 3     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commencement 01/02/2015 

Completion 12/31/2017 

  

Project Costs: Attach additional detail with submission 
Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 

Eligible 

cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-
provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Land $2,705,600                   

Engineering & 
Design 

$800,000                   

Facility 
Construction 

$8,413,520                   

Total $11,919,120 $      $      $      $7,946,080 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:          
 

Section B - Project Outcomes and Benefits 

Please describe how your proposed public transit infrastructure project will align with the following 

municipal and provincial priorities. 

Provincial Priority 
Describe how the provincial priority 

applies to this project. 
Describe how this project supports 

the provincial priority. 

Project will support “The 
Building Alberta Plan” which 
includes capital funding for 
“Investing in Families and 
Communities”. 

The province would be investing for the 
long-term in this project. Airdrie and the 
immediate region is a rapidly growing in 
terms of population, employment and 
services. New and modern 
infrastructure is essential to keep pace 
with this growth and to ensure that 
communities are making long-term, 
strategic investments in projects that 
will support a sustainable future. 

Construction of a transit facility will 
facilitate improved service levels for all 
regional residents. This will result in 
improved connectivity in the Calgary 
region, better quality of life for regional 
residents and new opportunities for 
regional residents to access 
employment, education and healthcare. 

Project will contribute to a 
safe and world-class 
transportation system that 
supports regional and 
provincial economic 
development and provides 
Alberta with the most 
advanced infrastructure in 
North America. 

 

Supporting and investing in accessible, 
modern regional transit initiatives that 
integrate with a world-class transit 
system such as Calgary Transit, 
enhances the province’s social, 
economic, sustainability and 
environmental profile.  

The City of Airdrie’s investment in 
regional transit infrastructure aligns 
with the CMP’s regional framework for 
improved economic mobility in the 
Calgary Region providing future, 
sustainable economic development 
opportunities. This project will provide 
the capacity for Airdrie to invest in 
additional service levels to meet the 
growing needs of regional residents to 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 4     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 

Section C - Supporting Documentation and Attachments 

List the attachments that support this submission 
  

Appendix 1 – Transit Facility Business Case  

Appendix 2 – Transit Facility Financial Sustainability Plan  

access employment, education, 
healthcare and other services. 

Project complements 
Alberta’s return to 
prosperity and contributes 
to a strong foundation for 
continued economic 
strength. 

 

Investment in public transit is a long-
term vision with sound social, economic 
and environmental benefits. The 
Province’s commitment with the 
GreenTRIP Fund addresses the growth 
and sustainability challenges faced by 
municipalities today and into the future.  

 

For Alberta to establish a strong 
foundation for economic success future 
challenges must be identified and 
proactively analyzed and solutions 
implemented. Public transit supports 
economic mobility and thus economic 
and business development for Alberta’s 
future. 

This project will enhance Airdrie’s 
capabilities to grow with demand for 
regional services. The facility will 
support additional fleet and thereby 
continuing to encourage the adoption of 
a transit culture in the Calgary region.  

Project aligns with Provincial 
Land-Use Framework, which 
supports regional planning 
for key infrastructure, such 
as transit. 

 

The Province recognizes the approved 
CMP which incorporates and supports 
regional transit systems for the 
economic health and growth of the 
region. The CMP was developed in 
collaboration with members 
communities of the CRP.     

The CRP Transit Plan aligns with the 
approved CMP. The plan identifies land 
use intensification for transit success; 
integrated, customer focused and 
accessible regional transit; and focused 
growth in specific nodes and corridors.   

At the local level, current and future 
Transit initiatives support Council’s 
strategic priorities for Sustainable 
Transportation as identified in the City’s 
AirdrieONE Sustainability Plan. 

Project will advance the 
province’s climate change 
strategy by increasing public 
transit use, reducing 
congestion, getting cars off 
roads and thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions 

 

One of the benefits of investing in public 
transit is the reduction of the 
environmental impacts of urban travel. 
A modern, accessible regional transit 
service will deliver positive outcomes as 
they relate to the province’s climate 
change strategy including an overall 
reduction in GHG emissions and 
reduced congestion on existing 
roadways. 

This project aligns with the province’s 
climate change strategy as a new facility 
will provide the capacity to store and 
maintain a larger fleet of regional buses. 
This larger fleet will reduce the 
dependence of private vehicle trips and 
thereby reduce GHG emissions. 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 5     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Appendix 3 – Transit Facility Monitoring Plan  

Appendix 4 – Unadopted Council Resolution from September 2, 2014   

Submission Address:  

ATTENTION:  GreenTRIP 
ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
2nd Floor, Twin Atria Building 
4999 – 98 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB   T6B 2X3 
 
TEL: 780-415-2148 
FAX: 780-427-0783     

 

 

   

Submission Certification 

 

  

Signature Date 

 

 

  

Signature Date 

<Insert title of signature required> <Insert title of signature required> 

 

Legal Statements 

The personal information being collected on this form will be used to administer GreenTRIP.  The personal 

information is being collected under the authority of section 33(c) of the Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act and will be managed in accordance with the privacy provisions in the FOIP 

Act.  If you have any questions concerning the collection of this information, please contact Susan Fox, 

FOIP Coordinator, 780-422-0021. 

Mailing Address:  3rd Floor Twin Atria Building 
                                 4999 - 98 Avenue 
                                 Edmonton, AB 
                                 T6B 2X3 

 

 



 
 

                  

 

 

GreenTRIP 

Green Transit Incentives Program 

Project Submission Form 

The Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP) is a one-time capital 

funding program that supports public transit in Alberta.  This Alberta 

Transportation program provides Albertans with a wider range of 

sustainable public transit alternatives which helps increase transit 

ridership, reduce traffic congestion and thereby reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. 

Visit the Alberta Transportation website for more detailed information 

on eligibility criteria, business case and program guidelines: 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm 

 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 2     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Program Overview and General Guide 

Please review the Procedures and Guidelines and the Project/Cost Eligibility 
Criteria documents prior to submitting the proposal. 

 

Project Submission Deadline:  November 30, 2014 

    

Section A – Project Submission Overview/Applicant Information 

Name of municipality/organization City of Airdrie 

Legal status of applicant  (if 
applicable) 

Municipality 

Contact name and title Chris MacIsaac, Transit Coordinator 

Phone number 403.948.8800 ext 8449 

Email address chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca 

Mailing address 400 Main Street SE Airdrie AB T4B 0H1 

Fax number 403.948.6567 
 

Project Information: Attach Business Case and supporting documentation 

Name of project Regional Fleet Expansion 

Project location/limits 

(if applicable) 
n/a 

Date of Submission November 30, 2014 

Project description: Provide 
enough detail to understand 
project scope and magnitude 
(maximum of 250 words) 
Attach additional details as 
needed. 

This project includes the procurement of expansion fleet to support the 

growth in ridership on the regional transit network. 

(Additional project details attached in business case) 

 

Project Deliverables: Provide 
a brief summary of what the 
funding will be used for. 

This projects includes the procurement of access, high-capacity buses to 
meet the needs of regional transit customers.  

 

(Additional project deliverables attached in business case) 

 

mailto:chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 3     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commencement 01/01/2012 

Completion 12/31/2019 

  

Project Costs: Attach additional detail with submission 
Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 

Eligible 

cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-
provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Fleet $4,407,435                   

     

     

Total $4,407,435 $      $      $      $2,938,290 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:          
 

Section B - Project Outcomes and Benefits 

Please describe how your proposed public transit infrastructure project will align with the following 

municipal and provincial priorities. 

Provincial Priority 
Describe how the provincial priority 

applies to this project. 
Describe how this project supports 

the provincial priority. 

Project will support “The 
Building Alberta Plan” which 
includes capital funding for 
“Investing in Families and 
Communities”. 

The province would be investing for the 
long-term in this project. Airdrie and the 
immediate region is a rapidly growing in 
terms of population, employment and 
services. New and modern 
infrastructure is essential to keep pace 
with this growth and to ensure that 
communities are making long-term, 
strategic investments in projects that 
will support a sustainable future. 

This projects invests in additional fleet 
to provide more service to the 
community. This will improve the 
competitiveness of public transit with 
the private vehicle and will provide 
regional residents to reduce their 
overall household transportation costs 
by using public transit for more of their 
daily trip requirements.  

Project will contribute to a 
safe and world-class 
transportation system that 
supports regional and 
provincial economic 
development and provides 
Alberta with the most 
advanced infrastructure in 
North America. 

 

Supporting and investing in accessible, 
modern regional transit initiatives that 
integrate with a world-class transit 
system such as Calgary Transit, 
enhances the province’s social, 
economic, sustainability and 
environmental profile.  

The City of Airdrie’s investment in 
regional transit infrastructure aligns 
with the CMP’s regional framework for 
improved economic mobility in the 
Calgary Region providing future, 
sustainable economic development 
opportunities. This project will increase 
service levels thus increasing regional 
mobility. This will improve labour 
mobility and provide new opportunities 
for residents that require alternative 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 4     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 

Section C - Supporting Documentation and Attachments 

List the attachments that support this submission 
  

Appendix 1 – Regional Fleet Expansion Business Case  

Appendix 2 – Regional Fleet Expansion Financial Sustainability Plan  

means of transportation outside of the 
private vehicle. This improvement in 
mobility will provide regional economic 
spin-offs as employers will have 
improved access to labour. 

Project complements 
Alberta’s return to 
prosperity and contributes 
to a strong foundation for 
continued economic 
strength. 

 

Investment in public transit is a long-
term vision with sound social, economic 
and environmental benefits. The 
Province’s commitment with the 
GreenTRIP Fund addresses the growth 
and sustainability challenges faced by 
municipalities today and into the future.  

 

For Alberta to establish a strong 
foundation for economic success future 
challenges must be identified and 
proactively analyzed and solutions 
implemented. Public transit supports 
economic mobility and thus economic 
and business development for Alberta’s 
future. 

This project will increase service levels 
thus increasing regional mobility. This 
will improve labour mobility and provide 
new opportunities for residents that 
require alternative means of 
transportation outside of the private 
vehicle. This improvement in mobility 
will provide regional economic spin-offs 
as employers will have improved access 
to labour. 

Project aligns with Provincial 
Land-Use Framework, which 
supports regional planning 
for key infrastructure, such 
as transit. 

 

The Province recognizes the approved 
CMP which incorporates and supports 
regional transit systems for the 
economic health and growth of the 
region. The CMP was developed in 
collaboration with members 
communities of the CRP.     

The CRP Transit Plan aligns with the 
approved CMP. The plan identifies land 
use intensification for transit success; 
integrated, customer focused and 
accessible regional transit; and focused 
growth in specific nodes and corridors.   

At the local level, current and future 
Transit initiatives support Council’s 
strategic priorities for Sustainable 
Transportation as identified in the City’s 
AirdrieONE Sustainability Plan. 

Project will advance the 
province’s climate change 
strategy by increasing public 
transit use, reducing 
congestion, getting cars off 
roads and thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions 

 

One of the benefits of investing in public 
transit is the reduction of the 
environmental impacts of urban travel. 
A modern, accessible regional transit 
service will deliver positive outcomes as 
they relate to the province’s climate 
change strategy including an overall 
reduction in GHG emissions and 
reduced congestion on existing 
roadways. 

Investing in additional fleet will have a 
direct result on the number of vehicles 
on the road. The regional service has 
been very successful to date and 
invested in additional fleet with remove 
vehicles traveling through the region 
thus reducing GHG emissions. 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 5     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Appendix 3 – Regional Fleet Expansion Monitoring Plan  

Appendix 4 – Unadopted Council Resolution from September 2, 2014   

Submission Address:  

ATTENTION:  GreenTRIP 
ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
2nd Floor, Twin Atria Building 
4999 – 98 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB   T6B 2X3 
 
TEL: 780-415-2148 
FAX: 780-427-0783     

 

 

   

Submission Certification 

 

  

Signature Date 

 

 

  

Signature Date 

<Insert title of signature required> <Insert title of signature required> 

 

Legal Statements 

The personal information being collected on this form will be used to administer GreenTRIP.  The personal 

information is being collected under the authority of section 33(c) of the Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act and will be managed in accordance with the privacy provisions in the FOIP 

Act.  If you have any questions concerning the collection of this information, please contact Susan Fox, 

FOIP Coordinator, 780-422-0021. 

Mailing Address:  3rd Floor Twin Atria Building 
                                 4999 - 98 Avenue 
                                 Edmonton, AB 
                                 T6B 2X3 

 

 



 
 

                  

 

 

GreenTRIP 

Green Transit Incentives Program 

Project Submission Form 

The Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP) is a one-time capital 

funding program that supports public transit in Alberta.  This Alberta 

Transportation program provides Albertans with a wider range of 

sustainable public transit alternatives which helps increase transit 

ridership, reduce traffic congestion and thereby reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. 

Visit the Alberta Transportation website for more detailed information 

on eligibility criteria, business case and program guidelines: 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm 

 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 2     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Program Overview and General Guide 

Please review the Procedures and Guidelines and the Project/Cost Eligibility 
Criteria documents prior to submitting the proposal. 

 

Project Submission Deadline:  November 30, 2014 

    

Section A – Project Submission Overview/Applicant Information 

Name of municipality/organization City of Airdrie 

Legal status of applicant  (if 
applicable) 

Municipality 

Contact name and title Chris MacIsaac, Transit Coordinator 

Phone number 403.948.8800 ext 8449 

Email address chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca 

Mailing address 400 Main Street SE Airdrie AB T4B 0H1 

Fax number 403.948.6567 
 

Project Information: Attach Business Case and supporting documentation 

Name of project Local Fleet Expansion/Replacement 

Project location/limits 

(if applicable) 
n/a 

Date of Submission November 30, 2014 

Project description: Provide 
enough detail to understand 
project scope and magnitude 
(maximum of 250 words) 
Attach additional details as 
needed. 

This project includes the replacement of the local fleet with modern, 

accessible shuttles that provide feeder service to the regional buses and 

also provide off-peak regional service. Consideration is also made for 

expansion of the existing fleet to meet the needs of a growing 

community. 

(Additional project details attached in business case) 

 

Project Deliverables: Provide 
a brief summary of what the 
funding will be used for. 

This projects includes the procurement of vehicles to meet the needs of 
local feeder service and off-peak regional service.  

 

(Additional project deliverables attached in business case) 

 

mailto:chris.macisaac@airdrie.ca


 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 3     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Commencement 01/01/2016 

Completion 12/31/2019 

  

Project Costs: Attach additional detail with submission 
Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A} {B} {C} {D} {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 

Eligible 

cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 

grants 
expected($) 

Non-
provincial 
sources of 
funding ($) 

Total Funding 
request under this 

grant program 

 

[A-(B+C+D)] 

 

Fleet $1,467,240                   

     

     

Total $1,467,240 $      $      $      $978,160 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:          
 

Section B - Project Outcomes and Benefits 

Please describe how your proposed public transit infrastructure project will align with the following 

municipal and provincial priorities. 

Provincial Priority 
Describe how the provincial priority 

applies to this project. 
Describe how this project supports 

the provincial priority. 

Project will support “The 
Building Alberta Plan” which 
includes capital funding for 
“Investing in Families and 
Communities”. 

The province would be investing for the 
long-term in this project. Airdrie and the 
immediate region is a rapidly growing in 
terms of population, employment and 
services. New and modern 
infrastructure is essential to keep pace 
with this growth and to ensure that 
communities are making long-term, 
strategic investments in projects that 
will support a sustainable future. 

This project invests in modern, 
accessible local fleet to replace the fleet 
operating since 2010. This will improve 
the reliability of service as the existing 
fleet reach the end of their lifecycle. The 
local fleet is an important component of 
the overall public transit network as it 
provides feeder service for the regional 
service. 

Project will contribute to a 
safe and world-class 
transportation system that 
supports regional and 
provincial economic 
development and provides 
Alberta with the most 
advanced infrastructure in 
North America. 

 

Supporting and investing in accessible, 
modern regional transit initiatives that 
integrate with a world-class transit 
system such as Calgary Transit, 
enhances the province’s social, 
economic, sustainability and 
environmental profile.  

The City of Airdrie’s investment in 
regional transit infrastructure aligns 
with the CMP’s regional framework for 
improved economic mobility in the 
Calgary Region providing future, 
sustainable economic development 
opportunities. This project will maintain 
local transit service levels with a 
replacement fleet to replace the existing 
fleet in operation since 2010.  



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 4     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 

Section C - Supporting Documentation and Attachments 

List the attachments that support this submission 
  

Appendix 1 – Local Fleet Expansion/Replacement Business Case  

Appendix 2 – Local Fleet Expansion/Replacement Financial 
Sustainability Plan 

 

Appendix 3 – Local Fleet Expansion/Replacement Monitoring Plan  

Appendix 4 – Unadopted Council Resolution from September 2, 2014   

Project complements 
Alberta’s return to 
prosperity and contributes 
to a strong foundation for 
continued economic 
strength. 

 

Investment in public transit is a long-
term vision with sound social, economic 
and environmental benefits. The 
Province’s commitment with the 
GreenTRIP Fund addresses the growth 
and sustainability challenges faced by 
municipalities today and into the future.  

 

For Alberta to establish a strong 
foundation for economic success future 
challenges must be identified and 
proactively analyzed and solutions 
implemented. Public transit supports 
economic mobility and thus economic 
and business development for Alberta’s 
future. 

This project will support overall transit 
network performance as a modern fleet 
of Local buses will improve service 
reliability and capitalize on 
advancements in bus technology since 
the original fleet was procured in 2010. 

Project aligns with Provincial 
Land-Use Framework, which 
supports regional planning 
for key infrastructure, such 
as transit. 

 

The Province recognizes the approved 
CMP which incorporates and supports 
regional transit systems for the 
economic health and growth of the 
region. The CMP was developed in 
collaboration with members 
communities of the CRP.     

The CRP Transit Plan aligns with the 
approved CMP. The plan identifies land 
use intensification for transit success; 
integrated, customer focused and 
accessible regional transit; and focused 
growth in specific nodes and corridors.   

At the local level, current and future 
Transit initiatives support Council’s 
strategic priorities for Sustainable 
Transportation as identified in the City’s 
AirdrieONE Sustainability Plan. 

Project will advance the 
province’s climate change 
strategy by increasing public 
transit use, reducing 
congestion, getting cars off 
roads and thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions 

 

One of the benefits of investing in public 
transit is the reduction of the 
environmental impacts of urban travel. 
A modern, accessible regional transit 
service will deliver positive outcomes as 
they relate to the province’s climate 
change strategy including an overall 
reduction in GHG emissions and 
reduced congestion on existing 
roadways. 

The replacement of the existing local 
fleet will encourage the use of transit. A 
modern fleet will improve service 
reliability over the existing fleet. In 
addition, advancements in bus 
technology have resulted in vehicles 
becoming more fuel efficient than the 
existing local fleet. Both of these factors 
result in reduced GHG emissions. 



 

  

     Updated April 7, 2014 5     
 

 

G
re

e
n

TR
IP

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 

 

 

 Submission Address:  

ATTENTION:  GreenTRIP 
ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
2nd Floor, Twin Atria Building 
4999 – 98 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB   T6B 2X3 
 
TEL: 780-415-2148 
FAX: 780-427-0783     

 

 

   

Submission Certification 

 

  

Signature Date 

 

 

  

Signature Date 

<Insert title of signature required> <Insert title of signature required> 

 

Legal Statements 

The personal information being collected on this form will be used to administer GreenTRIP.  The personal 

information is being collected under the authority of section 33(c) of the Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act and will be managed in accordance with the privacy provisions in the FOIP 

Act.  If you have any questions concerning the collection of this information, please contact Susan Fox, 

FOIP Coordinator, 780-422-0021. 

Mailing Address:  3rd Floor Twin Atria Building 
                                 4999 - 98 Avenue 
                                 Edmonton, AB 
                                 T6B 2X3 

 

 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 31 

 
 
Appendix B-Further details on City of Calgary GreenTRIP Program submission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 1 of 5 
 

17 Avenue Southeast Transitway 
Business Case  
GreenTRIP Project Submission 
City of Calgary 
 
1. Introduction 
Calgary proposes six major projects that will increase public transit use in the Calgary region, 
taking cars off our roads and reducing greenhouse gas emissions, while also strengthening 
regional and local communities through integration with land use and other transportation 
projects.  The City of Calgary proposed projects are: 

 17 Avenue Southeast Transitway 
 LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades  
 North Crosstown BRT 
 South Crosstown BRT 
 Southwest Transitway 
 West LRT Land 

The project costs are outlined below: 

17 Avenue Southeast Transitway:  $98,000,000

LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades:  $36,000,000

North Crosstown BRT:  $50,000,000

South Crosstown BRT: $20,000,000

Southwest Transitway $40,000,000

West LRT Land Confidential

Total project cost for submission:  
$244,000,000

+Confidential

 

In support of this application, Calgary’s City Council approved Investing in Mobility Update 
(TT2014-0308) at the Regular Meeting of Council, held on May 26, 2014:  

ADOPT, AS AMENDED, Moved by Councillor Keating, Seconded by Councillor Carra, that 
SPC on Transportation and Transit Recommendations 1, 3 as amended, and 4, contained in 
Report TT2014-0308 be adopted, as amended, as follows: 
  
That Council: 
  
1.    Reconsider Council’s decision contained in the minutes of the 2013 March 04 Combined 

Meeting of Council, with respect to Recommendation 1, Operations Control Centre only, 
contained in report TT2013-0112. 

  



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 2 of 5 
 

3.    Approve the funded and unfunded transportation infrastructure lists outlined in 
Attachment 2, with the exception of the Traction Power Upgrade project and the 
NW-HUB West Campus Mobility project; and 
  

4.    Direct Administration to use Attachment 2 as the basis for developing the Transportation 
Department’s capital budget for Action Plan 2015-2018. 

  
  

CARRIED 
 

Attachment 2 of report TT2014-0308 reads, in part, as shown below (relevant projects 
highlighted): 

This business case submission provides project-specific details for the 17 Avenue Southeast 
Transitway. 

 

 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 3 of 5 
 

2.  Needs 
Calgary’s application for funding to construct the 17 Avenue Southeast Transitway is based on 
the need to attract riders, and accommodate demand from population and employment growth 
in Calgary and the region.  Demand for public transit service is growing on the existing transit 
network due to population and economic growth, transit-oriented developments, post-secondary 
institution growth, downtown employment growth, and growth in regional municipalities.  There 
is a need to increase capacity, provide enhanced transit service, attract new customers, and 
reduce transit travel times. 
 
 
3. Benefits 
This project will allow Calgary Transit to continue to expand transit service capacity and provide 
greater passenger comfort, leading to increased ridership and reduced greenhouse gas 
emissions. The 17 Avenue Southeast Transitway will support future regional transit travel 
between Calgary and municipalities to the east, increase passenger capacity from local bus 
services, and improve connections to walking and cycling infrastructure. 

This project will result in increased ridership, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions (by 
diverting travellers from private passenger vehicles) and reducing vehicle kilometres travelled 
on Alberta’s roads.  Estimates of the benefits for this project are: 

 3,000,000 annual passengers carried 
 500,000 annual auto trips diverted from the road network 
 6,100 annual tonnes of CO2 reduced 

The proposed investments also benefit Albertans by providing mobility for youth, post-
secondary students, seniors, persons with disabilities and those unable to drive, offering 
opportunities for social inclusion and access to community support services, and encouraging 
immigration by offering mobility choices to new arrivals. 
 
 
4. Operational Sustainability 
The net operating cost of the project will be supported by The City of Calgary’s annual operating 
budget.   
 
 
5. Integration with other transportation projects 
Construction of the 17 Avenue Southeast Transitway will compliment ongoing projects designed 
to improve the customer experience.  Next train information is now available at LRT stations, 
including real time up-to-the-minute arrivals information.  In the coming months, the same 
information will be available for buses and on Calgary Transit’s website, and mobile devices.  
Electronic fare collection will also be introduced in the coming months. 
Investments have been made to extend LRT platforms on the existing system to facilitate four-
car train operation.  These platform extensions will be complete by the end of 2014.  Other 
recent investments on the existing LRT network include extensions on the Northeast LRT 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 4 of 5 
 

(McKnight-Westwinds to Saddletowne), Northwest LRT (Crowfoot to Tuscany), and the West 
LRT (downtown to 69 Street SW). 

The project will support regional travel by providing infrastructure to support future transit 
services between Calgary and municipalities to the east, such as Chestermere.  

The proposal reflects long-term planning in Calgary.  This project supports the Primary Transit 
Network, a key element of the Calgary Transportation Plan.  The Primary Transit Network fulfills 
the need to connect more places more directly, increase the speed, frequency and reliability of 
public transit service, and support intensification in station areas. 
 
 
6. How benefits will be realized 
The benefits of these public transit improvements will be realized through gains in transit 
ridership, and mode shifts from private automobile use leading to increased ridership on the 
transit network. The transitway will provide customers with a more reliable service that will be 
less likely to experience delays due to traffic congestion.  Transitways will also provide 
customers with more amenities, such as enhanced waiting areas, at select locations. 
 
This project will also support redevelopment in one of Calgary’s older transportation and 
commercial corridors, benefiting local residents, and the local economy. 
 
7. How benefits will be verified 
The City of Calgary will verify the benefits realized through these investments through on-board 
surveys, ridership counts, and periodic reviews of the improvements in service (e.g. customer 
satisfaction, service reliability) resulting from this project.  Calgary Transit regularly reviews the 
effectiveness of the introduction of new service and facilities.  Ridership counts are conducted 
twice per year on existing routes to serve as a baseline for future monitoring. Electronic fare 
collection systems will provide additional detail to support this analysis when introduced. 
 
Measures of benefits will include: 

 Reduced number of cars on the road, and reduced congestion (identified through 
changes in ridership and inferences from survey data indicating the mode of travel 
formerly used by LRT riders at typical stations) 

 Reduced greenhouse gas emissions (identified through changes in ridership, inferences 
from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at typical 
stations, and trip length/vehicle fleet/emissions assumptions suitable for the Calgary 
area) 

 Customer satisfaction surveys (conducted annually by independent consultants for 
Calgary Transit) 
 

The City will work with The Province to refine this approach as required.  
 
 
 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 5 of 5 
 

8. Risks and ways to manage risks 
There are no material risks involved in this proposal.  The City of Calgary will provide the 
operating funds required to support these investments.  This project is within the established 
areas of Calgary and is tightly integrated with the rest of the Calgary Transit bus and LRT 
network, so there are no significant risks associated with the ridership (and revenue) expected 
from the service improvements. 
 
9. Total Project Costs (including non-eligible costs) 
The total project cost for this initial submission is as follows:  

Design: $10,000,000

Land: $40,000,000

Construction: $48,000,000

Total cost for this project: $98,000,000

 
 
10. Anticipated cash flow 
The estimated cash flow, including matching funds, is as follows: 

Timeframe/Stage 
Local 

Matching 
Funds 

Provincial 
GreenTRIP 

Funds 
Yearly Total 

2015  $3,333,334  $6,666,666  $10,000,000 

2016  $3,333,334  $6,666,666  $10,000,000 

2017 $6,666,667   $13,333,333 $20,000,000

2018 $6,666,667   $13,333,333 $20,000,000

2019 $10,000,000 $20,000,000 $30,000,000

2020 $2,666,667 $5,333,333 $8,000,000

  
Funding for the project was approved by Calgary’s City Council under the Investing in Mobility 
capital plan (report TT2014-0308).  This funding will be used as the local match for the 
Province’s GreenTRIP grant funding. 
 
11. Compliant with provincial regulations 
This project will comply with all applicable provincial regulations (exemptions necessary for 
delivery of public transit service in Calgary have been obtained by Calgary Transit and will be 
renewed as required). 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 1 of 5 
 

LRT Traction Power Upgrades: Four-car Train Upgrades 
Business Case  
GreenTRIP Project Submission 
City of Calgary 
 
1. Introduction 
Calgary proposes six major projects that will increase public transit use in the Calgary region, 
taking cars off our roads and reducing greenhouse gas emissions, while also strengthening 
regional and local communities through integration with land use and other transportation 
projects.  The City of Calgary proposed projects are: 

 17 Avenue Southeast Transitway 
 LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades  
 North Crosstown BRT 
 South Crosstown BRT 
 Southwest Transitway 
 West LRT Land 

The project costs are outlined below: 

17 Avenue Southeast Transitway:  $98,000,000

LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades:  $36,000,000

North Crosstown BRT:  $50,000,000

South Crosstown BRT: $20,000,000

Southwest Transitway $40,000,000

West LRT Land Confidential

Total project cost for submission:  
$244,000,000

+Confidential

 

In support of this application, Calgary’s City Council approved Investing in Mobility – NW-HUB 
and Traction Power Upgrades (C2014-0660) at the Combined Meeting of Council, held on 
September 8, 2014:  

11.1.1 INVESTING IN MOBILITY – NW-HUB AND TRACTION POWER UPGRADES, 
C2014-0660 

 ADOPT, Moved by Councillor Chabot, Seconded by Councillor Sutherland, that the 
Administration Recommendations contained in Report C2014-0660 be adopted, as follows: 

 That Council: 

 1.   Include Traction Power Upgrade (funded) and NW-HUB (unfunded) as part of the 

 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 2 of 5 
 

updated 10-year Investing in Mobility plan, informing Action Plan 2015-2018; and 

 2.   Identify funding sources for the NW-HUB project as part of the NW-HUB Transit 
Enhancement Study.  

  
  

CARRIED 

 

This business case submission provides project-specific details for the LRT Traction Power: 
Four-car Train Upgrades. 
 

2.  Needs 
Calgary’s application for funding to upgrade the LRT traction power system is based on the 
need to attract choice riders and accommodate demand from population and employment 
growth on the existing LRT network.  Demand for public transit service in the peak period is 
growing on the existing LRT network due to population and economic growth, transit-oriented 
developments, post-secondary institution growth, downtown employment growth, and growth in 
regional municipalities.  There is a need to increase the capacity of the existing system and this 
project is required to increase capacity while maintaining reliability and reducing unplanned 
interruptions of service.  

 

3. Benefits 
Upgrading the LRT traction power system will allow Calgary Transit to meet current and future 
ridership demand on the system and facilitate four-car train operation. Four-car trains will enable 
Calgary Transit to continue to expand LRT service capacity and provide greater passenger 
comfort, leading to increased ridership and reduced greenhouse gas emissions. The additional 
vehicles are required to support growing regional transit travel to Calgary, capturing demand 
from local bus services, walking, cycling, park and ride lots and planned regional intercity 
express bus connections to the existing network.   

The additional vehicles that can be put into service on the LRT network will result in increased 
ridership, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions (by diverting travellers from private 
passenger vehicles) and reducing vehicle kilometres travelled on Alberta’s roads.  Estimates of 
these benefits for this project are: 

 11,000,000 annual passengers carried 
 6,600,000 annual auto trips diverted from the road network 
 20,000 annual tonnes of CO2 reduced 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 3 of 5 
 

All of Calgary Transit’s light rail vehicles are powered entirely by wind-generated electricity, 
making every trip on the LRT emissions free.  The CTrain was the first public LRT system in 
North America to power its train fleet with wind-generated electricity.   

The proposed investments also benefit Albertans by providing mobility for youth, post-
secondary students, seniors, persons with disabilities and those unable to drive, offering 
opportunities for social inclusion and access to community support services, and encouraging 
immigration by offering mobility choices to new arrivals. 

 

4. Operational Sustainability 

The net operating cost of the LRT traction power upgrades will be supported by The City of 
Calgary’s annual operating budget.   

 

5. Integration with other transportation projects 

Upgrades to the LRT traction power system will compliment ongoing projects designed to 
improve the customer experience.  Next train information is now available at LRT stations, 
including real time up-to-the-minute arrivals information.  In the coming months, the same 
information will be available on Calgary Transit’s website, and mobile devices.  Electronic fare 
collection will also be introduced in the coming months. 

Investments have been made to extend LRT platforms on the existing system to facilitate four-
car train operation.  These platform extensions will be complete by the end of 2014.  Other 
recent investments on the existing LRT network include extensions on the Northeast LRT 
(McKnight-Westwinds to Saddletowne), Northwest LRT (Crowfoot to Tuscany), and the West 
LRT (downtown to 69 Street SW). 

The additional vehicles that can be operated with the traction power upgrades directly support 
regional travel by providing support for existing LRT park and ride demand and future transit 
services from Cochrane and Okotoks/High River that will connect to the LRT network via 
suburban stations (Somerset-Bridlewood on the South LRT, and Crowfoot on the Northwest 
LRT).     

The proposal reflects long-term planning in Calgary.  This project will support the Primary 
Transit Network, a key element of the Calgary Transportation Plan.  The Primary Transit 
Network fulfills the need to connect more places more directly, increase the speed, frequency 
and reliability of public transit service, and support intensification in station areas. 

 

 

 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 4 of 5 
 

6. How benefits will be realized 
The benefits of these public transit improvements will be realized through gains in transit 
ridership, mode shifts from private automobile use, and relief for peak period LRT congestion, 
leading to increased ridership on the transit network. The traction power upgrades will provide 
customers with a more reliable service that will be less likely to experience unplanned service 
interruptions.  

The City of Calgary is collaborating with communities and private sector developers to enable 
transit oriented development to occur along the existing LRT network.  These efforts will ensure 
benefits are realized long into the future, regardless of the immediate need for additional 
capacity for peak period travel. 

 

7. How benefits will be verified 
The City of Calgary will verify the benefits realized through these investments through on-board 
surveys, ridership counts at LRT platforms, and periodic reviews of the improvements in service 
(e.g. customer satisfaction, service reliability) resulting from these improvements.  Calgary 
Transit regularly reviews the effectiveness of the introduction of new service and facilities.  
Platform counts have been conducted at every station on the existing LRT network to serve as a 
baseline for future monitoring.  Electronic fare collection systems will provide additional detail to 
support this analysis when introduced. 

Measures of benefits will include: 

 Auto trips and reduced congestion (identified through changes in ridership and 
inferences from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at 
typical stations) 

 Reduced greenhouse gas emissions (identified through changes in ridership, inferences 
from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at typical 
stations, and trip length/vehicle fleet/emissions assumptions suitable for the Calgary 
area) 

 Customer satisfaction surveys (conducted annually by independent consultants for 
Calgary Transit) 

The City will work with The Province to refine this approach as required.  

 

8. Risks and ways to manage risks 
There are no material risks involved in this proposal.  The City of Calgary will provide the 
operating funds required to support these investments.  The existing LRT network is within the 
established areas of Calgary and is tightly integrated with the rest of the Calgary Transit 
network, so there are no significant risks associated with the ridership (and revenue) expected 
from the service improvements. 

 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 5 of 5 
 

9. Total Project Costs (including non-eligible costs) 
The total project cost for this initial submission is as follows:  

LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades: $36,000,000

Total cost for this project: $36,000,000

 

 

10. Anticipated cash flow 
The estimated cash flow, including matching funds, is as follows: 

Timeframe/Stage 
Local 

Matching 
Funds 

Provincial 
GreenTRIP 

Funds 
Yearly Total 

2015  $4,000,000  $8,000,000  $12,000,000 

2016 $4,000,000 $8,000,000 $12,000,000

2017 $4,000,000   $8,000,000 $12,000,000

  

Funding for the project was approved by Calgary’s City Council under the Investing in Mobility 
capital plan (report C2014-0660).  This funding will be used as the local match for the Province’s 
GreenTRIP grant funding. 
 
 
11. Compliant with provincial regulations 
This project will comply with all applicable provincial regulations (exemptions necessary for 
delivery of public transit service in Calgary have been obtained by Calgary Transit and will be 
renewed as required). 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 1 of 5 
 

North Crosstown Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) 
Business Case  
GreenTRIP Project Submission 
City of Calgary 
 
1. Introduction 
Calgary proposes six major projects that will increase public transit use in the Calgary region, 
taking cars off our roads and reducing greenhouse gas emissions, while also strengthening 
regional and local communities through integration with land use and other transportation 
projects.  The City of Calgary proposed projects are: 

 17 Avenue Southeast Transitway 
 LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades  
 North Crosstown BRT 
 South Crosstown BRT 
 Southwest Transitway 
 West LRT Land 

The project costs are outlined below: 

17 Avenue Southeast Transitway:  $98,000,000

LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades:  $36,000,000

North Crosstown BRT:  $50,000,000

South Crosstown BRT: $20,000,000

Southwest Transitway $40,000,000

West LRT Land Confidential

Total project cost for submission:  
$244,000,000

+Confidential

 
 
In support of this application, Calgary’s City Council approved Investing in Mobility Update 
(TT2014-0308) at the Regular Meeting of Council, held on May 26, 2014:  

ADOPT, AS AMENDED, Moved by Councillor Keating, Seconded by Councillor Carra, that 
SPC on Transportation and Transit Recommendations 1, 3 as amended, and 4, contained in 
Report TT2014-0308 be adopted, as amended, as follows: 
  
That Council: 
  
1.    Reconsider Council’s decision contained in the minutes of the 2013 March 04 Combined 

Meeting of Council, with respect to Recommendation 1, Operations Control Centre only, 
contained in report TT2013-0112. 

  
3.    Approve the funded and unfunded transportation infrastructure lists outlined in 

Attachment 2, with the exception of the Traction Power Upgrade project and the 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 2 of 5 
 

NW-HUB West Campus Mobility project; and
  

4.    Direct Administration to use Attachment 2 as the basis for developing the Transportation 
Department’s capital budget for Action Plan 2015-2018. 

  
  

CARRIED 
 

Attachment 2 of report TT2014-0308 reads, in part, as shown below (relevant projects 
highlighted): 

This business case submission provides project-specific details for the North Crosstown BRT. 
 
 
2.  Needs 
Calgary’s application for funding to design and construct the North Crosstown BRT is based on 
the need to attract choice riders, accommodate demand from population and employment 
growth on the existing transit network, and provide improved crosstown routes to reduce 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 3 of 5 
 

customer travel times and LRT crowding.  Demand for public transit service in the peak period is 
growing on the existing LRT network due to population and economic growth, transit-oriented 
developments, post-secondary institution growth, downtown employment growth, and growth in 
regional municipalities.  There is a need to increase the capacity of the transit system and this 
project will increase capacity on the network, and improve the customer experience. 
 
 
3. Benefits 

This project will allow Calgary Transit to continue to expand transit service capacity and provide 
greater passenger comfort, leading to increased ridership and reduced greenhouse gas 
emissions. The North Crosstown BRT will support crosstown travel taking pressure off the LRT 
system in the downtown, increase passenger capacity from local bus services, and improve 
connections to walking and cycling infrastructure. 

This project will result in increased ridership, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions (by 
diverting travellers from private passenger vehicles) and reducing vehicle kilometres travelled 
on Alberta’s roads.  Estimates of the benefits for this project are: 
 

 14,000,000 annual passengers carried 
 2,100,000 annual auto trips diverted from the road network 
 25,000 annual tonnes of CO2 reduced 

 
Calgary Transit is expanding the fleet of compressed natural gas buses which will produce 
fewer GHG emissions than the current clean diesel fleet. The proposed investments also benefit 
Albertans by providing mobility for youth, post-secondary students, seniors, persons with 
disabilities and those unable to drive, offering opportunities for social inclusion and access to 
community support services, and encouraging immigration by offering mobility choices to new 
arrivals. 
 
 
4. Operational Sustainability 

The net operating cost of this project will be supported by The City of Calgary’s annual 
operating budget.   
 
 
5. Integration with other transportation projects 
Implementation of the North Crosstown BRT will compliment ongoing projects designed to 
increase passenger capacity, and improve the customer experience.  Next train information is 
now available at LRT stations, including real time up-to-the-minute arrivals information.  In the 
coming months, the same information will be available on Calgary Transit’s website, and mobile 
devices.  Electronic fare collection will also be introduced in the coming months. Calgary’s 
transitways will provide a rapid transit experience with punctual schedules, and fast, frequent 
bus services. 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 4 of 5 
 

 
Investments have been made to extend LRT platforms on the existing system to facilitate four-
car train operation.  These platform extensions will be complete by the end of 2014.  Other 
recent investments on the existing LRT network include extensions on the Northeast LRT 
(McKnight-Westwinds to Saddletowne), Northwest LRT (Crowfoot to Tuscany), and the West 
LRT (downtown to 69 Street SW). 

This proposal reflects long-term planning in Calgary.  The project will support the Primary 
Transit Network, a key element of the Calgary Transportation Plan.  The Primary Transit 
Network fulfills the need to connect more places more directly, increase the speed, frequency 
and reliability of public transit service, and support intensification in station areas. 
 
 
6. How benefits will be realized 
The benefits of these public transit improvements will be realized through gains in transit 
ridership, mode shifts from private automobile use, and relief for peak period LRT congestion, 
leading to increased ridership on the existing network. This project will provide customers with 
more options to use public transit in Calgary.  
 
The City of Calgary is collaborating with communities and private sector developers to enable 
transit oriented development to occur along the existing transit network.  These efforts will 
ensure benefits are realized long into the future, regardless of the immediate need for additional 
capacity for peak period travel. 
 
 
7. How benefits will be verified 
The City of Calgary will verify the benefits realized through these investments through on-board 
surveys, ridership counts, and periodic reviews of the improvements in service (e.g. customer 
satisfaction, service reliability) resulting from these improvements.  Calgary Transit regularly 
reviews the effectiveness of the introduction of new service and facilities.  Ridership counts are 
conducted twice per year to serve as a baseline for future monitoring.  Electronic fare collection 
systems will provide additional detail to support this analysis when introduced. 
Measures of benefits will include: 

 Auto trips and reduced congestion (identified through changes in ridership and 
inferences from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at 
typical stations) 

 Reduced greenhouse gas emissions (identified through changes in ridership, inferences 
from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at typical 
stations, and trip length/vehicle fleet/emissions assumptions suitable for the Calgary 
area) 

 Customer satisfaction surveys (conducted annually by independent consultants for 
Calgary Transit) 

The City will work with The Province to refine this approach as required.  



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 5 of 5 
 

8. Risks and ways to manage risks 
There are no material risks involved in this proposal.  The City of Calgary will provide the 
operating funds required to support these investments.  The existing transit network is within the 
established areas of Calgary and is tightly integrated with the rest of the Calgary Transit 
network, so there are no significant risks associated with the ridership (and revenue) expected 
from the service improvements. 
 
 
9. Total Project Costs (including non-eligible costs) 
The total project cost for this initial submission is as follows:  

Design:  $7,500,000

Construction:  $42,500,000

Total project cost for submission:  $50,000,000

 
 
10. Anticipated cash flow 
The estimated cash flow, including matching funds, is as follows: 

Timeframe/Stage 
Local 

Matching 
Funds 

Provincial 
GreenTRIP 

Funds 
Yearly Total 

2015  $1,250,000  $2,500,000  $3,750,000 

2016  $1,250,000  $2,500,000  $3,750,000 

2017 $7,084,000   $14,166,000 $21,250,000

2018 $7,084,000   $14,166,000 $21,250,000

 Funding for the project was approved by Calgary’s City Council under the Investing in Mobility 
Update (TT2014-0308).  This funding will be used as the local match for the Province’s 
GreenTRIP grant funding. 
 
 
11. Compliant with provincial regulations 
The projects will comply with all applicable provincial regulations (exemptions necessary for 
delivery of public transit service in Calgary have been obtained by Calgary Transit and will be 
renewed as required). 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 1 of 5 
 

South Crosstown Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) 
Business Case  
GreenTRIP Project Submission 
City of Calgary 
 
1. Introduction 
Calgary proposes six major projects that will increase public transit use in the Calgary region, 
taking cars off our roads and reducing greenhouse gas emissions, while also strengthening the 
regional and local communities through integration with land use and other transportation 
projects.  The City of Calgary proposed projects are: 

 17 Avenue Southeast Transitway 
 LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades  
 North Crosstown BRT 
 South Crosstown BRT 
 Southwest Transitway 
 West LRT Land 

The project costs are outlined below: 

17 Avenue Southeast Transitway:  $98,000,000

LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades:  $36,000,000

North Crosstown BRT:  $50,000,000

South Crosstown BRT: $20,000,000

Southwest Transitway: $40,000,000

West LRT Land: Confidential

Total project cost for submission:  
$244,000,000

+Confidential

 
In support of this application, Calgary’s City Council approved Investing in Mobility Update 
(TT2014-0308) at the Regular Meeting of Council, held on May 26, 2014:  

ADOPT, AS AMENDED, Moved by Councillor Keating, Seconded by Councillor Carra, that 
SPC on Transportation and Transit Recommendations 1, 3 as amended, and 4, contained in 
Report TT2014-0308 be adopted, as amended, as follows: 
  
That Council: 
  
1.    Reconsider Council’s decision contained in the minutes of the 2013 March 04 Combined 

Meeting of Council, with respect to Recommendation 1, Operations Control Centre only, 
contained in report TT2013-0112. 

  
3.    Approve the funded and unfunded transportation infrastructure lists outlined in 

Attachment 2, with the exception of the Traction Power Upgrade project and the 
NW-HUB West Campus Mobility project; and



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 2 of 5 
 

  
4.    Direct Administration to use Attachment 2 as the basis for developing the Transportation 

Department’s capital budget for Action Plan 2015-2018. 
  

  
CARRIED 

 

Attachment 2 of report TT2014-0308 reads, in part, as shown below (relevant projects 
highlighted): 

This business case submission provides project-specific details for the South Crosstown BRT. 
 
 
2.  Needs 
Calgary’s application for funding to design and construct the South Crosstown BRT is based on 
the need to attract choice riders, accommodate demand from population and employment 
growth on the existing transit network, and provide improved crosstown routes to reduce 
customer travel times and LRT crowding.  Demand for public transit service in the peak period is 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 3 of 5 
 

growing on the existing LRT network due to population and economic growth, transit-oriented 
developments, post-secondary institution growth, downtown employment growth, and growth in 
regional municipalities.  There is a need to increase the capacity of the existing system and this 
project is required to increase capacity, and improve the customer experience. 
 
 
3. Benefits 
This project will allow Calgary Transit to continue to expand transit service capacity and provide 
greater passenger comfort, leading to increased ridership and reduced greenhouse gas 
emissions. The South Crosstown BRT will support crosstown travel taking pressure off the LRT 
system in the downtown, increase passenger capacity from local bus services, and improve 
connections to walking and cycling infrastructure. 

This project will result in increased ridership, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions (by 
diverting travellers from private passenger vehicles) and reducing vehicle kilometres travelled 
on Alberta’s roads.  Calgary Transit is expanding the fleet of compressed natural gas buses 
which will produce fewer GHG emissions than the current clean diesel fleet.  Estimates of the 
benefits for this project are: 
 

 9,000,000 annual passengers carried 
 1,500,000 annual auto trips diverted from the road network 
 21,000 annual tonnes of CO2 reduced 

 
The proposed investments also benefit Albertans by providing mobility for youth, post-
secondary students, seniors, persons with disabilities and those unable to drive, offering 
opportunities for social inclusion and access to community support services, and encouraging 
immigration by offering mobility choices to new arrivals. 
 
 
4. Operational Sustainability 
The net operating cost of this project will be supported by The City of Calgary’s annual 
operating budget.   
 
 
5. Integration with other transportation projects 
Construction of the South Crosstown BRT will compliment ongoing projects designed to 
increase passenger capacity, and improve the customer experience.  Next train information is 
now available at LRT stations, including real time up-to-the-minute arrivals information.  In the 
coming months, the same information will be available on Calgary Transit’s website, and mobile 
devices.  Electronic fare collection will also be introduced in the coming months. The future 
transitways will provide a rapid transit experience with punctual schedules, and fast, frequent 
bus services. 
 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 4 of 5 
 

Investments have been made to extend LRT platforms on the existing system to facilitate four-
car train operation.  These platform extensions will be complete by the end of 2014.  Other 
recent investments on the existing LRT network include extensions on the Northeast LRT 
(McKnight-Westwinds to Saddletowne), Northwest LRT (Crowfoot to Tuscany), and the West 
LRT (downtown to 69 Street SW). 

The proposal reflects long-term planning in Calgary.  The project will support the Primary Transit 
Network, a key element of the Calgary Transportation Plan.  The Primary Transit Network fulfills 
the need to connect more places more directly, increase the speed, frequency and reliability of 
public transit service, and support intensification in station areas. 
 
 
6. How benefits will be realized 
The benefits of these public transit improvements will be realized through gains in transit 
ridership, mode shifts from private automobile use, and relief for peak period LRT congestion, 
leading to increased ridership on the existing network. This project will provide customers with 
more options to use public transit in Calgary.  
 
The City of Calgary is collaborating with communities and private sector developers to enable 
transit oriented development to occur along the existing transit network.  These efforts will 
ensure benefits are realized long into the future, regardless of the immediate need for additional 
capacity for peak period travel. 
 
 
7. How benefits will be verified 
The City of Calgary will verify the benefits realized through these investments through on-board 
surveys, ridership counts, and periodic reviews of the improvements in service (e.g. customer 
satisfaction, service reliability) resulting from these improvements.  Calgary Transit regularly 
reviews the effectiveness of the introduction of new service and facilities.  Ridership counts are 
conducted twice per year to serve as a baseline for future monitoring.  Electronic fare collection 
systems will provide additional detail to support this analysis when introduced. 
Measures of benefits will include: 

 Auto trips and reduced congestion (identified through changes in ridership and 
inferences from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at 
typical stations) 

 Reduced greenhouse gas emissions (identified through changes in ridership, inferences 
from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at typical 
stations, and trip length/vehicle fleet/emissions assumptions suitable for the Calgary 
area) 

 Customer satisfaction surveys (conducted annually by independent consultants for 
Calgary Transit) 

The City will work with The Province to refine this approach as required.  
 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 5 of 5 
 

 
8. Risks and ways to manage risks 
There are no material risks involved in this proposal.  The City of Calgary will provide the 
operating funds required to support these investments.  The existing transit network is within the 
established areas of Calgary and is tightly integrated with the rest of the Calgary Transit 
network, so there are no significant risks associated with the ridership (and revenue) expected 
from the service improvements. 
 
 
9. Total Project Costs (including non-eligible costs) 
The total project cost for this initial submission is as follows:  

Functional plan/design:  $4,000,000

Construction:  $16,000,000

Total project cost for submission:  $20,000,000

 

10. Anticipated cash flow 
The estimated cash flow, including matching funds, is as follows: 

Timeframe/Stage 
Local 

Matching 
Funds 

Provincial 
GreenTRIP 

Funds 
Yearly Total 

2015  $666,667  $1,333,333  $2,000,000 

2016  $666,667  $1,333,333  $2,000,000 

2017 $2,666,667   $5,333,333 $8,000,000

2018 $2,666,667   $5,333,333 $8,000,000

  

Funding for the project was approved by Calgary’s City Council under the Investing in Mobility 
Update (TT2014-0308).  This funding will be used as the local match for the Province’s 
GreenTRIP grant funding. 

 
11. Compliant with provincial regulations 
This project will comply with all applicable provincial regulations (exemptions necessary for 
delivery of public transit service in Calgary have been obtained by Calgary Transit and will be 
renewed as required). 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 1 of 5 
 

Southwest Transitway 
Business Case  
GreenTRIP Project Submission 
City of Calgary 
 
1. Introduction 
Calgary proposes six major projects that will increase public transit use in the Calgary region, 
taking cars off our roads and reducing greenhouse gas emissions, while also strengthening the 
regional and local communities through integration with land use and other transportation 
projects.  The City of Calgary proposed projects are: 

 17 Avenue Southeast Transitway 
 LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades  
 North Crosstown BRT 
 South Crosstown BRT 
 Southwest Transitway 
 West LRT Land 

The project costs are outlined below: 

17 Avenue Southeast Transitway:  $98,000,000

LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades:  $36,000,000

North Crosstown BRT:  $50,000,000

South Crosstown BRT: $20,000,000

Southwest Transitway: $40,000,000

West LRT Land: Confidential

Total project cost for submission:  
$244,000,000

+Confidential

 
In support of this application, Calgary’s City Council approved Investing in Mobility Update 
(TT2014-0308) at the Regular Meeting of Council, held on May 26, 2014:  

ADOPT, AS AMENDED, Moved by Councillor Keating, Seconded by Councillor Carra, that 
SPC on Transportation and Transit Recommendations 1, 3 as amended, and 4, contained in 
Report TT2014-0308 be adopted, as amended, as follows: 
  
That Council: 
  
1.    Reconsider Council’s decision contained in the minutes of the 2013 March 04 Combined 

Meeting of Council, with respect to Recommendation 1, Operations Control Centre only, 
contained in report TT2013-0112. 

  
3.    Approve the funded and unfunded transportation infrastructure lists outlined in 

Attachment 2, with the exception of the Traction Power Upgrade project and the 
NW-HUB West Campus Mobility project; and



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 2 of 5 
 

  
4.    Direct Administration to use Attachment 2 as the basis for developing the Transportation 

Department’s capital budget for Action Plan 2015-2018. 
  

  
CARRIED 

 

Attachment 2 of report TT2014-0308 reads, in part, as shown below (relevant projects 
highlighted): 

This business case submission provides project-specific details for the Southwest Transitway. 
 
 
2.  Needs 
Calgary’s application for funding to design and construct the Southwest Transitway is based on 
the need to attract choice riders, accommodate demand from population and employment 
growth on the existing transit network, and provide improved crosstown routes to reduce 
customer travel times and LRT crowding.  Demand for public transit service in the peak period is 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 3 of 5 
 

growing on the existing LRT network due to population and economic growth, transit-oriented 
developments, post-secondary institution growth, downtown employment growth, and growth in 
regional municipalities.  There is a need to increase the capacity of the existing system and this 
project is required to increase capacity on the transit network, and improving the customer 
experience. 
 
 
3. Benefits 
This project will allow Calgary Transit to continue to expand transit service capacity and provide 
greater passenger comfort, leading to increased ridership and reduced greenhouse gas 
emissions. The Southwest Transitway will support travel to and from communities in Calgary 
southwest, taking pressure off the busy south LRT line, increase passenger capacity from local 
bus services, and improve connections to walking and cycling infrastructure. 

This project will result in increased ridership, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions (by 
diverting travellers from private passenger vehicles) and reducing vehicle kilometres travelled 
on Alberta’s roads.  Calgary Transit is expanding the fleet of compressed natural gas buses 
which will produce fewer GHG emissions than the current clean diesel fleet.  Estimates of the 
benefits for this project are: 
 

 12,000,000 annual passengers carried 
 1,800,000 annual auto trips diverted from the road network 
 16,000 annual tonnes of CO2 reduced 

 
The proposed investments also benefit Albertans by providing mobility for youth, post-
secondary students, seniors, persons with disabilities and those unable to drive, offering 
opportunities for social inclusion and access to community support services, and encouraging 
immigration by offering mobility choices to new arrivals. 
 
 
4. Operational Sustainability 
The net operating cost of this project will be supported by The City of Calgary’s annual 
operating budget.   
 
 
5. Integration with other transportation projects 
Construction of the Southwest Transitway will compliment ongoing projects designed to 
increase passenger capacity, and improve the customer experience.  Next train information is 
now available at LRT stations, including real time up-to-the-minute arrivals information.  In the 
coming months, the same information will be available on Calgary Transit’s website, and mobile 
devices.  Electronic fare collection will also be introduced in the coming months. The future 
transitways will provide a rapid transit experience with punctual schedules, and fast, frequent 
bus services. 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 4 of 5 
 

Investments have been made to extend LRT platforms on the existing system to facilitate four-
car train operation.  These platform extensions will be complete by the end of 2014.  Other 
recent investments on the existing LRT network include extensions on the Northeast LRT 
(McKnight-Westwinds to Saddletowne), Northwest LRT (Crowfoot to Tuscany), and the West 
LRT (downtown to 69 Street SW). 

The proposal reflects long-term planning in Calgary.  The project will support the Primary Transit 
Network, a key element of the Calgary Transportation Plan.  The Primary Transit Network fulfills 
the need to connect more places more directly, increase the speed, frequency and reliability of 
public transit service, and support intensification in station areas. 
 
 
6. How benefits will be realized 
The benefits of these public transit improvements will be realized through gains in transit 
ridership, mode shifts from private automobile use, and relief for peak period LRT congestion, 
leading to increased ridership on the existing network. This project will provide customers with 
more options to use public transit in Calgary.  
 
The City of Calgary is collaborating with communities and private sector developers to enable 
transit oriented development to occur along the existing transit network.  These efforts will 
ensure benefits are realized long into the future, regardless of the immediate need for additional 
capacity for peak period travel. 
 
 
7. How benefits will be verified 
The City of Calgary will verify the benefits realized through these investments through on-board 
surveys, ridership counts, and periodic reviews of the improvements in service (e.g. customer 
satisfaction, service reliability) resulting from these improvements.  Calgary Transit regularly 
reviews the effectiveness of the introduction of new service and facilities.  Ridership counts are 
conducted twice per year to serve as a baseline for future monitoring.  Electronic fare collection 
systems will provide additional detail to support this analysis when introduced. 
Measures of benefits will include: 

 Auto trips and reduced congestion (identified through changes in ridership and 
inferences from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at 
typical stations) 

 Reduced greenhouse gas emissions (identified through changes in ridership, inferences 
from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at typical 
stations, and trip length/vehicle fleet/emissions assumptions suitable for the Calgary 
area) 

 Customer satisfaction surveys (conducted annually by independent consultants for 
Calgary Transit) 

The City will work with The Province to refine this approach as required.  
 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 5 of 5 
 

8. Risks and ways to manage risks 
There are no material risks involved in this proposal.  The City of Calgary will provide the 
operating funds required to support these investments.  The existing transit network is within the 
established areas of Calgary and is tightly integrated with the rest of the Calgary Transit 
network, so there are no significant risks associated with the ridership (and revenue) expected 
from the service improvements. 
 
 
9. Total Project Costs (including non-eligible costs) 
The total project cost for this initial submission is as follows:  

Design:  $5,000,000

Construction:  $35,000,000

Total project cost for submission:  $40,000,000

 

10. Anticipated cash flow 
The estimated cash flow, including matching funds, is as follows: 

Timeframe/Stage 
Local 

Matching 
Funds 

Provincial 
GreenTRIP 

Funds 
Yearly Total 

2015  $1,666,667  $3,333,333  $5,000,000 

2016  $1,666,667  $3,333,333  $5,000,000 

2017 $3,333,334   $6,666,666 $10,000,000

2018 $2,500,000   $5,000,000 $7,500,000

2019 $2,500,000   $5,000,000 $7,500,000

2020  $1,666,667  $3,333,333  $5,000,000 

  
Funding for the project was approved by Calgary’s City Council under the Investing in Mobility 
Update (TT2014-0308).  This funding will be used as the local match for the Province’s 
GreenTRIP grant funding. 
 
 
11. Compliant with provincial regulations 
This project will comply with all applicable provincial regulations (exemptions necessary for 
delivery of public transit service in Calgary have been obtained by Calgary Transit and will be 
renewed as required). 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 1 of 5 
 

West LRT Land 
Business Case  
GreenTRIP Project Submission 
City of Calgary 
 
1. Introduction 
Calgary proposes six major projects that will increase public transit use in the Calgary region, 
taking cars off our roads and reducing greenhouse gas emissions, while also strengthening the 
regional and local communities through integration with land use and other transportation 
projects.  The City of Calgary proposed projects are: 

 17 Avenue Southeast Transitway 
 LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades  
 North Crosstown BRT 
 South Crosstown BRT 
 Southwest Transitway 
 West LRT Land 

The project costs are outlined below: 

17 Avenue Southeast Transitway:  $98,000,000

LRT Traction Power: Four-car Train Upgrades:  $36,000,000

North Crosstown BRT:  $50,000,000

South Crosstown BRT: $20,000,000

Southwest Transitway $40,000,000

West LRT Land Confidential

Total project cost for submission:  
$244,000,000

+Confidential

 

The West LRT alignment extends eight kms from 11 Street SW in downtown Calgary to 69 
Street SW, and includes six stations.  West LRT connects to the LRT network on 7 Avenue SW, 
forming a continuous operating LRT line between Saddletowne Station in Northeast Calgary to 
69 Street SW Station. 

In support of this application, Calgary’s City Council also approved the following at its 2011 
November 14 meeting: 

“ADOPT, AS AMENDED, Moved by Alderman A. Chabot, Seconded by Alderman D. Hodges, 
that the Administration Recommendations contained in Report C2011-89 be adopted, as 
follows: 
 
…  
  



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 2 of 5 
 

2.         That Council direct Administration, following consultation with the Calgary Regional 
Partnership,  to make an application to the Province’s GreenTRIP program to fund a 
combination of $500 million for the West LRT project, $200 million for 50 LRVs and $12 
million for the SETWAY pre-design;  

  
3.         That Council direct Administration to leverage MSI funding from the West LRT project to 

fund the matching component of GreenTRIP and other underfunded Transportation 
projects; and 

  
4.         That Council direct Administration to present the results of the TIIP 2013-2022 

prioritization process to the SPC on Transportation and Transit no later than 2012 
December, with recommendations on application of the available MSI funds. 

  
5.         Direct Administration to develop a scoping document detailing the work needed to 

construct the Southeast 17 Corridor Transitway, including what is required for a 
corporate implementation plan with associated operating budget impacts, and report 
back to Council through the SPC on Transportation and Transit no later than 2012 April.” 

 

2.  Needs 
Calgary’s application for funding for West LRT land is based on the need to attract choice riders 
and accommodate demand from population and employment growth on the existing LRT 
network.  The West LRT project previously received GreenTRIP funding to assist with capital 
construction cost. 
 
West LRT addresses the need for public transportation through multi-modal integration: 

 Active modes (walking and cycling); 
 Feeder bus network aligned to serve West LRT stations; 
 Integrated BRT service to Mount Royal University; 
 Park and ride lots strategically located west of Sarcee Trail to provide 1,100 parking 

spaces; 
 Connections to other transportation terminals: Greyhound Terminal and a possible future 

commuter rail station at Sunalta;  
 Direct linkage with Northeast LRT and direct transfer opportunities to South and 

Northwest LRT service at downtown LRT station platforms 
 Connections to bus routes serving other areas of Calgary in the downtown. 

Demand for public transit service in the peak period is growing on the existing LRT network due 
to population and economic growth, transit-oriented developments, post-secondary institution 
growth, downtown employment growth, and growth in regional municipalities.  There is a need 
to increase the capacity of the existing system and this project is required to increase capacity 
while maintaining reliability and reducing unplanned interruptions of service.  
 
 
3. Benefits 
West LRT allows Calgary Transit to meet current and future ridership demand in Southwest 
Calgary.  West LRT is centrally located within the service area.  This was a key factor in the 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 3 of 5 
 

selection of this route since it provides the most convenient and shortest access to the greatest 
number of residents, employees and students in the area.  Bus routes were realigned with the 
opening of the LRT in 2012, to provide short and frequent trips to each of the new stations.  
Transit passenger travel times are reduced and fewer buses are required to serve this corridor, 
as the historic bus routes were replaced by faster and more efficient LRT service. 
West LRT has already shown increased transit ridership in southwest Calgary, thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions (by diverting travellers from private passenger vehicles) and 
reducing vehicle kilometres travelled on Alberta’s roads.   
 
Estimates of these benefits for this project are: 

 8,000,000 annual passengers carried 
 800,000 annual auto trips diverted from the road network 
 5,500 annual tonnes of CO2 reduced 

All of Calgary Transit’s light rail vehicles are powered entirely by wind-generated electricity, 
making every trip on the new vehicles emissions free.  The CTrain was the first public LRT 
system in North America to power its train fleet with wind-generated electricity.   

The proposed investments also benefit Albertans by providing mobility for youth, post-
secondary students, seniors, persons with disabilities and those unable to drive, offering 
opportunities for social inclusion and access to community support services, and encouraging 
immigration by offering mobility choices to new arrivals. 

Integration of land use planning has been a key part of the West LRT project.  Transit-oriented 
development will be realized quicker than with past LRT extensions as a result of 
comprehensive planning that was completed in conjunction with the pre-design.  As well, The 
City of Calgary is constructing a new office building as part of the new Westbrook Station.   
 
 
4. Operational Sustainability 
The net operating cost of this project will be supported by The City of Calgary’s annual 
operating budget.   
 
 
5. Integration with other transportation projects 
West LRT compliments ongoing projects designed to improve the customer experience.  Next 
train information is now available at LRT stations, including real time up-to-the-minute arrivals 
information.  In the coming months, the same information will be available on Calgary Transit’s 
website, and mobile devices.  Electronic fare collection will also be introduced in the coming 
months. 
 
Investments have been made to extend LRT platforms on the existing system to facilitate four-
car train operation.  These platform extensions will be complete by the end of 2014.  Other 
recent investments on the existing LRT network include extensions on the Northeast LRT 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 4 of 5 
 

(McKnight-Westwinds to Saddletowne), Northwest LRT (Crowfoot to Tuscany), and the West 
LRT (downtown to 69 Street SW). 

The proposal reflects long-term planning in Calgary.  The vehicles will support the Primary 
Transit Network, a key element of the Calgary Transportation Plan.  The Primary Transit 
Network fulfills the need to connect more places more directly, increase the speed, frequency 
and reliability of public transit service, and support intensification in station areas. 
 
 
6. How benefits will be realized 
The benefits of these public transit improvements have been realized through gains in transit 
ridership, mode shifts from private automobile use.  The City of Calgary is collaborating with 
communities and private sector developers to enable transit oriented development to occur 
along the existing LRT network.  These efforts will ensure benefits are realized long into the 
future, regardless of the immediate need for additional capacity for peak period travel. 
 
 
7. How benefits will be verified 
The City of Calgary will verify the benefits realized through these investments through on-board 
surveys, ridership counts at LRT platforms, and periodic reviews of the improvements in service 
(e.g. customer satisfaction, service reliability) resulting from these improvements.  Calgary 
Transit regularly reviews the effectiveness of the introduction of new service and facilities.  
Platform counts have been conducted at every station on the existing LRT network to serve as a 
baseline for future monitoring.  Electronic fare collection systems will provide additional detail to 
support this analysis when introduced. 
Measures of benefits will include: 

 Auto trips and reduced congestion (identified through changes in ridership and 
inferences from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at 
typical stations) 

 Reduced greenhouse gas emissions (identified through changes in ridership, inferences 
from survey data indicating the mode of travel formerly used by LRT riders at typical 
stations, and trip length/vehicle fleet/emissions assumptions suitable for the Calgary 
area) 

 Customer satisfaction surveys (conducted annually by independent consultants for 
Calgary Transit) 

The City will work with The Province to refine this approach as required.  
 
 
8. Risks and ways to manage risks 
There are no material risks involved in this proposal.  The City of Calgary will provide the 
operating funds required to support these investments.  The existing LRT network is within the 
established areas of Calgary and is tightly integrated with the rest of the Calgary Transit 



City of Calgary GreenTRIP Proposal – Business Case Page 5 of 5 
 

network, so there are no significant risks associated with the ridership (and revenue) expected 
from the service improvements. 
 
9. Total Project Costs (including non-eligible costs) 
The total project cost for this initial submission is as follows:  

West LRT Land: Confidential

Total cost for this project: Confidential

 
 
10. Anticipated cash flow 
The estimated cash flow, including matching funds, is as follows: 

Timeframe/Stage 
Local 

Matching 
Funds 

Provincial 
GreenTRIP 

Funds 
Yearly Total 

Confidential  

  
11. Compliant with provincial regulations 
This project will comply with all applicable provincial regulations (exemptions necessary for 
delivery of public transit service in Calgary have been obtained by Calgary Transit and will be 
renewed as required). 



November 2, 2014 Alberta Ministry of Transportation DRAFT-Calgary Regional Partnership 
Submission Transportation GreenTRIP Funding-
No. 2 

 

403-851-2509  Box 2093 Cochrane, Alberta T4C 1B8 www.calgaryregion.ca 

Wlrept-2014-11-02_Greentrip-Draft_60327019 (2).Docx 32 

Appendix C-Further details on the Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission GreenTRIP Program 
submission 
 



 
 

                  

 

 

GreenTRIP 

Green Transit Incentives Program 

Project Submission Form 

The Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP) is a one‐time capital 

funding program that supports public transit in Alberta.  This Alberta 

Transportation program provides Albertans with a wider range of 

sustainable public transit alternatives which helps increase transit 

ridership, reduce traffic congestion and thereby reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. 

Visit the Alberta Transportation website for more detailed information 

on eligibility criteria, business case and program guidelines: 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm 

 



 
   

     Updated April 7, 2014  2     
 

 

G
re
e
n
TR

IP
 –
 P
ro
je
ct
 S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 

 

Program Overview and General Guide 

Please review the Procedures and Guidelines and the Project/Cost Eligibility 
Criteria documents prior to submitting the proposal. 

 

Project Submission Deadline:  November 30, 2014 

   

Section A – Project Submission Overview/Applicant Information 

Name of municipality/organization  Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission 

Legal status of applicant  (if 
applicable) 

Commission 

Contact name and title  Steve Nelson, Acting GM, Operations Manager 

Phone number  403.762.0606 

Email address  steve.nelson@roamtransit.com 

Mailing address  221 Beaver Street, Box 338, Banff, Alberta T1L 1A5 

Fax number             
 

Project Information: Attach Business Case and supporting documentation 

Name of project  Canmore Local Service Implementation 

Project location/limits 

(if applicable) 
Town of Canmore 

Date of Submission  November 30, 2014 

Project description: Provide 
enough detail to understand 
project scope and magnitude 
(maximum of 250 words) 
Attach additional details as 
needed. 

This project includes the procurement of rolling stock, an Operations 
building, and bus stop infrastructure to support the implementation of a 

local transit system in the Town of Canmore. (Additional details are 
included in the business case.) 

Project Deliverables: Provide 
a brief summary of what the 
funding will be used for. 

This project includes the procurement of accessible buses, a 
storage/maintenance facility and bus stop infrastructure for Canmore 

local service. 



 
   

     Updated April 7, 2014  3     
 

 

G
re
e
n
TR

IP
 –
 P
ro
je
ct
 S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 

 

Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

January 2015 to February 2016 

 

Project Costs: Attach additional detail with submission 
Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A}  {B}  {C}  {D}  {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 

Eligible 

cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 
grants 

expected($) 

Non‐
provincial 
sources of 
funding ($)  Total Funding 

request under this 
grant program 

 

[A‐(B+C+D)] 

 

Fleet purchase 
with on‐board 
Technologies 

$735,000                                     

Operations 
Structures 

$7,600,000                                     

Transit hub 
and Bus Stop 
Infrastructure 

$6,200,000                                     

Total    $14,535,000  $            $            $            $9,689,031 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:               
 

Section B ‐ Project Outcomes and Benefits 

Please describe how your proposed public transit infrastructure project will align with the following 

municipal and provincial priorities. 

Provincial Priority 
Describe how the provincial priority 

applies to this project. 
Describe how this project supports 

the provincial priority. 

Project will support “The 
Building Alberta Plan” which 
includes capital funding for 
“Investing in Families and 
Communities”. 

The province would be investing for the 
long‐term in this project. Canmore is a 
diverse community and the 
implementation of transit will assist all 
residents with transportation choices 
servicing existing community centres, 
facilities, and athletic centres.  

 

This project will improve the 
competitiveness of public transit with 
the private vehicle and will provide local 
residents a travel alternative to reduce 
their overall household transportation 
costs by using public transit for 
more of their daily trip requirements.  
  

Project will contribute to a 
safe and world‐class 
transportation system that 
supports regional and 
provincial economic 
development and provides 
Alberta with the most 
advanced infrastructure in 

Supporting and investing in accessible, 
modern transit initiatives that integrate 
with the existing Roam regional transit 
system, enhances the province’s social, 
economic, sustainability and 
environmental profile. 

 

A Canmore local service will encourage 
both local and regional mobility within 
the town of Canmore, as well as the 
town of Banff.  This will improve labour 
mobility and provide new opportunities 
for residents that require alternative  
means of transportation outside of the 
private vehicle. This improvement in 
mobility will provide regional economic 



 
   

     Updated April 7, 2014  4     
 

 

G
re
e
n
TR

IP
 –
 P
ro
je
ct
 S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 

 

Section C ‐ Supporting Documentation and Attachments 

List the attachments that support this submission 
   

   

   

   

   

Submission Address:   

North America. 

 

spin‐offs as employers will have 
improved access to labour in both 
Canmore and Banff. 

Project complements 
Alberta’s return to 
prosperity and contributes 
to a strong foundation for 
continued economic 
strength. 

 

Investment in public transit is a long‐
term vision with sound social, economic 
and environmental benefits. The 
Province’s commitment with the 
GreenTRIP Fund addresses the growth 
and sustainability challenges faced by 
municipalities today and into the future. 

For Alberta to establish a strong 
foundation for economic success future 
challenges must be identified and 
proactively analyzed and solutions 
implemented. Public transit supports 
economic mobility and thus economic 
and business development for Alberta’s 
future.  

Canmore local service implementation is 
an important component of the 
Canmore Transportation Master Plan 
which identifies the need to improve 
town wide bicycle and pedestrian route 
systems and a decrease in reliance on 
car use. 

  

Project aligns with Provincial 
Land‐Use Framework, which 
supports regional planning 
for key infrastructure, such 
as transit. 

 

The investment in local transit service in 
Canmore supports a more efficient and 
sustainable land use pattern in the 
Town, which in turn supports the 
Provincial Land‐Use Framework. 

This transit initiatives support Council’s 
strategic priorities for Sustainable 
Transportation as identified in the 
Canmore’s 2014 Integrated 
Transportation Master Plan.  

Project will advance the 
province’s climate change 
strategy by increasing public 
transit use, reducing 
congestion, getting cars off 
roads and thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions 

 

One of the benefits of investing in public 
transit is the reduction of the 
environmental impacts of urban travel. 
A modern, accessible regional transit 
service will deliver positive outcomes as 
they relate to the province’s climate 
change strategy including an overall 
reduction in GHG emissions and 
reduced congestion on existing 
roadways.  

 

Investing in a local transit service will 
have a direct result on the number of 
vehicles on the road. The Banff local 
service and Bow valley regional service 
has been very successful to date and 
investment in a Canmore local service 
will remove vehicles traveling 
throughout the Bow valley thus 
reducing GHG emissions.  

 



 
   

     Updated April 7, 2014  5     
 

 

G
re
e
n
TR

IP
 –
 P
ro
je
ct
 S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 

 

ATTENTION:  GreenTRIP 
ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
2nd Floor, Twin Atria Building 
4999 – 98 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB   T6B 2X3 
 
TEL: 780‐415‐2148 
FAX: 780‐427‐0783     

 

 

 

Submission Certification 

 

   

Signature  Date 

 

 

   

Signature  Date 

<Insert title of signature required>  <Insert title of signature required> 

 

Legal Statements 

The personal information being collected on this form will be used to administer GreenTRIP.  The personal 

information is being collected under the authority of section 33(c) of the Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act and will be managed in accordance with the privacy provisions in the FOIP 

Act.  If you have any questions concerning the collection of this information, please contact Susan Fox, 

FOIP Coordinator, 780‐422‐0021. 

Mailing Address:  3rd Floor Twin Atria Building 
                                 4999 ‐ 98 Avenue 
                                 Edmonton, AB 
                                 T6B 2X3 

 

 



 
 

                  

 

 

GreenTRIP 

Green Transit Incentives Program 

Project Submission Form 

The Green Transit Incentives Program (GreenTRIP) is a one‐time capital 

funding program that supports public transit in Alberta.  This Alberta 

Transportation program provides Albertans with a wider range of 

sustainable public transit alternatives which helps increase transit 

ridership, reduce traffic congestion and thereby reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. 

Visit the Alberta Transportation website for more detailed information 

on eligibility criteria, business case and program guidelines: 

http://www.transportation.alberta.ca/5409.htm 

 



 
   

     Updated April 7, 2014  2     
 

 

G
re
e
n
TR

IP
 –
 P
ro
je
ct
 S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 

 

Program Overview and General Guide 

Please review the Procedures and Guidelines and the Project/Cost Eligibility 
Criteria documents prior to submitting the proposal. 

 

Project Submission Deadline:  November 30, 2014 

   

Section A – Project Submission Overview/Applicant Information 

Name of municipality/organization  Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission 

Legal status of applicant  (if 
applicable) 

Commission 

Contact name and title  Steve Nelson, Acting GM, Operations Manager 

Phone number  403.762.0606 

Email address  steve.nelson@roamtransit.com 

Mailing address  221 Beaver Street, Box 338, Banff, Alberta T1L 1A5 

Fax number             
 

Project Information: Attach Business Case and supporting documentation 

Name of project  Canmore Local Service Implementation 

Project location/limits 

(if applicable) 
Lake Louise 

Date of Submission  November 30, 2014 

Project description: Provide 
enough detail to understand 
project scope and magnitude 
(maximum of 250 words) 
Attach additional details as 
needed. 

This project includes the procurement of rolling stock and associated 
technologies to provide Parks Canada a Lake Louise/Moraine Lake 

public transit service that will operate year round in 2016‐2017.  This 
service will provide transit from Lake Louise town site to the world 

famous Lakes Louise and Lake Moraine.  High levels of traffic congestion 
and overflow parking at the two sites cause an increase in GHG, and an 

adverse effect on wildlife and visitor experience. 

Project Deliverables: Provide 
a brief summary of what the 
funding will be used for. 

The project deliverables include the procurement of nine 30 foot 
accessible bio‐diesel buses, 9 on board smart fare box solutions, and 
nine NextBus AVL solutions to provide real time ‘next bus’ information 

to passengers. 



 
   

     Updated April 7, 2014  3     
 

 

G
re
e
n
TR

IP
 –
 P
ro
je
ct
 S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 

 

Project commencement and 
completion dates 

(Month/DD/YYYY) 

Jan 2015 ‐ May 2016 

 

Project Costs: Attach additional detail with submission 
Please fill out the following tables summarizing project costs: 

Project Phase 
Milestone 

{A}  {B}  {C}  {D}  {E} 

Estimated 
TOTAL 

project cost ($) 

Non 

Eligible 

cost ($) 

Other 
provincial 
grants 

expected($) 

Non‐
provincial 
sources of 
funding ($)  Total Funding 

request under this 
grant program 

 

[A‐(B+C+D)] 

 

Fleet purchase 
– nine 30 foot 
bio‐diesel 
buses 

$2,700,000                                     

9 Smart fare 
boxes 

$243,000                                     

9 NextBus AVL 
solutions 

$140,000                                     

Total  $3,083,000  $            $            $            $2,055,128 

List Other Provincial Grant Sources:               
 

Section B ‐ Project Outcomes and Benefits 

Please describe how your proposed public transit infrastructure project will align with the following 

municipal and provincial priorities. 

Provincial Priority 
Describe how the provincial priority 

applies to this project. 
Describe how this project supports 

the provincial priority. 

Project will support “The 
Building Alberta Plan” which 
includes capital funding for 
“Investing in Families and 
Communities”. 

Lake Louise and Lake Moraine is one of 
the top tourist/family destinations in 
Canada.  The province would be 
investing for the long‐term in this 
project. The implementation of a public 
transit service to these locations will 
assist all residents and visitors from 
around the world access to these sites 
with less reliance on personal vehicles 
easing environmental stresses and 
congestion within the park.  

 

By providing options to visitors to use 
public transit, this project enables 
visitors to choose a transportation 
option with less environmental impact 
that using personal vehicles.  A 
reduction on personal vehicle use in the 
park helps to reduce overall GHG 
emissions to these important world 
heritage sites. 



 
   

     Updated April 7, 2014  4     
 

 

G
re
e
n
TR

IP
 –
 P
ro
je
ct
 S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 

 

Section C ‐ Supporting Documentation and Attachments 

List the attachments that support this submission 

Project will contribute to a 
safe and world‐class 
transportation system that 
supports regional and 
provincial economic 
development and provides 
Alberta with the most 
advanced infrastructure in 
North America. 

 

Supporting and investing in accessible, 
modern transit initiatives that blend 
with the existing Roam regional transit 
system, enhances the province’s social, 
economic, sustainability and 
environmental profile by increasing 
awareness and usage of transit at 
multiple locations within Banff National 
Park and throughout the Bow Valley. 

 

A service to Lake Louise and Lake 
Moraine will encourage both local and 
regional mobility within Banff National 
Park, as well as the town of Lake Louise.  
This will improve labour mobility and 
provide new opportunities for residents 
and visitors that require alternative  
means of transportation outside of the 
private vehicle. This improvement in 
mobility will provide economic spin‐offs 
as employers/businesses will have 
improved access to labour as well as 
tourist dollars in Lake Louise.

Project complements 
Alberta’s return to 
prosperity and contributes 
to a strong foundation for 
continued economic 
strength. 

 

Investment in public transit is a long‐
term vision with sound social, economic 
and environmental benefits. The 
Province’s commitment with the 
GreenTRIP Fund addresses the growth 
and sustainability challenges faced by 
municipalities today and into the future. 

For Alberta to establish a strong 
foundation for economic success future 
challenges must be identified and 
proactively analyzed and solutions 
implemented. Public transit supports 
economic mobility and thus economic 
and business development for Alberta’s 
future.  

Lake Louise service implementation is 
an important component of Parks 
Canada’s desire to reduce reliance on 
personal vehicles within the park, and 
the reduction of GHG within the 
national park. 

  

Project aligns with Provincial 
Land‐Use Framework, which 
supports regional planning 
for key infrastructure, such 
as transit. 

 

A service within Lake Louise would align 
a very popular resident and tourist 
destination with the Province’s Land‐
Use framework showcasing and 
encouraging alternative forms of 
transportation to two of Canada’s most 
popular World Heritage destinations. 

This transit initiatives support Parks 
Canada’s strategic priorities for 
providing public access to important 
park destinations while at the same 
time reducing the carbon footprint of 
visitors and restoring wildlife habitat 
and corridors. 

Project will advance the 
province’s climate change 
strategy by increasing public 
transit use, reducing 
congestion, getting cars off 
roads and thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions 

 

One of the benefits of investing in public 
transit is the reduction of the 
environmental impacts of personal 
vehicle. A modern, accessible transit 
service will deliver positive outcomes as 
they relate to the province’s climate 
change strategy including an overall 
reduction in GHG emissions and 
reduced congestion at world famous 
destinations in Banff National Park.  

 

Investing in a local transit service will 
have a direct result on the number of 
vehicles on the road. The investment in 
a Lake Louise, Lake Moraine transit 
system will remove vehicles traveling 
through important wildlife corridors, 
reduce GHG emissions related to travel 
and vehicle idling while searching for 
parking stalls.  At the same time, 
providing travel options for Lake Louise 
locals to important employment 
locations. 

 



 
   

     Updated April 7, 2014  5     
 

 

G
re
e
n
TR

IP
 –
 P
ro
je
ct
 S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 

 

   

   

   

   

   

Submission Address:   

ATTENTION:  GreenTRIP 
ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
2nd Floor, Twin Atria Building 
4999 – 98 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB   T6B 2X3 
 
TEL: 780‐415‐2148 
FAX: 780‐427‐0783     

 

 

 

Submission Certification 

 

   

Signature  Date 

 

   

Signature  Date 

<Insert title of signature required>  <Insert title of signature required> 

 

Legal Statements 

The personal information being collected on this form will be used to administer GreenTRIP.  The personal 

information is being collected under the authority of section 33(c) of the Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act and will be managed in accordance with the privacy provisions in the FOIP 

Act.  If you have any questions concerning the collection of this information, please contact Susan Fox, 

FOIP Coordinator, 780‐422‐0021. 

Mailing Address:  3rd Floor Twin Atria Building 
                                 4999 ‐ 98 Avenue 
                                 Edmonton, AB 
                                 T6B 2X3 

 

 



BVRTSC 
Canmore Feasibility Study 
 

 

 

 

 















BOW
VALLEY TR

BOW
VALLEYTR

F A
IR

HO
LM

E
DR

8 (MAIN) ST RAILWAY

ì1

LARCH AVE

15 ST

8
A V

E

KANANASKIS WAY

TRANS CANADA HIGHWAY

6A
VE

COUGAR
CREEK

BENCHLANDS TR

MOUNTAIN AVE

7 ST

7A
VE

8A
VE

5 ST

6 ST

AVE

PALLISER TR

10 ST

IJH

IJ?

CPR

CPR

ELEVATION 
PLACE

SOUTH   CANMORE

RECREATION
CENTRE

LARCH CRES

LARCH AVE

17 ST

16 ST

14 ST

17 ST

Bow River

The Pond

90
0

800

700

LA
RCH CL

100
0

110
0

600

WOODSIDE LN

500

400

300

200

10
0

17 ST

16 ST

Policeman Creek

10
 AV

E

13 ST

11 ST

MT PEECHEE PL

9 ST

9 A
VE

RIVER RD

R IV ERVIEW PL

Rundle Forebay

Bow River

Quarry 
Lake

11 AVE

4 ST

3 ST

2 ST

1 ST

3 ST

4 ST

5 ST

4 A
VE

3 A
VE

5A
VE

WILLOWPOINT

2 AVE

13 ST

15 ST 1AVE

17 ST

RAI LWA YAV E

P INEWOOD

CRES
HO

SP
ITA

LP
L

S IDNEY ST

MOUNTAIN ST

WILLIAM ST

SILVERTIP TR

MONTANE RD

SPRING CREEK GATE

BOW
VALLEY TR

R UND LE
DR

RUNDLE CRES

THREE SISTERS DR

MACDONA LD PL

10
0 G

RA
S S

I PL

200

300

GRA
SSI PL

EV
ER

GR
EEN CIRCLE

RUNDLEVIEW DR
OLY MPIC DR

RU
MM

EL
PL

SPRAY LAKES RD (HWY 742)

RUNDLE PT

CAREY

MCNEILL

CA REY

PROSPECT HTS

THREE
SISTERS DR

#2#è

SPRI NG

CREEK DR

15 ST
KANA NASKIS WAY

PRENDER GAS T PL

DE
ER

PL

ST. BARBARA'S TERR

(HWY 742)

OLD CANMORE RD

SPRING CREEK DR

SPRING
CREEK LN

L INCOLN PK3A
VE

BOW
VALLEY TR

HIGHWAY 1A

E L
K

RU
N

B L
VD

BOW MEADOWS

CR
ESBOULDER CRES

GLACIER DR

ELK RUN BLVD

LADY MACDONALD DR

CANYON CL

LA
DY

MAC
DONALD

DR

LA
DY

MACDONALD CRES

RIDGE RD

CANYON PL

CANY
ON RD

GROTTO
TERR

MO
RA

IN
ER

D
RIVERSTONE RD

MORAINE RD

G R OT TO PL

GROTTO RD

GROTTO WAY

GROTTO
RD

GROTTO CL

GR
OT

T O
W

AY

SA
ND

ST
ON

E
TE

RR

TRANS
CANADA HIGHWAY

GRIZZ
LY

CR
ES

SILVERTIP CLGRIZZLY CRES

HOODOO CRES

COUGA R
CREEK DR

CO
UG

AR
CR

E E
KD

R

PIONEER RD
KODIAK RD

TRAPPER RI

SETTLER WAYSETTL ER

WAY

BLACKRO CK

CRES

BENCHLANDS TR

COYOTE WAY

COYOTE WAY

BENCHLA NDS TR

EAGLE TERR RD

EAGLE TERR RD
TE RRACE PL

EAGLE
LD

G

WA
PI

TI
CL

EAGLE HTS

EA GL E

PT

200 BENCHLANDSTERR

100 BENCHLANDS TERR

COUGAR PT

SILVER TIP T R

LITTLE RAVINERD

BLUEG RO USE
RDG

JUNIPER RDG

AS PEN GLEN

SILVERTIP RD

SILVERTIP TR

STONECREEK RDSILVERTIP RDG

S I LV ERTIP P T

SILVERTIP RD

SILVERTIP HTS

MORRIS

MORRIS

VAN HORN E

VAN HORNE

MC
NE

ILL

WALKER

PEAKS DR
THREE SISTERS PKWY (HWY 742)

LAWRENCE GRASSI RDG
WILSON WAY

KAMENKA GR

SHELL
IAN

L N

THREE SISTERS PKWY (HWY 742)

CAIRNS LDG

THREE SISTERS PKWY (HWY742)

CASALE PL

CASALE PL

FI T ZG
ER

AL
D

R I

KRIZAN BAY

MISKOW CL

MISKOW CL

CA FFA RO CT

DYRGAS GATE

DY R GAS GATE

THREE SISTERS BLVD

HUBMAN LDG

RIVAHTS

ARMST RON G P L

THREE SISTERS PKWY

ST
EW

AR

T CREEK DR

STEWAR T CREEK LDG

STEWART CR EE K RI

æ

\P

6A
VE

5 AVE

PATRICIAN ST
PROSPE CT HTS

Cougar C ree
k

Coug
ar

Cree
k

CIVIC 
CENTRE

PUBLIC
WORKS

Bow River

Bow River

TOWN CENTRE

WATER
TREATMENT

PLANT

PR
IVA

TE
   R

OA
D

PRIVATE ROAD

NO ACCESS

CPR

CPR

\P

\P

LEGACY TRAIL SUMMER 20 13

NO
 AC

CE
SS

9 ST

!

!

103

!

!

104105

106

107

108

!

109

110

!

!

!

! !

!

I N
DIA

NF
LA

TS
RD

CANMORE
NORDIC
CENTRE

TO BANFF

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

Option A

Option B

5

Proposed Canmore Local Route #5

Date: 9/16/2014 Name: ENG14-029 Map produced by Town of Canmore GIS Services

0 250 500 750

Meters

Proposed Route #5
Option A & B
Existing Regional Transit Route
Existing Regional Transit Bus Stop



BOW
VALLEY TR

BOW
VALLEYTR

F A
IR

HO
LM

E
DR

8 (MAIN) ST RAILWAY

ì1

LARCH AVE

15 ST

8
A V

E

KANANASKIS WAY

TRANS CANADA HIGHWAY

6A
VE

COUGAR
CREEK

BENCHLANDS TR

MOUNTAIN AVE

7 ST

7A
VE

8A
VE

5 ST

6 ST

AVE

PALLISER TR

10 ST

IJH

IJ?

CPR

CPR

ELEVATION 
PLACE

SOUTH   CANMORE

RECREATION
CENTRE

LARCH CRES

LARCH AVE

17 ST

16 ST

14 ST

17 ST

Bow River

The Pond

90
0

800

700

LA
RCH CL

100
0

110
0

600

WOODSIDE LN

500

400

300

200

10
0

17 ST

16 ST

Policeman Creek

10
 AV

E

13 ST

11 ST

MT PEECHEE PL

9 ST

9 A
VE

RIVER RD

R IV ERVIEW PL

Rundle Forebay

Bow River

Quarry 
Lake

11 AVE

4 ST

3 ST

2 ST

1 ST

3 ST

4 ST

5 ST

4 A
VE

3 A
VE

5A
VE

WILLOWPOINT

2 AVE

13 ST

15 ST 1AVE

17 ST

RAI LWA YAV E

P INEWOOD

CRES
HO

SP
ITA

LP
L

S IDNEY ST

MOUNTAIN ST

WILLIAM ST

SILVERTIP TR

MONTANE RD

SPRING CREEK GATE

BOW
VALLEY TR

R UND LE
DR

RUNDLE CRES

THREE SISTERS DR

MACDONA LD PL

10
0 G

RA
S S

I PL

200

300

GRA
SSI PL

EV
ER

GR
EEN CIRCLE

RUNDLEVIEW DR
OLY MPIC DR

RU
MM

EL
PL

SPRAY LAKES RD (HWY 742)

RUNDLE PT

CAREY

MCNEILL

CA REY

PROSPECT HTS

THREE
SISTERS DR

#2#è

SPRI NG

CREEK DR

15 ST
KANA NASKIS WAY

PRENDER GAS T PL

DE
ER

PL

ST. BARBARA'S TERR

(HWY 742)

OLD CANMORE RD

SPRING CREEK DR

SPRING
CREEK LN

L INCOLN PK3A
VE

BOW
VALLEY TR

HIGHWAY 1A

E L
K

RU
N

B L
VD

BOW MEADOWS

CR
ESBOULDER CRES

GLACIER DR

ELK RUN BLVD

LADY MACDONALD DR

CANYON CL

LA
DY

MAC
DONALD

DR

LA
DY

MACDONALD CRES

RIDGE RD

CANYON PL

CANY
ON RD

GROTTO
TERR

MO
RA

IN
ER

D
RIVERSTONE RD

MORAINE RD

G R OT TO PL

GROTTO RD

GROTTO WAY

GROTTO
RD

GROTTO CL

GR
OT

T O
W

AY

SA
ND

ST
ON

E
TE

RR

TRANS
CANADA HIGHWAY

GRIZZ
LY

CR
ES

SILVERTIP CLGRIZZLY CRES

HOODOO CRES

COUGA R
CREEK DR

CO
UG

AR
CR

E E
KD

R

PIONEER RD
KODIAK RD

TRAPPER RI

SETTLER WAYSETTL ER

WAY

BLACKRO CK

CRES

BENCHLANDS TR

COYOTE WAY

COYOTE WAY

BENCHLA NDS TR

EAGLE TERR RD

EAGLE TERR RD
TE RRACE PL

EAGLE
LD

G

WA
PI

TI
CL

EAGLE HTS

EA GL E

PT

200 BENCHLANDSTERR

100 BENCHLANDS TERR

COUGAR PT

SILVER TIP T R

LITTLE RAVINERD

BLUEG RO USE
RDG

JUNIPER RDG

AS PEN GLEN

SILVERTIP RD

SILVERTIP TR

STONECREEK RDSILVERTIP RDG

S I LV ERTIP P T

SILVERTIP RD

SILVERTIP HTS

MORRIS

MORRIS

VAN HORN E

VAN HORNE

MC
NE

ILL

WALKER

PEAKS DR
THREE SISTERS PKWY (HWY 742)

LAWRENCE GRASSI RDG
WILSON WAY

KAMENKA GR

SHELL
IAN

L N

THREE SISTERS PKWY (HWY 742)

CAIRNS LDG

THREE SISTERS PKWY (HWY742)

CASALE PL

CASALE PL

FI T ZG
ER

AL
D

R I

KRIZAN BAY

MISKOW CL

MISKOW CL

CA FFA RO CT

DYRGAS GATE

DY R GAS GATE

THREE SISTERS BLVD

HUBMAN LDG

RIVAHTS

ARMST RON G P L

THREE SISTERS PKWY

ST
EW

AR

T CREEK DR

STEWAR T CREEK LDG

STEWART CR EE K RI

æ

\P

6A
VE

5 AVE

PATRICIAN ST
PROSPE CT HTS

Cougar C ree
k

Coug
ar

Cree
k

CIVIC 
CENTRE

PUBLIC
WORKS

Bow River

Bow River

TOWN CENTRE

WATER
TREATMENT

PLANT

PR
IVA

TE
   R

OA
D

PRIVATE ROAD

NO ACCESS

CPR

CPR

\P

\P

LEGACY TRAIL SUMMER 20 13

NO
 AC

CE
SS

9 ST

!

!

103

!

!

104105

106

107

108

!

109

110

!

!

!

! !

!

I N
DIA

NF
LA

TS
RD

CANMORE
NORDIC
CENTRE

TO BANFF

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

5

Proposed Canmore Local Route #6

Date: 9/16/2014 Name: ENG14-032 Map produced by Town of Canmore GIS Services

0 250 500 750

Meters

Proposed Route #6
Option1
Option2
Option 3
Existing Regional Transit Route
Existing Regional Transit Bus Stop



Hawk Ave
Eagle Cr

Town of  BanffOperations Yard Used Oil Tank & Fleet Shop

1:1,250

The Town of  Banff  does not guarantee the quality, content, accuracy, or completeness of  the information, text, and graphics,
and assumes no liability for any damages or loss of  any kind that might arise from the use of, misuse of, or the inability to use this product.
The information provided should not be used as a substitute for legal, accounting, real estate, business, tax, or other professional advice.

Town of Banff

Map Area

Date Created: 10/16/2012 10:51:39 AM
Coordinate System: NAD 1983 UTM Zone 11N

Produced By: Town of  Banff  - GIS Dept (nelsons)
File Name: MapForRobFullen

0 25 50 75 10012.5
Meters

Fleet Shop

Used 
Oil Tank

diamonda
Polygon

diamonda
Callout
5000 ft2 addition



BVRTSC 
Regional Peak Service Increase 
 

 

 

 

 



1

Steve Nelson

From: Field, Adrian <Adrian.Field@banff.ca>
Sent: October-21-14 10:37 AM
To: Karlos, Stavros; Canning, Grant
Cc: Earl, Robert; 'sean krausert' (skrausert@canmore.ca); Steve Nelson; 'Jacob Johnson' 

(jjohnson@canmore.ca)
Subject: Regional service increase
Attachments: New Service Level Request-Regional Transit Service frequency.doc

Hi Stav, Grant, 
 
As part of the service review/budget process this year we’ll be bringing the (attached) service level request to increase the regional 
transit service at peak times of the day.  Jacob, Sean, Steve and myself spoke briefly about it after the last regular meeting and Sean 
felt that Canmore council would likely support the move but also that support would be contingent on some supporting data (likely 
in the form of non‐rider survey).   In order to move this forward please could you ask Sean to add this to the next regular meeting 
agenda so we can talk about what data is available and what additional data we would need to collect in order to provide support 
(or otherwise) for a move forward with the service increase.   
 
Many thanks 
 
Adrian 
 

Adrian Field P.Eng, C.Eng, MICE | Manager of Engineering 
Engineering 
Town of Banff 
Banff Town Hall, 110 Bear Street 
Box 1260, Banff, Alberta, Canada T1L 1A1 
P 403.762.1111  F 403.762.1260 
adrian.field@banff.ca 
www.banff.ca 
 
 



NEW SERVICE LEVEL 
REQUEST 
 
Requestor:  Adrian Field 
Department: Engineering 
Title of Initiative: Regional Transit service – Increase 

Frequency 
Date:  August 22, 2014 
 

Objective:  
Increase frequency of the regional transit service to facilitate increased demand and 

accommodate for greater potential ridership 

 

Summary:  

Regional transit ridership has increased from around 4,000 riders per month in January 

2013 to around 9,000 riders a month in July 2014.  The service is reliable and efficient 

and is popular with commuters, residents of both communities and visitors alike.  Given 

the increase in ridership of 125% in 18 months of service it is possible that an increase in 

service may precipitate a further transportation mode shift away from personal vehicle 

use.   

 

Public transit is an essential part of the sustainable transportation systems in both 

communities.  By increasing service frequency it may be possible to reduce some of the 

vehicle movements into and out of town - a peak approaching 32,000 vpd this year, as 

well as some of the 500 or so vehicles driving into Banff and parking between 7 and 9am. 

 

Cost to Implement:  

Option 1 (recommended by RTC) Weekday and Saturday peak hours increase: 

o Weekdays: 

 30 minute service between 6:30 and 9:30 

 1 hour service between 10:00 and 16:00 

 30 minute service between 16:30 and 19:30 

 1 Hour service between 20:00 and 22:00 

o Weekends 

 30 minute service between 6:30 and 8:30 

 1 hour service between 9:00 and 21:00 

 Cost $65,590 contribution from Canmore and from Banff 

 

Option 2 – 30 minute service across all existing service hours: 

 Cost $123,386.25 contribution from Canmore and from Banff 

 

Ongoing Operational Cost per year:  

Project to be managed by the BVRTSC 

 



Resources Required to Implement:  

Project to be managed by the BVRTSC.  Project would be joint-funded by Canmore and 

approval as part of Canmore’s budget would also be required prior to bringing to the 

BVRTSC for a decision on implementation 

 

Resources Required to Maintain:  
Project to be managed by the BVRTSC 

 

Return on Investment:  
Improvements in sustainable transportation may result in a mode shift which would 

reduce the pressure on Banff’s limited capacities in parking and congestion management 

 

Estimated Delivery Date: June 2015 

 

Council Strategic Priority? Yes  
Managing Our Expectations    

A limited land base and Banff’s commitment to being an environmental role model means we 
cannot build our way out of traffic congestion and lack of parking. The community must embrace 
more creative solutions to reducing volumes, particularly at peak travel times. 
 
The Town’s priority is to implement the strategies of the integrated Transportation Master Plan 
adopted in 2013. We will continue to educate on and encourage the use of alternative modes of 
transportation, rescheduling non-essential travel and developing realistic tolerance levels for busy 
days.   
  
Community Plan Goals:  

 Provide a transportation system that is economically and environmentally sustainable 

 To be an environmental role model 

 Provide a transportation system that enhances the resident and visitor experience 

 Reduce and manage traffic volume and parking needs downtown 

 

Is this an approved Service Review Item? Yes 

 

Supporting Materials:  

Ridership per month on the regional service 

 

 



BVRTSC 
Quarterly Financials 
 

 

 

 

 



Actual Budget

Jan - Jun 14 Jan - Jun 14

$ Over 
Budget

% Over 
Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4100 · Farebox
      1-4100 Banff Local 132,129$     167,280$     35,151)($ -21%
      1-4101 Banff Local USD 647 0 647 100%
      2-4100 Canmore Regional 137,742 127,500 10,242 8%
      3-4100 Parks Regional 1,388 0 1,388 100%
Total 4100 · Farebox 271,906 294,780 (22,874) -8%
4200 · Advertising & Marketing Revenue
      1-4200 Banff Local 6,667 17,500 (10,833) -62%
      2-4200 Canmore Regional 3,001 6,250 (3,249) -52%
Total 4200 Advertising & Marketing Revenue 9,668 23,750 (14,082) -59%
4300 · Partner Programs
      1-4300 Banff Local 187,512 187,635 (123) 0%
      2-4300 Canmore Regional 60 11,250 (11,190) -99%
Total 4300 Partner Programs 187,572 198,885 (11,313) -6%
4400 · Requisition Recoveries
         1-4420 TOB - Operating 328,610 330,110 (1,500) 0%
         2-4420 TOC - Operating 73,250 74,750 (1,500) -2%
         5-4420 ID 9 - Operating 10,000 10,000 0 0%
Total 4400 Requisition Recoveries 411,860 414,860 (3,000) -1%
Total 4500 · Other Recoveries 8,888 0 8,888 100%
4600 · Passes
         1-4600 Banff Local Pass 33,142 17,500 15,642 89%
         2-4600 Canmore Regional Bus Passes 51,914 25,000 26,914 108%
Total 4600 · Passes 85,056 42,500 42,556 100%

Total 4700 · Regional charter sales 8,923 0 8,923 100%
Total 4800 · Route Detour Fee 950 0 950 100%

Total Income 984,823$     974,775$     10,048$ 1.03%
Gross Revenue 984,823 974,775 10,048 1%

Expense
5100 · Salaries & Wages 155,091$     113,500$     41,591$ 37%
5170 · Training & Conferences 2,112 6,500 (4,388) -68%
5180 · Travel Expense 2,971 4,000 (1,029) -26%
5190 · Meals and Entertainment 19 0 19 100%
5200 · Operating Contracts 461,493 562,500 (101,007) -18%
5300 · Insurance Expense 10,334 8,500 1,834 22%
5350 · General Operating Expenses 18,773 17,725 1,049 6%
5400 · Lease Expense 37,533 56,300 (18,767) -33%
5600 · Professional/contractual fees 96,004 83,350 12,654 15%
5700 · Advertising and Marketing 22,351 17,400 4,951 28%
5800 · Fuel 104,539 105,000 (461) 0%
5900 · Amortization Expense 0 0 0 0%

Total Expense 911,220$     974,775$     63,555)($ -7%
Net Income 73,603$       -$                 73,603$ 100%

January - June, 2014
Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission



(1) Requisition recoveries are recognized monthly in the statement of operations.

(2) Amortization expense is a year end adjustment and expected to be around $125k.

Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission
NOTES

January - June, 2014


	Nov12_2014 Draft agenda (SK Revised)
	Minutes re October 8 '14 Meeting unapproved (revised by Chair)
	AOM Minutes Oct 20 2014 unapproved (revised by Chair)
	Acting GM Update Nov 12 2014
	Administrative Work
	Local Service
	Regional Service

	Bring Forward List of Pending Items November  2014 (Chair Revised)
	BanffLocalTitleSheet
	Banff_Local_Statistics
	Summary Graphs
	2014 Transit Revenue 
	Service Summary
	Sulphur Mtn Route 1
	Tunnel Mtn Route 2
	Cave & Basin 4

	RegionalTitleSheet
	Regional_Statistics
	Summary Graphs
	Revenue
	Route Summary

	TitleSheet_Quarterly Performance Indicators
	Quarterly Performance Indicators
	Revenue Hours Per Capita
	2013 Ridership Per Revenue Hour
	Operating Revenue Per Direct Op
	Operating Expense Per Vehicle H
	Net Cost Per Capita
	Fuel Consumed Per Km
	Boardings Per Revenue Hour
	Ratio of Cash to Pass Fare

	TitleSheet_GreenTRIP
	Report 2014-13 GreenTRIP Funding Application Request for Decision
	GreenTRIP_Application_Combined
	WLnewLET-2014-11-02-TRIPCRP Letterhead (1)
	wlREPT-2014-11-02_GreenTrip-Draft_60327019 (2)
	Appendix A CRP GreenTRIP 2014
	Appendix B CRP GreenTRIP 2014
	Appendix C CRP GreenTRIP 2014

	TitleSheet_FeasibilityStudy
	nov 6LMEMO-2014-11-04-Canmore Feasibility Plan-DRAFT FINAL
	TitleSheet_PeakServiceIncrease
	LetterAdrianField
	New Service Level Request-Regional Transit Service frequency
	TitleSheet_QuarterlyFinancials
	BVRTSC Q2 2014 Budget vs. Actual
	Q2 Report




